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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
CHENNAI BENCH
FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) and Rule 6 and 7)]
CA(CAA)/30(CHE)/2022
Inthe Matter of Section 230 to 232 of The Companies Act, 2013
And
Inthe Matter of Scheme of Amalgamation
Between
Sundaram Hydraulics Limited
(Transferor Company)
And
WheelsIndia Limited
(Transferee Company)
And
Their Respective Shareholders

WheelsIndia Limited
Having its registered office at
No. 21, Patullos Road, Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India

... Applicant Company/ Transferee Company

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF WHEELS
INDIALIMITED

To
The Unsecured Creditors of Whedls India Limited,

NOTICE is hereby given that by an Order dated 01/07/2022(the ‘Order’) the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench, has directed that a meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the
Applicant Company be held through “Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio-Visual Means
(“OAVM”)”, for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without
modification(s), the Scheme of Amagamation of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited with Wheels India
Limited and their respective Share Holders (‘Scheme’ or ‘the Scheme”).

Take further notice that in pursuance of the said Order, a Meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the
Applicant Company will be convened and held on 20/08/2022 at 02:00 P.M. (IST) through VC /
OAVM”, a which time you are requested to attend.

The quorum for the Meeting shall be 12 Unsecured Creditors. In case the quorum is not in place at the
designated time, the Meeting shall be adjourned by half an hour and thereafter, the persons present for
voting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.



In terms of the Explanation to Rule 9 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, the entitlement of the Unsecured Creditors, to vote shall be determined
based on the outstanding debt as reflected in the latest audited financial statement of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2022 (“Cut-off Date”). The votes cast by the said Unsecured Creditors shall
be reckoned with reference to such Cut-off Date.

Copies of the Scheme of Amalgamation and of the Statement under Section 230 and Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 can be obtained free of charge at the Registered Office of the Company.

A Copy each of the Scheme, and of the Statement under Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
other annexures as stated in the Index are enclosed herewith.

The Tribunal has appointed Mr. N.P. Vijaykumar, Advocate, failing him the Company Secretary of the
Company, as the Chairperson of the said meeting. The Scheme, if approved by the meeting, will be
subject to the subsequent approval of the Tribunal.

Dated this the 20" day of July, 2022
Place: Chennai

Sd/-
N.P. Vijaykumar
Chairman Appointed for the Meeting
WheselsIndiaLimited
CIN: L35921TN1960PL C004175
Registered Office: No. 21, Patullos Road, Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India.

Enclosure : As above.

Notes:

A. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the directions contained in the
Order dated 01/07/2022 of the NCLT passed in CA(CAA)/30& 33(CHE)/2022, the detailed
procedure for participating in the meeting through Video Conferencing to be convened for the
purposes of approving the Scheme of Amalgamation between Sundaram Hydraulics Limited and
Wheels India Limited is set out in the annexures to the Notice and Explanatory Statement issued
for the same.

B. Asthismesting isbeing held through VC/ OAVM in accordance with the MCA circulars, physica
attendance of unsecured creditors has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the unsecured creditors will not be available for this meeting and hence,
the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice

C. Thefacility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the unsecured creditorsis not available for
this meeting. However, in pursuance of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives
of the unsecured creditors (in case of Body Corporate) can attend this meeting through VC /
OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. The corporate unsecured creditors intending to



authorize their representatives to participate and vote at the meeting are requested to send a
certified copy of the Board resolution / authorization letter to the Company / Scrutinizer by e-mail
through its registered emall address to investorservices@wheelsindiacom /
vinithsvs5889@gmail.com.

. Unsecured creditors attending the meeting through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act

. The Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its unsecured creditors in respect of the
business to be transacted at the meeting. The Chairman of the meeting shall, at the meeting, at the
end of discussion on the resolution on which voting isto be held, allow voting with the assistance
of the Scrutinizer, for al those unsecured creditors who are present at the meeting and have not
cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility. In this regard, the Company has entered
into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) for facilitating
voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting agency. The facility of casting votes
by an unsecured creditors using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the
meeting will be provided by CDSL

The unsecured creditors of the company as on the cut-off date of March 31, 2022 shall only be
entitled to avail the facility of e-voting / voting at the meeting. The voting rights of Unsecured
Creditors shall be in proportion to the outstanding debt amount as on the Cut-off Date. Once the
vote on the resolution is cast by the Unsecured Creditors, the Unsecured Creditors shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently. Person(s)/Institution(s) who became an Unsecured Creditors
after the Cut-off Date should treat this Notice for information purpose only

. The Unsecured creditors who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may aso
attend the meeting by way of VC/OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. The
procedures and instructions for ‘remote e-voting’, ‘attending the meeting through VC / OAVM’
and ‘e-voting at the meeting’ are furnished as part of this Notice

. The Tribunal has appointed Mr. S Vinith, Advocate, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote
e-voting process and vating at the meeting, in a fair and transparent manner. The Company has
engaged the services of CDSL to provide e-voting facilities enabling the Unsecured creditors to
cast their vote in a secure manner. The e-voting facility will be available at the link
www.evatingindia.com. The e-voting period would commence on August 17, 2022 (Wednesday)
9:00 A.M. (IST) and conclude on August 19, 2022 (Friday) 5:00 P.M. (IST). The e-voting module
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by an
unsecured creditor, it cannot be changed subsequently.

As per the direction of the Hon’ble NCLT, the Scrutinizer shall submit a consolidated Scrutinizer’s
Report of the total votes cast in favour of or against, if any, not later than three days after the
conclusion of the Meeting. Thereafter, the Results of remote e-voting and e-voting during the
meeting shall be declared by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The Results
declared along with the Report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the Company’s website at
www.wheelsindia.com and also be displayed on the website of CDSL at www.evotingindia.com
immediately after the results are declared and simultaneously communicated to the Stock
Exchanges.
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The Notice calling the unsecured creditors meeting has been uploaded on the website of the
Company at www.wheelsindia.com. The Notice can a so be accessed from the website of National
Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com The meeting Notice is also disseminated
on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system
during the meeting) at www.evotingindia.com.

. Since the meeting will be held through VC/ OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

. The Notice of the meeting and the accompanying documents mentioned in the Index are being sent
through el ectronic mode to all unsecured creditors of the Company as on March 31, 2022 to the e-
mail addresses that are available with the Company, as permitted by the Order of the NCLT. The
physical copies of Notice of the meeting is being sent through permitted mode to those Unsecured
creditors whose e-mail addresses are not available with the Company. The Unsecured creditors
may note that the noticeis also available on the website of the Company at www.wheelsindia.com,
websites of the National Stock Exchange of IndiaLimited at www.nseindia.com and on the website
of CDSL at www.evotingindia.com.

. Thematerial documents referred to in the accompanying Statement shall be open for inspection by
the unsecured creditors at the Registered Office of the Company on all working daysup to 1 (one)
day prior to the date of meeting during working hours except Saturday, Sunday and Public
Holidays.

. Unsecured creditors who would like to express their views/ ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker and send their request mentioning their name, PAN / e-mail ID,
mobile number to investorservices@wheel sindia.com from Saturday, August 13, 2022 (9:00 A.M.
(IST)) to Wednesday, August 17, 2022 (05:00 P.M. (IST)) only. The Unsecured creditors who
have registered themselves as speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ ask questions
during the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending
on the availability of time for the meeting. The Unsecured creditors who do not wish to speak
during the meeting but have queries may send their queries to investorservices@wheelsindia.com
from Saturday, August 13, 2022 (9:00 A.M. (IST)) to Wednesday, August 17, 2022 (05:00 P.M.
(IST)) only mentioning their name, PAN / e-mail 1D, mobile number. The Company will reply to
these queries suitably by e-mail.

. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section
or write an e-mail to hel pdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
CHENNAI BENCH
FORM NO. CAA.2
[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) and Rule 6 and 7)]
CA(CAA)/30(CHE)/2022
In the Matter of Section 230 to 232 of The Companies Act, 2013
And
Inthe Matter of Scheme of Amalgamation
Between
Sundaram Hydraulics Limited
(Transferor Company)
And
WheelsIndia Limited
(Transferee Company)
And
Their Respective Shareholders

WheelsIndia Limited
Having its registered office at
No. 21, Patullos Road, Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India

... Applicant Company/ Transferee Company

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 FOR THE MEETING OF UNSECURED
CREDITORS OF WHEEL S INDIA LIMITEDCONVENED AS PER THE DIRECTIONS OF
THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, CHENNAI BENCH

1. Pursuant to the Order dated 01/07/2022 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chennai Bench in the Company Application CA(CAA)/30(CHE0/2022, a meeting of the
Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Company is scheduled to be held on Saturday, 20/08/2022
at 02:00 P.M to obtain their approval to the Scheme of Amalgamation of Sundaram Hydraulics
Limited with Wheels India Limited and their respective Shareholders (‘Scheme’ or ‘the
Scheme’).

2. The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench, by an Order dated 01/07/2022
was pleased to issue directions for convening of the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the
Applicant Company through “Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio-Visua Means
(“OAVM”)’on Saturday, August 20, 2022 a 02:00 P.M.to be presided over by
Mr. N.P. Vijaykumar, Advocate, failing him the Company Secretary of the Company, as the
Chairperson of the Meeting. The said Order will be available for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Applicant Company at No. 21, Patullos Road, Chennai - 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India
on any working day of the Company up to the date of meeting, after receipt from the Tribunal.



3. The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company at their meeting held on December 07, 2021
had approved the Scheme of Amalgamation, while the Board of Directors of the Transferee
Company at their meeting held on December 07, 2021 had also approved the scheme of
amalgamation under which the entire undertaking of the Transferor Company will get
ama gamated with the Transferee Company. A copy of the Scheme, setting out the terms and
conditions of the amalgamation as approved by the Board of Directors of Sundaram Hydraulics
Limited (Transferor Company) and Wheels India Limited (Transferee Company) is enclosed
herewith as Annexure A. The proposed scheme is envisaged to be effective from the Appointed

Date but shall be made operative from the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme).

4. Particulars of the Companies

4.1. WheelsIndia Limited

4.1.1. WheelsIndiaLimited, the Transferee Company, wasincorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956 on 13" June 1960 in the State of Tamil Nadu. The Corporate | dentity Number
of the Transferee Company is L35921TN1960PLC004175 and the PAN is
AAACWO0315K.The e-mail address of the Company is www.wheelsindia.com. The
Applicant Company is into the business of manufacturing of automotive and Industrial
Components and is a publicly listed company whose shares are listed on the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (‘NSE’). Further, the Applicant Company’s equity
shares have been permitted for dealings on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai
(BSE) under “Permitted Securities”. The registered office of the Transferee Company

isat No. 21, Patullos Road, Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India.

4.1.2. The main objects of the Applicant/Transferee Company are as follows:

a. To carry on the business of manufacturers of and merchants and dealers in wheels

and rims, components and accessories thereof for vehicles of every kind.

b. To carry on the business of manufacturers of and merchants and dealers in al

components and parts and accessories of automative vehicles of every kind.

c. To carry on the business of iron and steel founders and founders of non-ferrous

metalsin al their branches.

d. To carry on the business of smelters and of casting, forming and shaping parts and
components of plant, machinery and equipment and articles of every description of

ferrous and non-ferrous metals and other materials

4.1.3. The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up capital of the Applicant/ Transferee

Company as on September 30, 2021 is asfollows:

Particulars Amount in Rs.
Authorised Share Capital:

5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 50,00,00,000
Total 50,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:

2,40,64,558 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 24,06,45,580

Total

24,06,45,580
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There has been no changein the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
of the Transferee Company, from September 30, 2021 till date.

4.1.4. The details of the directors and Promoters of the Applicant/ Transferee Company, as
on March 31, 2022, along with their addresses are as follows:

I\SI|(; Name Designation Address
1 S Ram Non-Executive | Old No. 29, New No. 57, Prithvi Avenue
' ) Chairman Chennai — 600 018
> | s viii Non-Executive | Old No. 33, New No. 71 Poes Garden,
Vi Director | Chennai — 600 086
. Managing Old No. 29, New No. 57, Prithvi Avenue
3 | Mr. Srivats Ram Director | Chennai — 600 018
Indenendent Flat D-1, New No.41, Old No.87 Ashok
4 | Mr.s. Prasad D?fector Prithvi, IV Street, Abhiramapuram,
Chennai — 600 018
403 Olympus-I, Prestige Acropolis
|
5 | Mr. Aroon Raman ng?f;lg?m Apartment, Hosur Road, Koramangala,
Bangalore - 560029
Independent | 3, Lavanya Vilas, 20, Raghaviah Road,
6 | Mr.R.Raghuttama Reo Director | T Nagar, Chennai - 600017
. Independent | Old No. 6A, New No.13/1, D Silva
7| Ms Sumithra Gomatam Director Road, Mylapore, Chennai -600004
Indenendent G - 501, Nagarjuna Greenridge
8 | Mr. Rishikesha T Krishanan Deifector Apartments, 19" Main, 27" Cross, HSR
Layout, Sector 2, Bengaluru - 560102
9 M/s. Sundaram Finance Promoter No. 21, Patullos Road, Chennai - 600
Holdings Limited 002, Tamil Nadu, India
10 M/s. T V Sundaram lyengar Promoter TVS building, West Vei Street,
& Sons Private Limited Madurai - 625001
11 | W/s India Motor Parts & | o Group| No.46 Whites Road, Chennai — 600 014
Accessories Limited
MIs. Trichur Sundaram No.67, Chamiers Road, RA Puram
12 | Santhanam & Family Private Promoter .
Limited Chennai — 600 028

4.15. The amount due to unsecured creditors of the Transferee Company as on
December 31, 2021 isRs. 1,20,874.49 Lakhs.

4.2. Sundaram Hydraulics Limited
4.2.1. Sundaram Hydraulics Limited, the Transferor Company, was incorporated under the

Companies Act, 1956 on December 07, 2007 in the State of Tamil Nadu.
The Corporate Identity Number of the Transferor Company is
U71290TN2007PL C065658andthe PAN is AALCS4402N.The registered office of the
Transferor Company isat No. 21, Patullos Road, Chennai -600 002, Tamil Nadu, India.



4.2.2. The main objects of the Transferor Company are as follows:
a. To Manufacture, Import, Export, Trade, Design, Develop, Fabricate, Assemble,

Purchase or otherwise acquire, Sell, Repair, Recondition, Service & dedl in all
kinds of Hydraulic and Pneumatic Cylinders, Industrial Machinery Spares, Power
Packs, Systems, Pumps & its accessories for Industrial, Construction,
Automotive and other applications.

To Design, Develop, Fabricate, Manufacture, Assemble, Import, Export, Trade,
Purchase or otherwise acquire Stock Sell, Deal with al types of seals, Sealants,
hoses & such other materials components consumables & spares as would be
used in Hydraulic & Pneumatic Equipments, Earth moving Equipments,
Machineries, Industrial Presses, Machine Equipments, Automobiles, Drill rigs,
Machine tools.

To carry on the business of General Engineering shop especialy to Design,
Develop, Fabricate, Manufacture, Assemble, Import, Purchase or otherwise
acquire Sell, Export or otherwise dispose of, trade & deal in all kinds of General
& Specia purpose machineries, Machinery Spares and accessories, Machine
Tools, whatsoever known to engineering.

To carry on the business of al types of consultancy services including but not
limited to technical, managerial, financial services and to act as representative
agents for any persons or organisation relating to main objects.

4.2.3. The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up capital of the Transferor Company as

on September 30, 2021 is asfollows:

Particulars Amount in Rs.
Authorised Share Capital:

4,65,00,000_ Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 46,50,00,000
7,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each 7,00,00,000
Total 53,50,00,000
I'ssued, Subscribed and Paid Up:

4,37,51,300 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 43,75,13,000
Total 43,75,13,000

There has been no changein the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

of the Transferor Company, from September 30, 2021 till date.

4.2.4. The details of the directors and Promoters of the Transferor Company, as on
March 31, 2022, aong with their addresses are as follows:




3(’) Name Designation Address
L | ar. srivets Ram C&a'a;m"’i‘:& Old No.29, New No.57, Prithivi Avenue,
' NG Chennai - 600 018
Director
Non- "Srinivas', 3rd Floor, Rukmini Road,
2 | Mr. Srinivas Acharya Executive Kalashetra Colony, Besant Nagar, Chennai -
Director 600 090
- Independent | No. 4, Valiammai  Achi  Street,
3 | Mr. Badri Vijayaraghavan Director K otturpuram, Chennai-600 085
Independent Flaa 2C Krishna Block, Jivan Bhima
4 | Mr. S. Srivathsan D(ia?ector Enclave, Plot No. 12 - 17, Rajasekaran
Street, Mylapore, Chennai - 600 004
Non- . . .
. F11, PH-2, Jains Aashiana, 13, VA Kaoil
5 | Mr.S. Suresh EXECUVE | o eet. Virugambakkam, Chennai - 600 092
Director
Non- Door No 1, | Block , Benco Colony, 1 Cross
6 | Mr.T. Narayanan EXSCULIVE | o et Besant Nagar, Chennai - 600 090
Director
M/s. Sundaram Finance No. 21, Patullos Road, Chennai - 600 002,
7 . . Promoter . .
Holdings Limited Tamil Nadu, India
8 | M/s. WheelsIndiaLimited Promoter No. .21’ Patullos. Road, Chennai - 600 002,
Tamil Nadu, India

4.25. The amount due to unsecured creditors of the Transferor Company as on
December 31, 2021 is Rs. 4315.20 lakhs.

5. Relationship subsisting between the companies who are parties to the Scheme of

Amalgamation:

The Transferee Company is holding 71,50,000 (Seventy-One Lakh Fifty Thousand) sharesin the
Transferor Company as the Promoter of the Transferor Company.

Rationale and Benefits of the Scheme of Amalgamation

The Board of Directors of Transferor Company and Transferee Company believe that the
proposed Scheme would, inter aia, have the following benefits:

1. The amalgamation will enable product diversification and growth to the Transferee company

2. This will facilitate expansion of the business of Transferor company by using the customer
base of the Transferee company.

3. As a combined entity, the amalgamation will help in widening the product offering to the
existing strategic customers of both the transferor as well as the transferee company.

4. Will help in achieving consolidation, greater integration and flexibility that will maximize
overall shareholder's value and improve the competitive position and negotiating power of the
combined entity.

10



5. Improves organizational capability and leadership, arising from the pooling of human capital
who have the diverse skills, talent and vast experience to compete successfully in an
increasingly competitive industry.

6. Cost savings are expected to flow from more focused operational efforts, rationalization,
standardization and simplification of business processes, elimination of duplication and
rationalization of administrative expenses.

7. The amalgamation will result in reduction of multiplicity of entities, thereby reducing
compliance cost of multiple entitiesviz., statutory filings, regulatory compliances, labour law
/ establishment related compliances.

7. Thesalient features of the Scheme are asfollows:

13
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5.1

5.2

PART -1
DEFINITIONS, SHARE CAPITAL AND DATE OF OPERATION OF SCHEME

Definitions

“Appointed Date” means the 01%October 2021 or such other date as may be determined by
the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company or such other date
asmay befixed or approved by the Appropriate Authority, being the date with effect fromwhich
this Scheme shall be deemed to be effective;

“Effective Date” means the date on which the authenticated copies or certified copies of the
Order of NCLT under Sections 230-232 of the Act sanctioning the Scheme is filed with
Regigtrar of Companies by the Transferor Company and Transferee Company. Referencesin
this Scheme to date of “coming into effect of the Scheme” or “upon the Scheme becoming
effective’, or “effectiveness of the Scheme” and other similar expressions shall mean the
Effective Date;

“Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” or “Scheme of Amalgamation” means this
Scheme of Amalgamation in its present form submitted to the NCLT or with any modification(s)
made under Clause 19 of this Scheme or with such other modifications/amendments as the
NCLT may direct;

PART —11
Amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company

Transfer and Vesting of Undertaking

Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
properties, assets, liabilities and undertaking(s) of the Transferor Company shall stand transferred
to and vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company under the
provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and
also in accordance with section 2(1B) of the IT Act, without any further deed or act, subject to
existing charges or /is pendens, if any thereon, in favour of banks/financial institutions.

Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
immovable property {including land, buildings and any other immovable property) of the
Transferor Company, whether freehold or leasehold, and any documents of title, rights, agreements

11
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5.5

5.6

5.7

to sl / agreements of sale and easements in relation thereto, shall stand vested in the Transferee
Company, without any act or deed done by the Transferee Company, and without any approval or
acknowledgement of any third party. With effect fromthe Appointed Date, the Transferee Company
shall be entitled to exercise all rights and privileges and be liable to pay all taxes and charges and
fulfil all obligations, in relation to or applicable to such immovable properties. The
mutation/substitution of the title to such immovable properties shall be made and duly recorded in
the name of the Transferee Company by the appropriate authorities pursuant to the sanction of the
Scheme by the NCLT and in accordance with the terms hereof. The Transferor Company shall take
all steps as may be necessary to ensure that lawful, peaceful and unencumbered possession, right,
title, interest of itsimmovable property is given to the Transferee Company.

All lease and licence agreements, if any, entered into by the Transferor Company with landlords,
owners and lessors in connection with the use of the assets of the Undertaking, together with
security deposit, shall stand automatically transferred in favour of the Transferee Company on the
same terms and conditions, subject to applicable law, without any further act, instruments, deed,
matter or thing being made, done or executed. The Transferee Company shall continue to pay rent
amounts as provided for in such agreement and shall comply with the other terms, conditions and
covenants there under and shall also be entitled to refund of security deposits paid under such
agreement by the Transferor Company.

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, with effect from the Appointed Date, it is
expressly provided that in respect of such of the assets of the Transferor Company that are movable
in nature and/or are otherwise capable of transfer by manual or constructive delivery and/or
endorsement and delivery or novation, the same shall be deemed to have been so transferred by
Transferor Company and shall become the property of the Transferee Company in pursuance of the
provisions of section 230 to 232 of the Act, without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or
thing.

In respect of movables other than those dealt with in Clause 5.3 above including sundry debts,
receivables, bills, credits, loans and advances, if any, whether recoverablein cash or in kind or for
value to be received, bank balances, property development rights, investments, earnest money and
deposits with any Government, quasi government, local or other authority or body or with any
company or other person, the same shall on and from the Appointed Date stand transferred to and
vested in the Transferee Company without any notice or other intimation to the debtors (although
the Transferee Company may, without being obliged, and if it so deems appropriate, at its sole
discretion, give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to each person, debtor, or
depositee, as the case may be, that the said debt, loan, advance, balance or deposit stands
transferred and vested in the Transferee Company).

Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect fromthe Appointed Date all liabilities
relating to and comprised in the undertaking of Transferor Company including all secured and
unsecured debts (whether in Indian rupees or foreign currency), sundry creditors, liabilities
(including contingent liabilities), duties and obligations and undertakings of the Transferor
Company of every kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoever arising, raised or
incurred or utilised for its business activities and operations, shall, stand transferred to and vested
in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company under the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further
act, instrument, deed, matter or thing.

Thetransfer and vesting as aforesaid shall be subject to subsisting charges, if any, in respect of any
assets of Transferor Company.
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5.8

59

5.10

511

5.12

5.13

PROVIDED always that the Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit
or facility availed by the Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall not be obliged to
create any further or additional security in relation to subsisting charges, if any, thereof after the
date of approval of this Scheme by the NCLT or otherwise.

All staff, workmen and employees as detailed under Clause 1.19(xii) above in relation to the
Transferor Company shall become the staff, workmen and employees of the Transferee Company,
without any further act or deed to be done by the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company.
Upon approval of the Scheme by the Tribunal, the Transferee Company shall, if so required under
any law or otherwise, execute deeds of confirmation or other writings or arrangement with any
party to any contract or arrangement to which the Transferor Company is a party in order to give
formal effect to the above provisions. The Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorized to
execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor Company to carry out or perform all such
formalities or compliances referred to above on part of the Transferor Company.

Pursuant to this Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to secure the
record of the change in the legal ownership upon the vesting of the assets of the Transferor
Company in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act. The Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall be jointly and severally authorized to execute any
writingsand / or carry out any formalities or compliancein thisregard.

All taxes, duties, cess payable by the Transferor Company including all or any refunds /
credit/claims pertaining to the period prior to the Appointed Date shall be treated as the liability
or refunds/ credit / claims, as the case may be, of the Transferee Company.

All thelicenses, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives, tax deferralsand
benefits (including tax benefits), subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, patents, claims, leases,
tenancy rights, liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon
or held or availed of by the Transferor Company and ail rights and benefits that have accrued or
which may accrue to the Transferor Company, whether before or after the Appointed Date, shall,
under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions of the Act,
if any, without any further act, instrument or deed, cost or charge be and stand transferred to and
vest in or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in and be available to the Transferee Company
so asto become as and from the Appointed Date licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions,
registrations, incentives, tax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, clains,
leases, tenancy rights, liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges of the Transferee
Company and shall remain valid, effective and enfor ceable on the same terms and conditions.

All the Insurance policiesregistered in the name of the Transferor Company which are active ason
the date of approval of the Scheme by the Tribunal and which can be transferred/assigned shall
pursuant to the provisions of Section 232 of the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed, be
and stand transferred to and vested in and or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in
and be available to the benefit of the Transferee Company and accordingly, the insurance
companies shall record the name of the Transferee Company in all theinsurance policiesregistered
in the name of the Transferor Company so as to ensure that all the rights and privileges under all
such policies available to the Transferor Company and / or to any other person/director/employee
of such Transferor Company, whether in the capacity of the Policy Holder or Owner or Insured or
the Beneficiary, as the case may be, be available to the benefit of the Transferee Company and/or
to any other person/director/employee of Transferee Company, as the case may be, on the same
termsand conditions as they were applicable to the Transferor Company concerned and upon such
transfer/assignment, all such policies shall be effective in favour of the Transferee Company as if
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5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary
thereto. However, for the insurance policies which do not permit such transfer/assignment, the
Transferee Company may make fresh application(s) to the concerned authority/insurance
company(ies) on such terms and conditions as may be prescribed. It is hereby clarified that all the
costs and/or expenses and/or premiums in relation to the transfer/assignment/of the insurance
policies in the name of Transferor Company shall be borne by the Transferee Company and the
Transferor Company shall have no further obligationsin-this regard.

All the brands and trademarks (including logo and right to use the trademarks) of the Transferor
Company including registered and unregistered trademarks, along with all rights of commercial
nature including attached goodwill, title, interest, labels and brand registrations, copyrights,
trademarks, and all such other industrial and intellectual property rights of whatsoever nature shall
stand transferred to and vest in the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company shall take such
actions as may be necessary and permissible to get the same transferred and/or registered in the
name of the Transferee Company.

Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect from the Appointed Date, ail existing
and future incentives, unavailed credits and expenditures, exemptions and deductions, benefit of
carried forward losses and other statutory benefits, including in respect of income tax (including
MAT credit under the IT Act), excise (including Modvat / Cenvat), customs, VAT, salestax, service
tax, GST including the IGST input tax credit, CGST input tax credit and SGST input tax credit for
the registrations of the Transferor Company in all the states, to which the Transferor Company are
entitled to shall be available to and vest in the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company shall file relevant intimations, for the record of the statutory authorities
signifying the transfer of the assets/ propertiesincluding but not limited to permissions, approvals,
consents, sanctions, remissions, special reservations, incentives, concessions and other
authorizations of the Transferor Company.

It is hereby clarified that all assets and liabilities appearing in the books of account of each of the
Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date which are set forth in the closing balance sheet of
the Transferor Company as of the close of business hours on the Appointed Date shall betransferred
to Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company shall under the provisions of the Scheme be deemed to be authorized to
execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor Company, to implement and carry out all
formalities and compliances, if required, referred to above.

8. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS UNTIL AND AFTER EFFECTIVE DATE

8.1

With effect from the Appointed Date and upto and including the Effective Date, the Transferor
Company shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on its business and activities and shall be
deemed to have held and stood possessed of and shall hold and stand possessed of itsentire business
for and on account of and in trust for the Transferee Company;

i. Carry on the business, in either name as the circumstances may be, for those unfinished or
incomplete business, contracts, transactions which may be necessary to be transacted and
completed;

ii. All the profits or income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company or expenditure or
losses incurred by the Transferor Company shall for all purposes be treated and deemed to be
the profits or income or expenditure or losses (as the case may be) of the Transferee Company;
and
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8.2

8.3

iii. The Transferor Company shall carry on their business and activities with reasonable diligence
and business prudence and shall not venture into/expand any new businesses, alienate, charge,
mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with the assets or any part thereof except inthe ordinary
course of business without the prior consent of the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the
Central Government and all other agencies, departments and authorities concerned as are
necessary under any law for such consents, approvals and sanctionswhich the Transferee Company
may reguireto carry on the business of the Transferor Company.

For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the applicable provisions of
the Scheme, itis clarified as follow:

8.3.1

8.3.2

833

With effect from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of the bank accounts of
the Transferor Company have been replaced with that of the Transferee Company, the
Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate the bank accounts of the Transferor
Company in the name of the Transferor Company in so far as may be necessary. All cheques
and negotiable instruments, payment orders received or presented for encashment which
are in the name of the Transferor Company after the Effective Date shall be accepted by
the bankers of the Transferee Company and credited to the account of the Transferee
Company, if presented by the Transferee Company. Smilarly, till the time any regulatory
registrations of the Transferor Company are closed / suspended and regulatory filings are
required to be done on such registrations, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to do
so to comply with the relevant regulations.

With effect from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to use all
packed/ labeled goods, packing materials, cartons, stickers, wrappers, labels, containers,
point of sale material, sign board, samples, closures, other publicity material, etc. lying
unused with the Transferor Company or their vendors, suppliers or third party or in their
supply chain or distribution channd and which the Transferor Company is entitled to use
under any statutes/ regulations, till such time as all of such stock exhaust without making
any amendment on those goods or materials.

With a view to avoid any disruption of business, to ensure continuity of operations and
exports and to maintain the same quality of product, with effect from the Effective Date and
till such time all critical licenses, product registrations, marketing authorizations, permits,
quotas, approvals, incentives, subsidies, etc. of Transferor Company are transferred,
recor ded, effected and/or perfected, in the record of the relevant governmental / regul atory
authoritiesin all applicablejurisdictions in favour of Transferee Company, the Transferee
Company shall carry on and be deemed to have been carrying on all the business and
activities of Transferor Company in and under the relevant licenses, product registrations,
marketing authorizations, permits, quotas, approvals, incentives, subsidies, etc. of
Transferor Company. Further, during such period, Transferee Company can procure or
use or manufacture, all material and product including packed/ labeled goods, packing
materials, cartons, stickers, wrappers, labels, containers, point of sale material, sign board,
samples, closures, other publicity material, etc. in the name and form/format of the
Transferor Company.
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9.1

9.2

9.3

94

STAFF, WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all staff, workmen and employees, who are on the
payrolls of the Transferor Company, empl oyees/personnel engaged on contract basis and contract
labourers and interns/trainees of the Transferor Company who are on its payrolls shall become
employees of the Transferee Company with effect from the Effective Date, on such terms and
conditions as are no less favorable than those on which they are currently engaged by the
Transferor Company, without any interruption of service as a result of this scheme. With regard
to provident fund, gratuity, leave encashment and any other special scheme or benefits created or
existing for the benefit of such employees of the Transferor Company, upon this Scheme becoming
effective, the Transferee Company shall stand substituted for the Transferor Company for all
purposes whatsoever, including with regard to the obligation to make contributions to relevant
authorities, in accordancewith the provisions of applicablelawsor otherwise. It ishereby clarified
that upon this Scheme becoming effective, the aforesaid benefits or schemes shall continue to be
provided to the transferred employees and the services of all the transferred employees of the
Transferor Company for such purpose shall be treated as having been continuous. Further, the
transfer of employees would be considered as if such transfer is effected under Section 25FF of
the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947.

The existing provident fund, employee state insurance contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation
fund, staff welfare scheme and any other special scheme (including without limitation any
employees stock option plan) or benefits created by the Transferor Company for its employees
shall be continued on the same terms and conditions or be transferred to the existing provident
fund, employee state insurance contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, staff welfare
scheme, etc., being maintained by the Transferee Company or as may be created by the Transferee
Company for such purpose. Pending such transfer, the contributionsrequired to be madein respect
of such employees shall continue to be made by the Transferee Company to the existing funds
maintained by the Transferor Company.

The Transferee Company undertakes that for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment
compensation, gratuity and other terminal benefits to the employees of the Transferor Company,
the past services of such employees with the Transferor Company shall also be taken into account
and it shall pay the same accordingly, as and when such amounts are due and payable. Upon this
Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company will transfer/handover to the Transferee
Company, copies of employment information, including but not limited to, personnel files
(including hiring documents, existing employment contracts, and documents reflecting changesin
an employee’s position, compensation, or benefits), payroll records, medical documents (including
documents relating to past or ongoing leaves of absence, on the job injuries or illness, or fitness
for work examinations), disciplinary records, supervisory files relating to its and all forms,
notifications, orders and contribution/identity cards issued by the concerned authorities relating
to benefits transferred pursuant to this sub-clause.

The Transferee Company shall continue to abide by any agreement(s)/ settlement(s) entered into
by the Transferor Company with any of its employees prior to Appointed Date and from Appointed
Datetill the Effective Date.
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12.
12.1

122

12.3

124

125

CONSIDERATION

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of the transfer and vesting of
Transferor Company in the Transferee Company pursuant to Part |1 of this Scheme and subject
to the provisionsof this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall, without any further application,
act, deed, consent, acts, instrument or deed, issue and allot, on a proportionate basis to each
shareholder of the Transferor Company, whose nameis recorded in the register of membersas
member of the Transferor Company as on the Record Date, as follows:

“151 (One Hundred and Fifty-One) equity shares in Transferee Company of the face value
of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, credited as fully paid-up for every 15,000 (Fifteen
Thousand) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) fully paid-up held in Transferor
Company.”

The equity shares to be issued and allotted pursuant to amalgamation of the Transferor
Company with the Transferee Company under this Scheme shall be subject to the provisions of
the memorandum of association and articles of association of Transferee Company and shall
rank pari-passu in all respectswith any existing equity shares of the Transferee Company after
the Effective Date including with respect to dividend, bonus, right shares, voting rights and
other corporate benefits attached to the shares of the Transferee Company.

The issue and allotment of the shares is an integral part hereof and shall be deemed to have
been carried out under the orders passed by the Tribunal without requiring any further act on
the part of the Transferee Company or the Transferor Company or their shareholdersand as if
the procedure laid down under the Act and such other Applicable Law as may be applicable,
were duly complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the members of the Transferee
Company to this Scheme, shall be deemed to be their consent/approval for the issue and
allotment of shares of the Transferee Company.

Subject to applicable Laws, the equity shares that are to be issued in terms of this Scheme shall
be issued in dematerialised form. The register of members maintained by the Transferee
Company and/ or, other relevant records, whether in physical or electronic form, maintained
by the Transferee Company, the relevant depository and registrar and transfer agent in terms
of Applicable Laws shall (as deemed necessary by the Board of the Transferee Company) be
updated to reflect the issue of the shares in terms of this Scheme. The shareholders of the
Transferor Company, who holds shares in physical form, should provide the requisite details
relating to his/ her/ its account with a depository participant or other confirmations as may be
required, to the Transferee Company, prior to the Record Date to enable it to issue the shares.
However, if no such details have been provided to the Transferee Company by the shareholders
holding shares in physical share certificates on or before the Record Date, the Transferee
Company shall deal with the relevant equity sharesin such manner as may be per missible under
the Applicable Law, including by way of issuing the corresponding shares in dematerialised
form to a trustee nominated by the Board of Transferee Company (“Trustee of Transferee
Company”’) who shall hold these equity shares in trust for the benefit of such shareholder. The
equity shares of Transferee Company held by the Trustee of Transferee Company for the benefit
of the shareholder shall be transferred to the respective shareholder once such shareholder
provides details of his/her/its demat account to the Trustee of Transferee Company, along with
such other documents as may be required by the Trustee of Transferee Company. The respective
shareholdersshall have all the rights of the shareholder s of the Transferee Company, including
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12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

1211

1212

1213

the right to receive dividend, voting rights and other corporate benefits, pending the transfer of
equity shares from the Trustee of Transferee Company. All costs and expenses incurred in this
respect shall be borne by Transferee Company.

For the purpose of the allotment of the shares, pursuant to this Scheme, in case any
shareholder’s holding in the Transferor Company is such that the shareholder becomes entitled
to a fraction of a share of the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall not issue
fractional sharesto such shareholder and shall consolidate all such fractions and round up the
aggregate of such fractionsto the next whole number and issue consolidated sharesto a trustee
(nominated by the Transferee Company in that behalf) in dematerialised form, who shall within
a period of 90 days from the date of allotment of shares sell the shares in the market and
digtribute the net sale proceeds (after deduction of the expensesincurred and applicableincome
tax) to the respective shareholders in the same proportion of their fractional entitlements. The
Transferee Company would within a period of 7 days of compensating the eligible sharehol ders,
submit to the Stock Exchange a report fromthe Audit Committee and the Independent Directors
stating that the eligible shareholders have been compensated. Any fractional entitlements from
such net proceeds shall be rounded off to the next Rupee.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of any
shareholder of the Transferor Company, the Board of the Transferee Company shall be
empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate
such a transfer as if such changes in the registered holder were operative as on the Record
Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferor or transferee of equity shares
in the Transferor Company, after the effectiveness of this Scheme.

The sharesto beissued pursuant to this Schemein respect of any equity shares of the Transferor
Company which are held in abeyance under the provisions of Section 126 of the Act or
otherwise shall pending allotment or settlement of dispute by order of court or otherwise, be
held in abeyance.

The shares to be issued by the Transferee Company in lieu of the shares of the Transferor
Company held in the respective unclaimed suspense account of the Transferor Company shall
be issued to a new unclaimed suspense account created for shareholders of the Transferor
Company.

In the event, any or both the Parties restructure their share capital by way of share split /
consolidation / issue of bonus shares during the pendency of the Scheme, the share exchange
ratio stated in Clause 12 above shall be adjusted accordingly, to consider the effect of any such
corporate actions undertaken by such Party.

If necessary, the Transferee Company shall before allotment of the equity sharesin term of the
Scheme, increase, reclassify, and/or restructure its authorized share capital in such manner
and by such amount as may be necessary to satisfy its obligation under the provisions of the
Scheme in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.

The Transferee Company shall apply for listing of the Transferee Company new equity shares
on the Sock Exchanges in terms of and in compliance of SEBI Circular and other relevant
provisions as may be applicable. The Transferee Company new equity shares allotted by the
Transferee Company, pursuant to the Scheme, shall remain frozen in the depository system till
listing/ trading permission is given by the designated Stock Exchange.

The Transferee Company shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and/
or undertakings as may be necessary in accordance with Applicable Law for complying with
the formalities of the Stock Exchanges and SEBI Circular.
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15.

16.

16.1

16.2

21.
211

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITHOUT WINDING UP

Subject to an order being made by the under Section 230 to 232 of the Act, the Transferor

Company shall be dissolved without the process of winding up on the Scheme becoming effective

in accordance with the provision of the Act and the Rules made hereunder.
COMBINATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Authorised Share Capital of the Transferor Company
shall stand transferred, re-organised, credited and mer ged with that of the Transferee Company
without payment of additional fees and stamp duty as the said fees and stamp duty have already
been paid by the Transferor Company and the Authorised Share Capital of the Transferee
Company will beincreased to that effect by just filing requisite forms and no separate procedure
shall be followed under the Act. Consequently, the Memorandum of Association of the
Transferee Company shall without any act, instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified
and amended pursuant to Sections 13, 61 and other applicable provisions of the Act as follows:

The Share Capital of the Company is Rs.103,50,00,000/- (Rupees One hundred three crore
and fifty lakhs only) divided into 9,65,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and Rs. 7,00,000
preference shares of Rs. 100 each. The Company has the power fromtimeto timeto increase
or reduce its capital and to issue any shares in the original or new capital as equity or
preference shares and to attach to any class or classes of such shares, any preference, rights,
privilegesor prioritiesin payment of dividends or distribution of assetsor otherwise over any
other shares or to subject the same to any restrictions, limitations, or conditions and to vary
the regulations of the Company, as far as necessary to give effect to the same and upon the
sub-division of any share to apportion the right to participate in profitsin any manner.

The approval of this Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be
deemed to have the approval under Section 13, 61 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, and any other approvals required in this regard. It is clarified that the
approval of the members of the Transferee Company to the Scheme shall be deemed to be their
approval also to the alteration to the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company
as may be required under the Act.

PART - 111
GENERAL CLAUSES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVALS/ SANCTIONS

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

i. theapproval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of the respective members and such
class of persons of Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, as required in
terms of the applicable provisions of the relevant Act as well as any requirements that
may be stipulated by the Appropriate Authority in this respect;

ii. the approval of the shareholders of transferor and transferee company through e-voting
and/ or other mode as may be required under any applicable law and the SEBI circular.
The scheme is conditional upon scheme being approved by the public shareholders
through e-voting in terms of Para 10(a) of Part | of SEBI Master Circular No.
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SEBI/HO/CFD/DILY/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 and the
Scheme shall be acted upon only if vote cast by the public shareholdersin favour of the
proposal are more than the number of votes cast by the public shareholders against it.

lii.  sanction of the Appropriate Authority, being obtained under Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Act, if so required on behalf
of the Transferor Company and the Transferee company;

iv. thenecessary certified copies of the order under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, and other
applicable provisions of the Act are duly filed with the Registrar of Companies;

v. approval of Appropriate Authorities (including Securities and Exchange Board of India) and
receipt of ‘No-Objection letter’ from Stock Exchange where such approval or consent is
necessary; and

vi. all other sanctions and approvals as may be required by law in respect of this Scheme being
obtained.

8. The Sdient features as set out above being only the salient features of the Scheme of
Amalgamation as are statutorily required to be included in this explanatory statement, the
Unsecured Creditors are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme of Amalgamation
(annexed herewith) to get fully acquainted with the provisions thereof and the rationale and
objectives of the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation.

EXTENT OF SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

9. The directors of the Applicant Company/Wheels India Limited and Transferor Company/
Sundaram Hydraulics Limited, may be deemed to be concerned and/or interested in the Scheme
to the extent of their shares that may be held by them, if any, or by the Companies, firms,
ingtitutions, trusts of which they are directors, partners, members or trustee in the Applicant
Company and Transferor Company. None of the directors, Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMPs’)
or relatives of the directors and KMPs of the Applicant Company and Transferor Company, have
any material, financial or other interest, in the Scheme, except as shareholders to the extent
appearing in the Register of Directors’ shareholding and Register of Members maintained by the
Applicant Company and Transferor Company respectively. The directors holding the shares in
the Applicant Company do not have any other interest in the Scheme otherwise than that as
shareholder in genera. Further, none of the managers, key manageria personnel and relatives of
the directors of Applicant Company is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise in the
proposed Scheme. Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors of the Applicant Company have any
materia interest in the proposed Scheme.

10. The details of the present Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Applicant Company and
their shareholding either individualy or jointly as afirst holder or as a nominee in the Applicant
Company and Transferor Company, as on March 31, 2022, is as under:



Name of the Director &

Equity Shareheld in

Key Managerial Position Sundaram WheelsIndia
Per sonnel Hydraulics Limited Limited
Mr. S. Ram NorrExecutive 49,26,686 .
Chairman
Mr. S. Viji Non-Executive Director 53,567 -
Mr. Srivats Ram Managing Director 58,41,480 53,072
Mr. S. Prasad Independent Director - -

Mr. Aroon Raman

Independent Director

Mr. R. Raghuttama Rao

Independent Director

Ms. SumithraGomatham

Independent Director

Mr. Rishikesha T Krishana

Independent Director

Mr. R Raghunathan

CFO

Ms. KV Lakshmi

Company Secretary

11. The details of the present Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of Transferor company and their

shareholding either individually or jointly as a first holder or as a nominee in the Transferee
Company and Transferor Company, as on March 31, 2022, is as under:

Name of the Director &

Equity Shareheld in

Key Managerial Position Sundargm WheelsIndia
Per sonnel Hydraulics Limited
Limited
M. Srivats Ram Chairman & Managing 58,41,480 53,072
Director

Mr. Srinivas Acharya Non-Executive Director - -
Mr. Badri Vijayaraghavan Independent Director - 200
Mr. S. Srivathsan Independent Director 100

Mr. S. Suresh Non-Executive Director 100 -
Mr. T. Narayanan Non-Executive Director - 400
Ms. G Sathya CFO - -
Mr. Sai Ganesh K Company Secretary - -

PRE AND POSTARRANGEMENT AND AMALGAMATION CAPITAL STRUCTURE

already been provided under Para 5 of this Statement.

12. The Pre-amagamation capital structure of the Applicant Company, and Transferor Company has
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13. The Post Amalgamation capital structure of the Applicant Company, and Transferor Company is

asfollows:
13.1.1. Name of the Company: Wheels India Limited

13.1.2. Name of the Company: Sundaram Hydraulics Limited

Particulars Amount in Rs.
Authorised Share Capital:

5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 50,00,00,000
Total 50,00,00,000
I ssued, Subscribed and Paid Up:

2,44,33,012 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 24,43,30,120
Total 24,43,30,120

Upon the proposed Scheme becoming effective, the entire share capital of the

Transferor Company shall stand cancelled.

14. PRE- AND POST-ARRANGEMENT SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

14.1. The expected pre and post Scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferee Company is as

follows;
g Pre Scheme of Amalgamation Post Scheme of
No- Category (ason 30" September 2021) Amalgamation
' No. of shares % No. of shares %
(A) Promoter & 13843428 | 5753% | 1,23956678|  57.12%
Promoter Group
@) Indian 0 0 0 0
@ Bodies Corporate 1,38,43,428 57.53% 1,39,56,678 57.12%
Sub-total (A)(2) 1,38,43,428 57.53% 1,39,56,678 57.12%
) Foreign 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0
Total A=
0, 0,
A)+AQ) 1,38,43,428 57.53% 1,39,56,678 57.12%
Public
®) Shareholding
(1) Institutions 0 0 0 0
Mutual Funds/
@ u “UTIU” S 4396669 |  18.27% 43.96,669 |  17.99%
Alternate
(b) Investment Funds 0 0 0 0
(¢ | Foregn Portfolio 42,955 0.18% 42,955 0.18%
Investors
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g Pre Scheme of Amalgamation Post Scheme of
Nc; Category (as on 30" September 2021) Amalgamation
' No. of shares % No. of shares %
Foreign
(d) Institutional 0 0 0 0
Investors
Financial
(e Institutions/ 45,384 0.19% 45,384 0.19%
Banks
() Insurance 3,50,740 1.46% 3,50,740 1.44%
Companies
Any other 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(1) 48,35,748 20.1% 48,35,748 19.79%
(2 Non-Institutions 0 0 0 0
@ Individuals 32,00,485 13.3% 32,08,874 13.13%
Individual
shareholders
holding nominal 30,04,038 12.48% 30,12,427 12.33%
share capital
uptoRs. 2 lakhs
Individual
shareholders
j | holdingnominal 1,96,447 0.82% 1,96,447 0.80%
share capital in
excessof Rs. 2
lakhs
NBFCsregistered
(®) with RBI 0 0 0 0
(© Any other 21,84,897 9.08% 24,31,712 9.95%
I Body Corporate 15,92,619 6.62% 16,98,880 6.95%
li Clearing Member 16,125 0.07% 16,125 0.07%
lii Foreign National 0 0 0 0
Director or
Directors 2,37,066 0.99% 3,77,611 1.55%
Relatives
HUF 1,14,711 0.48% 1,14,711 0.47%
Iv |EPF 31,786 0.13% 31,786 0.13%
V NRIs 1,90,676 0.79% 1,90,676 0.78%
vi | Unclaimed Share 1,914 0.01% 1,914 0.01%
Suspense Account
Trustee holding
fractional shares 0 0 9 0.00%
Alternate
Investment Funds 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(2) 53,85,382 22.38% 56,40,586 23.09%
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g Pre Scheme of Amalgamation Post Scheme of
Nc; Category (ason 30™ September 2021) Amalgamation
' No. of shares % No. of shares %
Total Public
Shareholding (B) 1,02,21,130 42.48% 1,04,76,334 42.88%
=(B)1) + (B)(2)
Non-Promoter
© Non Public 0 0 0 0
Total C 0 0 0 0
Total Sharenolding 2,40,64,558 100% | 2,44,33,012 100%
(A+B+C)

14.2. The expected pre and post Scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company is as

follows:
g Pre-Scheme of Amalgamation Post Scheme of
No- Category (ason 30" September 2021) Amalgamation
' No. of shares % No. of shares %
(A) Promoter & 1,84,00,000 42.06% 0 0
Promoter Group
Q) Indian 0 0 0 0
@ Bodies Corporate 1,84,00,000 42.06% 0 0
Sub-total (A)(2) 1,84,00,000 42.06% 0 0
2 Foreign 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0
Total A=
0,
A)+A() 1,84,00,000 42.06% 0 0
Public
®) Shareholding 0 0
(1) Institutions 0 0 0 0
Mutual Funds/
@ UT 0 0 0 0
Alternate
() Investment Funds 0 0 0 0
© Foreign Portfalio 0 0 0 0
Investors
Foreign
(d) Institutional 0 0 0 0
Investors
Financial
(e Institutions/ 0 0 0 0
Banks
Insurance
® Companies 0 0 0 0
Any other 0 0 0 0




g Pre-Scheme of Amalgamation Post Scheme of
Nc; Category (as on 30" September 2021) Amalgamation
' No. of shares % No. of shares %
Sub-total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0
(2 Non-Institutions 0 0 0 0
@ Individuals 12,73,253 2.91% 0 0
Individual
shareholders
holding nominal 10,914 0.02% 0 0
share capital
uptoRs. 2 lakhs
Individual
shareholders
j | holdingnominal 12,62,339 2.89% 0 0
share capital in
excess of Rs. 2
lakhs
NBFCsregistered
() with RBI 0 0 0 0
(© Any other 2,40,78,047 0 0
[ Body Corporate 1,05,55,981 24.13% 0 0
li Clearing Member 0 0 0 0
lii Foreign National 0 0 0 0
Director or
Directors 1,35,22,066 30.91% 0 0
Relatives
HUF 0 0 0 0
v |EPF 0 0 0 0
Vv NRIs 0 0 0 0
. Unclaimed Share
Vi Suspense Account 0 0 0 0
Trustee holding
fractional shares 0 0 0 0
Alternate
Investment Funds 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(2) 2,53,51,300 57.94% 0 0
Total Public
Shareholding (B) 2,53,51,300 57.94% 0 0
=(B)1) +(B)(2)
Non-Promoter
(©) Non Public 0 0 0 0
Total C 0 0 0 0
Total
Shareholding 4,37,51,300 100% 0 0

(A+B+C)
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15. Valuation, Fairness Opinion and Approvals

16.

17.

15.1.

15.2.

15.3.

15.4.

155.

Mr. Niranjan Kumar, an independent chartered accountant firm, based on their Valuation
Report dated December 07, 2021, recommended to the Board of Directors of Wheels India
Limited and Sundaram Hydraulics Limited the share exchange ratio in which equity shares
of the Applicant Company should be issued to the shareholders of the Transferor Company.
A copy of the Vauation Report issued by the Chartered Accountants is enclosed herewith
as Annexure B.

Fairness Opinion dated December 07, 2021 on the Valuation Report of Mr. Niranjan Kumar
was obtained from Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited, a SEBI registered Category |
Merchant Banker as prescribed by SEBI. The copy of Fairness Opinion issued by Kunvarji
Finstock Private Limited is enclosed herewith as Annexure C.

The proposed Scheme was placed before the meeting of Independent Directors, Audit
Committee of the Applicant Company at their meetings held on December 07, 2021. The
Independent Directors and Audit committee recommended and approved the Scheme after
considering the Valuation Report of Mr. Niranjan Kumar and the Fairness Opinion of
Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited, a SEBI registered Merchant Banker.

The Board of Directors of the Applicant Company at their meeting held on
December 07, 2021 had unanimously approved the Scheme based on the recommendation
of the meeting of Independent Directors, Audit Committee, Vauation Report of the
Chartered Accountants recommending the Share Exchange Ratio in which the equity shares
of the Applicant Company should be issued to the shareholders of Transferor Company and
the Fairness Opinion of Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited, a SEBI registered Merchant
Banker.

The copies of the said Vauation Report of the Chartered Accountants, Fairness Opinion and
other documents submitted to the Stock Exchange are also displayed on the website of the
Applicant Company at www.wheelsindia.com,the website of National Stock Exchange of
India Limited, the designated stock exchange where the shares of the Applicant Company
are listed, in terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India circular
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017.

At the Board Meeting held on December 07, 2021,the Directors present at the meeting of the
Applicant Company, approved the Scheme.

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board (“SEBI”) circular CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated
March 10, 2017 (the “SEBI Circular”) read with Regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI
LODR Regulations’) the Applicant Company had applied to National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE) on December 25, 2021 for seeking their No objection to the proposed Scheme of
Amalgamation. Further, NSE, the Designated Stock Exchange forwarded the said application along
with Draft Scheme to SEBI for its approval and/or comments. The NSE gave its Observation letter
on February 10, 2022 conveying its “No Objection” for the scheme, which is enclosed herewith as
AnnexureD.
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18.

10.

20.

21.

22

23.

The Scheme of Amalgamation along with related documents were hosted on the websites of the
Applicant Company, NSE and have been open for complaints/’comments from January 03, 2022 to
January 24, 2022 for a period of 21 days. During the above period, the Transferee Company has
received no complaint/comment and accordingly the complaints report (indicating Nil complaints)
was filed with the NSE on January 25, 2022 taken on record by NSE. A copy of the said Complaints
Report filed with NSE is enclosed as Annexure E.

A copy of the certified financial statements of the Transferee Company for year ended
March 31, 2022 together with the audited financial statements of the Transferor Company for the
year ended March 31, 2022 are enclosed herewith as Annexure F.

The Applicant Company/Transferee Company will make a petition under Section 230-232 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 to the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chennai Bench, for sanctioning of the Scheme.

In relation to the meeting of the Unsecured creditors of the Applicant Company, the Unsecured
creditors of the Applicant company as on March 31, 2022, shall be eligible to attend the meeting of
the Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Company convened at the directions of the Tribunal.
Under Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013, the proposed Scheme will have to be approved by
a magjority in number representing three-fourths in value of the Unsecured Creditors present and
voting.

RESOLUTION PROPOSED TO BE APPROVED AT THE MEETING

It isin the interest of the Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Company that the said Scheme of
Amalgamation should be approved. Accordingly, the following resolutions will be moved at the
mesting convened pursuant to this Notice.

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 read with Section 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (Including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015, Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (including amendments
thereof), read with observation letter dated February 10, 2022 and the enabling provisions of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the
requisite approval(s), consents, sanctions and permissions of the Central Government, other
concerned regulatory authorities and the sanction of the National Company Law Tribunal,
Chennai Bench (hereinafter also referred to as “NCLT” or “the Tribunal”) and/or such other
appropriate authority/ies, as may be applicable, if any, and al such other approvals, permissions
and sanctions, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed or imposed by any of them while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions,
which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company, the Scheme of Amalgamation
of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited with Wheels India Limited and their respective shareholders
placed before this meeting, be and is hereby approved.
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24.

25.

26.

27.
28.

29.
30.

31

32.

RESOLVED FURTHER RESOLVED Mr. S Ram, Chairman and Mr. Srivats Ram, Managing
Director of the Company and Ms. K V Lakshmi, be and are hereby severaly authorised to take
all steps as may be necessary or desirable and to do al such acts, deeds, things and matters, as
may be considered necessary to give effect to the aforesaid Scheme of Amalgamation and this
resolution and to accept such alteration, modification and/or conditions, if any, which may be
proposed, required or imposed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench,
while sanctioning the said Scheme of Amalgamation.”

Therights and interests of the members and the creditors of the Applicant Company and Transferor
Company will not be prejudicially affected by this Scheme of Amalgamation.

No investigation proceedings are pending under the provisions of Chapter X1V of the Companies
Act, 2013 or under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 against the Applicant Company.

A copy of the Scheme has been filed by the Applicant Company with the Registrar of Companies,
Tamil Nadu, Chennai, on July 11, 2022 vide SRN: F14756555.

No winding up petition is pending against the Applicant Company.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 232(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Applicant Company and Transferor Company, at their respective Board meetings
held on December 07, 2022 have adopted a Report, inter-alia, explaining the effect of the Scheme
on each class of shareholders (promoter and non-promoter shareholders) and key manageria
personnel. A copy of the Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company is
enclosed to this Explanatory Statement as Annexure G.

Abridged Prospectus of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited - Annexure H

The shareholders of Transferor Company will be issued shares in accordance with the Share
Exchange Ratio provided in the Vauation Report. Consequently, the shares held by the Applicant
Company in Transferor Companywill stand cancelled. The Scheme is not expected to have any
adverse effect on the Key Managerial Personnel, directors, secured or unsecured creditors, non-
promoter members, and employees of the Applicant Company wherever relevant, as no sacrifice or
waiver isat all called from them nor their rights sought to be modified in any manner.

Corporate creditors intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the meeting are
requested to lodge acertified true copy of the resolution of the Board of Directorsor other governing
body of the body corporate not later than 48 (Forty-Eight) hours before commencement of the
mesting, authorising such person to attend and vote on its behalf at the meeting.

The following documents will be available for inspection by the Unsecured Creditors of the
Applicant Company at its Registered Office at working hours up to 1 (one) day prior to the date of
meeting, on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays):

a) Certified copy of the Order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench
dated 01/07/2022 passed in Company Application No. CA(CAA)/30(CHE)/2022 directing
and convening of the meeting of unsecured creditors of the Applicant Company.

b) Scheme of Amalgamation.

¢) Memorandum and Articles of Association of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited and WheelsIndia
Limited

d) Annual Reports of WheelsIndia Limited and Sundaram Hydraulics Limited for the last three
financial years ending March 31, 2019, March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021.
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€) Copiesof audited financial statements of Wheels India Limited for the year ended March 31,
2022and audited financial statements of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited for the year ended
March 31, 2022.

f) Copy of the Observation Letter dated February 10, 2022 received from the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

g) Copy of the Vauation Report providing for the Share Exchange Ratio dated December 07,
2021 issued by Mr. Niranjan Kumar

h) Copy of the Fairness opinion by Merchant Banker, Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited dated
December 07, 2021.

i) Copy of the Audit Committee Report dated December 07, 2021.

j) Copies of the Resolutions passed by the respective Board of Directors of Wheels India
Limited and Sundaram Hydraulics Limited on December 07, 2021.

k) Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Applicant Company asrequired under Section
232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

) Copy of the Statutory Auditor’s certificate dated December 07, 202lissued by M/s.
Brahmayya& Co., Chartered Accountants, Chennai of the Wheels India Limited confirming
that the accounting treatment provided in the Scheme is in compliance with Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

m) Copy of the Company Application No.CA(CAA)/30(CHE)/2022 and the Affidavit in support
thereof.

33. This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Section 230 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Sections 102 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013. A copy of the Scheme and
Explanatory statement may also be obtained free of cost from the registered office of the Applicant
Company.

Dated at Chennai on thisthe 20" day of July, 2022
Sd/-
N.P. Vijaykumar

Chairman Appointed for the Meeting

Whedls IndiaLimited
Registered Office: No. 21, Patullos Road, Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India.
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INSTRUCTIONS TO UNSECURED CREDITORS

Procedurefor joining the meeting through VC / OAVM

a) Unsecured creditors will be provided with afacility to attend the meeting though VC/
OAVM through the CDSL e-Voting system. Unsecured Creditors may access the same
at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders / members login by using the
remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC / OAVM will be available in login page
where the EV SN of the company will be displayed.

b) Facility of joining the meeting through VC/OAVM shall open 30 minutes before the
meeting time.

c) The procedures for e-voting during the meeting is the same as remote e-voting.

d) Only those Unsecured Creditors, who are present in the Meeting through VC facility
and have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system
available during the Meeting

In case you could not retrieve your User ID / password, kindly contact our Registrar &
Transfer Agents, M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, “Subramanian Building”, No.1,
Club House Road, Chennai — 600 002, e-mail ID: investor@cameoindia.com / Phone: 044-
28460395 or the Company at investorservices@wheelsindia.com / Phone: 044-26258511
Extn.: 2320, 044-26257121.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending the Meeting & e-voting from the
CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed
to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited,
A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, L ower
Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to hel pdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call
toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.
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Annexure- A

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
OF
SUNDARAM HYDRAULICS LIMITED
(“TRANSFEROR COMPANY” OR “SHL”)
WITH
WHEELS INDIA LIMITED
(“TRANSFEREE COMPANY” OR “WIL)
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

(Under the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013)
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)

i)

PREAMBLE AND BACKGROUND

. This Scheme of Amalgamation (hereinafter referred to as “the Scheme” or “this Scheme”) is presented
pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under (to the extent applicable) for the Amalgamation
of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited with Wheels India Limited. This Scheme (as defined hereinafter) also

provides for various other matters consequential to, or otherwise integrally connected with the above,
as more specifically stated hereinafter.

. The brief background of various entities is as follows:

A) Sundaram Hydraulics Limited, (‘Transferor Company" or "SHL"), is a public limited company
incorporated on 07t December 2007 under the Companies Act, 1956 having
CIN:U71290TN2007PLC065658 and registered office at No. 21, Patullos Road,
Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India. The Transferor Company is engaged in the business of

design, manufacture and distribution of hydraulic cylinders for the domestic and global MCE
industry.

B) Wheels India Limited, (“Transferee Company” or “WIL"), is a public limited company incorporated
on 130 June 1960 under  the  Companies  Act 1956 having
CIN:L35921TN1960PLC004175 and Registered Office at No. 21, Patullos Road,
Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India. The Transferee Company is engaged in the business of
manufacturing of automotive and Industrial Components. The equity shares of Transferee
Company are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., Mumbai (NSE). Further, the
Transferee Company's equity shares have been permitted for dealings on Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited, Mumbai (BSE) under “Permitted Securities” Category.

RATIONALE AND PURPOSE OF THE SCHEME

The Board of Directors of Transferor Company and Transferee Company believe that the proposed
Scheme would, inter alia, have the following benefits:

1. The amalgamation will enable product diversification and growth to the Transferee company

2. This will facilitate expansion of the business of Transferor company by using the customer base of
the Transferee company.

3. As a combined entity, the amalgamation will help in widening the product offering to the existing

strategic customers of both the transferor as well as the transferee company.

4. Will help in achieving consolidation, greater integration and flexibility that will maximize overall

shareholder's value and improve the competitive position and negotiating power of the combined
entity.

5. Improves organizational capability and leadership, arising from the pooling of human capital who

have the diverse skills, talent and vast experience to compete successfully in an increasingly
competitive industry.

6. Cost savings are expected to flow from more focused operational efforts, rationalization,

standardization and simplification of business processes, elimination of duplication and
rationalization of administrative expenses.

7. The amalgamation will result in reduction of multiplicity of entities, thereby reducing compliance

cost of multiple entities viz., statutory filings, regulatory compliances, labour law / establishment
related compliances. ‘

Further, under the Scheme, there is no arrangement proposed to be entered into with the creditors,
either secured and/or unsecured creditors of the Transferor Company and/or the Transferee Company.
No compromise is offered under this Scheme to any of the creditors of the Transferor Company and/or
the Transferee Company. The liability towards the creditors of the Transferor Company and/or the
Transferee Company under the Scheme, is neither being reduced nor being extinguished but shall be
assumed and discharged by the Transferee Company in its ordinary course of business.
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1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

14.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

PARTS OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme is divided into following parts:

= Part| - Deals with the definitions of the terms used in this scheme, details of share capital of the
Parties, and Date of Operation of this Scheme

»  Partll - Deals with the amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company.
= Partlll - Deals with general clauses, terms and conditions applicable to the Scheme.
PART - |

DEFINITIONS, SHARE CAPITAL AND DATE OF OPERATION OF SCHEME

DEFINITIONS
In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following expressions shall
have the following meanings:

“Act’ or “the Act’ means the Companies Act, 2013 and shall include any statutory modifications, re-
enactment or amendments thereof for the time being in force, and the rules and regulations made
thereunder;

“Applicable Law(s)” means any statue, notification, bye laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, Circulars
or common law, policy, code, directives, ordinance, schemes, notices, orders or instructions enacted
or issued or sanctioned by any Appropriate Authority including any modification or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force;

“Appointed Date” means the 015t October 2021 or such other date as may be determined by the Board
of Directors of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company or such other date as may be fixed or
approved by the Appropriate Authority, being the date with effect from which this Scheme shall be deemed
to be effective;

"Appropriate Authority" means any national, state, provincial, local or similar governmental,
statutory, regulatory, administrative authority, agency, commission, departmental or public body or
authority, board, branch, tribunal or court or other entity authorized to make laws, rules, regulations,
standards, requirements, procedures or to pass directions or orders, in each case having the force of
law, or any non-governmental regulatory or administrative authority, body or other organization to the
extent that the rules, regulations and standards, requirements, procedures or orders of such authority,
body or other organization have the force of law, or any stock exchange of India or any other country
including the Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Official Liquidator, Company Law Board,
Competition Commission of India, Reserve Bank of India, Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Stock Exchanges, National Company Law Tribunal and such other sectoral regulators or authorities as
may be applicable;

"Board of Directors” or "Board" shall mean the Board of Directors of Transferor Company or
Transferee Company, as the case may be or any committee thereof duly constituted, or any other
person duly authorized by the Board for the purpose of this Scheme;

“Effective Date” means the date on which the authenticated copies or certified copies of the Order of
NCLT under Sections 230-232 of the Act sanctioning the Scheme is filed with Registrar of Companies
by the Transferor Company and Transferee Company. References in this Scheme to date of “coming
into effect of the Scheme” or “upon the Scheme becoming effective”, or “effectiveness of the Scheme"
and other similar expressions shall mean the Effective Date;

“IT Act” means the Income-tax Act, 1961, of India, including ,any %@ tory, modifications, b
enactments or amendments thereof for the time being in force;




1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

1.11.

1.12.

1.13.

1.14.

1.15.

1.16.

1.17.

1.18.

1.19.

1.20.

"Governmental Authority” or “Government Body" means any applicable central, state or local
government, legislative body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or commission or any
court, tribunal, board, bureau or instrumentality thereof or arbitration or arbitral body having jurisdiction;

“NCLT” or “the Tribunal” means the National Company Law Tribunal, Bench at Chennai in relation to
the Transferor Company and Transferee Company.

“Parties” shall mean collectively the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and “Party”
shall mean each of them, individually;

“Record Date” means the date to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company in
consultation with the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company for the purpose of reckoning names
of Equity Shareholders of the Transferor Company, who shall be entitled to receive shares of the
Transferee Company upon coming into effect of this Scheme;

“Registrar of Companies” means the Register of Companies in Chennai or as the case may be;

“Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” or “Scheme of Amalgamation” means this Scheme
of Amalgamation in its present form submitted to the NCLT or with any modification(s) made under Clause
19 of this Scheme or with such other modifications/amendments as the NCLT may direct;

“SEBI” means the Securities Exchange Board of India established under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992.

"SEBI Circulars" means the circulars issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India in relation to
the amalgamations and arrangements carried out under the Act and shall inter-alia refer to SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 or SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 as amended from time to
time.

“Stock Exchange” means National Stock Exchange of India Limited;

«Tax Laws” means IT Act, Customs Act, 1962, Central Excise Act, 1944, Value Added Tax Act applicable
to any state in which the Transferor Company and/or Transferee Company operate, Central Sales Tax
Act, 1956, any other State Sales Tax / Value Added Tax laws, or Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax or
other applicable laws/ regulations dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies/cess.

“Transferee Company” or “WIL” means Wheels India Limited having CIN L35921TN1960PLC004175
and Registered Office at 21, Patullos Road, Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India.

“Transferor Company” or “SHL” means Sundaram Hydraulics Limited having CIN
U71290TN2007PLC065658 and Registered Office at 21, Patullos Road, Chennai — 600 002, Tamil
Nadu, India.

“Undertaking” means and includes all the assets, properties, liabilities and the undertaking(s) and
entire business(s) of the Transferor Company of whatsoever nature and kind and wherever situated, on
a going concern basis, which shall include, without limitation:

i. allthe assets and properties (whether movable or immovable, tangible or intangible, real or personal,
in possession or reversion, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or contingent of whatsoever
nature, whether or not appearing in the books of accounts) of the Transferor Company, including,
without limitation, sheds, godowns, warehouses, offices, plant and machineries, equipments,
interests, capital work-in progress, rolling stocks, installations, appliances, tools, accessories,
freeholds, leasehold or any other title, interests or right in such immovable assets, buildings and
structures, offices, residential and other premises, furniture, fixtures, office equipments, computers
and all stocks; - WHEE]D S INDIA LIMITEL
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i. all current assets including inventories, sundry debtors, receivables, cash and bank accounts
(including bank balances), fixed deposits, loans and advances, actionable claims, bills of exchanges
and debit notes of the Transferor Company;

iii. all rights or benefits, benefits of any deposit, receivables, claims against any vendor or advances or
deposits paid by or deemed to have been paid by the Transferor Company, financial assets, benefit
of any bank guarantees, performance guarantees and letters of credit, hire purchase contracts,
lending contracts, rights and benefits under any agreement, benefits of any security arrangements
or under any guarantee, reversions, powers, tenancies in relation to the office and/or residential
properties for the employees or other persons, vehicles, guest houses, godowns, share of any joint
assets and other facilities;

iv. all rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, intemet, leased line connections
and installations, utilities, electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of assets
or properties or other interests held in trusts, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangement of
all kinds, privileges and all other rights, easements, liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature
and wheresoever's situated belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and in the control
of or vested in or granted in favor of or enjoyed if any, by the Transferor Company or in connection
with or relating to the said Transferor Company and all other interests of whatsoever nature belonging
to or in the ownership, power, possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favor of or held
for the benefit of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company;

v. all permissions, approvals, consents, subsidies, privileges, income tax benefits and exemptions,
accumulated tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation, minimum alternate tax credits, indirect tax benefits
and exemptions, all other rights, benefits and liabilities related thereto including licenses, powers and
facilities if any, of every kind, nature and description whatsoever, provisions and benefits of all
agreements, contracts and arrangements and all other interests in connection with or relating to the
Transferor Company;

vi. all licenses if any (including but not limited to licenses granted by any government, statutory or
regulatory bodies for the purpose of carrying on the business or in connection therewith), approvals,
authorizations, permissions including municipal permissions, consents, registrations including import
registrations, certifications, no objection certificates, quotas including import quotas, rights, permits
including import permits, exemptions, subsidies, tax deferrals, credits (including Cenvat Credits,
sales tax credits, Good and Service Tax credits and income tax credits), privileges, advantages and
all other rights and facilities of every kind, nature and description whatsoever of the Transferor
Company;

vii. all agreements, contracts, arrangements, understandings, engagements, if any [deeds and
instruments including lease/ license agreements, tenancy rights, equipment purchase agreements,
master service agreements, loan license agreements, third party manufacturing agreements and
other agreements with the customers, purchase and other agreements/ contracts with the
supplier/manufacturer of goods/ service providers and all rights, title, interests, claims and benefits
there under of the Transferor Company;

viii.all application monies, advance monies, earnest monies and/ or security deposits if any, paid or
deemed to have been paid and payments against other entitlements of the Transferor Company;

ix. all debts, borrowings, obligations, duties and liabilities both present and future, whether provided for
or not in the books of accounts or disclosed in the balance sheet of the Transferor Company, whether
secured or unsecured, all guarantees, assurances, commitments and obligations of any kind, nature
or description, whether fixed, contingent or absolute, asserted or unasserted, matured or un-matured,
liquidated or unliquidated, accrued or not accrued, known or unknown, due or to become due,
whenever or however arising (including, without limitation, whether arising out of any contract or tort
based on negligence or strict liability) pertaining to the Transferor Company;

x. all intellectual property rights, registrations, trademarks, trade names, service marks, copyrights,
patents, designs, goodwill, domain names, including applications for trademarks, trade names,
service marks, copyrights, patents, designs and domain names, used by or held for use by the
Transferor Company, whether or not recorded in the books of accounts of the Transferor Company,
and other intellectual rights of any nature whatsoever (including applications for registrations of the
same and the right to use such intellectual property rights), books, records, files, papers, engineering
and process information, software licenses (whether proprietary or otherwise), drawings, computer
programs, manuals, data, catalogues, quotations, list of present and former customers and suppliers,
other customer information, customer credit information, customer pricing information and all other
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records and documents, whether in physical or electronic form relating to the business activities and
operations of the Transferor Company, whether used or held for use by it; and

any and all permanent employees, who are on the payrolls of the Transferor Company,
employees/personnel engaged on contract basis and contract labourers and interns/trainees,
engaged by the Transferor Company, at its respective offices, branches or otherwise, and any other
employees/personnel and contract labourers and interns/trainees hired by the Transferor Company.

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

Words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;

Headings and bold typefaces are only for convenience and shall be ignored for the purpose of
interpretation;

Reference to the word “include” or “including” shall be construed without limitation;

A reference to a clause, section or part is, unless indicated to the contrary, a reference to a clause,
section or part of this Scheme,

Unless otherwise defined, the reference to the word “days” shall mean calendar days;

Reference to a document includes an amendment or supplement to, or replacement or novation of
that document;

Word(s) and expression(s) elsewhere defined in the Scheme shall have the meaning(s) respectively
ascribed to them; and

All terms and words used but not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the
context or meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act and other
Applicable Laws.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any madification(s) approved or imposed or directed
by the NCLT or in terms of this Scheme shall take effect from the Appointed Date but shall be operative
from the Effective Date.

SHARE CAPITAL OF PARTIES

The share capital of Transferor Company as on 30t September 2021 is as follows:

Authorized Capital

4,65,00,000_ Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 46,50,00,000
7,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each 7,00,00,000
Total 53,50,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

4,37,51,300 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 43,75,13,000
Total 43,75,13,000

Subsequent to 30t September 2021 there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and
paid up share capital of the Transferor Company.

The share capital of Transferee Company, as on 30t September 2021 is as follows:

| Authorized Capital

5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 50,00,00,000
Total 50,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

2,40,64,558 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 24,06,45,580
Total
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55.

Subsequent to 30t September 2021, there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed
and paid up share capital of the Transferee Company. The shares of the Transferee Company are listed
on Stock Exchange.

PART - i

Amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company
Transfer and Vesting of Undertaking

Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect from the Appointed Date, all properties,
assets, liabilities and undertaking(s) of the Transferor Company shall stand transferred to and vested
in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company under the provisions of
Section 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and also in
accordance with section 2(1B) of the IT Act, without any further deed or act, subject to existing charges
or lis pendens, if any thereon, in favour of banks/financial institutions.

Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect from the Appointed Date, all immovable
property (including land, buildings and any other immovable property) of the Transferor Company,
whether freehold or leasehold, and any documents of title, rights, agreements to sell / agreements of
sale and easements in relation thereto, shall stand vested in the Transferee Company, without any act
or deed done by the Transferee Company, and without any approval or acknowledgement of any third
party. With effect from the Appointed Date, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to exercise all
rights and privileges and be liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil all obligations, in relation to or
applicable to such immovable properties. The mutation/ substitution of the title to such immovable
properties shall be made and duly recorded in the name of the Transferee Company by the appropriate
authorities pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT and in accordance with the terms
hereof. The Transferor Company shall take all steps as may be necessary to ensure that lawful,
peaceful and unencumbered possession, right, title, interest of its immovable property is given to the
Transferee Company.

All lease and licence agreements, if any, entered into by the Transferor Company with landlords,
owners and lessors in connection with the use of the assets of the Undertaking, together with security
deposit, shall stand automatically transferred in favour of the Transferee Company on the same terms
and conditions, subject to applicable law, without any further act, instruments, deed, matter or thing
being made, done or executed. The Transferee Company shall continue to pay rent amounts as
provided for in such agreement and shall comply with the other terms, conditions and covenants
thereunder and shall also be entitled to refund of security deposits paid under such agreement by the
Transferor Company

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, with effect from the Appointed Date, it is expressly
provided that in respect of such of the assets of the Transferor Company that are movable in nature
and/or are otherwise capable of transfer by manual or constructive delivery and/or endorsement and
delivery or novation, the same shall be deemed to have been so transferred by Transferor Company
and shall become the property of the Transferee Company in pursuance of the provisions of section
230 to 232 of the Act, without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing.

In respect of movables other than those dealt with in Clause 5.3 above including sundry debts,
receivables, bills, credits, loans and advances, if any, whether recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received, bank balances, property development rights, investments, earnest money and
deposits with any Government, quasi government, local or other authority or body or with any company
or other person, the same shall on and from the Appointed Date stand transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company without any notice or other intimation to the debtors (although the Transferee
Company may, without being obliged, and if it so deems appropriate, at its sole discretion, give notice
in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to each person, debtor, or depositee, as the case may be,
that the said debt, loan, advance, balance or deposit stands transferred and vested in the Transferee
Company).
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Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect from the Appointed Date all liabilities
relating to and comprised in the undertaking of Transferor Company including all secured and
unsecured debts (whether in Indian rupees or foreign currency), sundry creditors, liabilities (including
contingent liabilities), duties and obligations and undertakings of the Transferor Company of every kind,
nature and description whatsoever and howsoever arising, raised or incurred or utilised for its business
activities and operations, shall, stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to be transferred to and
vested in the Transferee Company under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing.

The transfer and vesting as aforesaid shall be subject to subsisting charges, if any, in respect of any
assets of Transferor Company.

PROVIDED always that the Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit or
facility availed by the Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall not be obliged to create any
further or additional security in relation to subsisting charges, if any, thereof after the date of approval
of this Scheme by the NCLT or otherwise.

All staff, workmen and employees as detailed under Clause 1.19(xii) above in relation to the Transferor
Company shall become the staff, workmen and employees of the Transferee Company, without any
further act or deed to be done by the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company.

Upon approval of the Scheme by the Tribunal, the Transferee Company shall, if so required under any
law or otherwise, execute deeds of confirmation or other writings or arrangement with any party to any
contract or arrangement to which the Transferor Company is a party in order to give formal effect to
the above provisions. The Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorized to execute any such
writings on behalf of the Transferor Company to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances
referred to above on part of the Transferor Company.

Pursuant to this Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to secure the
record of the change in the legal ownership upon the vesting of the assets of the Transferor Company
in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act. The Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company shall be jointly and severally authorized to execute any writings and / or carry out
any formalities or compliance in this regard.

All taxes, duties, cess payable by the Transferor Company including alf or any refunds / credit / claims
pertaining to the period prior to the Appointed Date shall be treated as the liability or refunds / credit /
claims, as the case may be, of the Transferee Company.

All the licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives, tax deferrals and
benefits (including tax benefits), subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, patents, claims, leases, tenancy
rights, liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or held or
availed of by the Transferor Company and all rights and benefits that have accrued or which may
accrue to the Transferor Company, whether before or after the Appointed Date, shall, under the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions of the Act, if any, without
any further act, instrument or deed, cost or charge be and stand transferred to and vest in or be deemed
to be transferred to and vested in and be available to the Transferee Company so as to become as
and from the Appointed Date licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions, registrations,
incentives, tax deferrals and benefits, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy
rights, liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges of the Transferee Company and shall
remain valid, effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions.

All the Insurance policies registered in the name of the Transferor Company which are active as on the
date of approval of the Scheme by the Tribunal and which can be transferred/assigned shall pursuant
to the provisions of Section 232 of the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand
transferred to and vested in and or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in and be
available to the benefit of the Transferee Company and accordingly, the insurance companies shall
record the name of the Transferee Company in all the insurance policies registered in the name of the
Transferor Company so as to ensure that all the rights and privileges under all such policies available
to the Transferor Company and / or to any other person/director/employee of such Transferor
Company, whether in the capacity of the Policy Holder or Owner or Insured or the Beneficiary, as the
case may be, be available to the benefit of the Transferee Company and / or to any other
person/director/employee of Transferee Company, as the case may be, on the same terms and
conditions as they were applicable to the Transferor Company concerned and upon such
transfer/assignment, all such policies shall be effective in favour of the Transferee Company as if
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5.18.

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary thereto.
However, for the insurance policies which do not permit such transfer/assignment, the Transferee
Company may make fresh application(s) to the concerned authority/insurance company(ies) on such
terms and conditions as may be prescribed. It is hereby clarified that all the costs and/or expenses
and/or premiums in relation to the transfer/assignment/of the insurance policies in the name of
Transferor Company shall be borne by the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company shall
have no further obligations in this regard.

All the brands and trademarks (including logo and right to use the trademarks) of the Transferor
Company including registered and unregistered trademarks, along with all rights of commercial nature
including attached goodwill, title, interest, labels and brand registrations, copyrights, trademarks, and
all such other industrial and intellectual property rights of whatsoever nature shall stand transferred to
and vest in the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company shall take such actions as may be
necessary and permissible to get the same transferred and/or registered in the name of the Transferee
Company.

Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect from the Appointed Date, all existing and
future incentives, unavailed credits and expenditures, exemptions and deductions, benefit of carried
forward losses and other statutory benefits, including in respect of income tax (including MAT credit
under the IT Act), excise (including Modvat / Cenvat), customs, VAT, sales tax, service tax, GST
including the IGST input tax credit, CGST input tax credit and SGST input tax credit for the registrations
of the Transferor Company in all the states, to which the Transferor Company are entitled to shall be
available to and vest in the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company shall file relevant intimations, for the record of the statutory authorities
signifying the transfer of the assets / properties including but not limited to permissions, approvals,
consents, sanctions, remissions, special reservations, incentives, concessions and other
authorizations of the Transferor Company.

It is hereby clarified that all assets and liabilities appearing in the books of account of each of the
Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date which are set forth in the closing balance sheet of the
Transferor Company as of the close of business hours on the Appointed Date shall be transferred to
Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company shall under the provisions of the Scheme be deemed to be authorized to
execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor Company, to implement and carry out all formalities
and compliances, if required, referred to above.

LEGAL, TAXATION AND OTHER PROCEEDINGS

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, all suits, actions and other proceedings including legal and
taxation proceedings, (including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or Tribunal or Court
authorities as the case be) by or against the Transferor Company pending on the Effective Date shall be
continued and/or enforced by or against the Transferee Company as effectually and in the same manner
and to the same extent as if the same had been instituted by or against the Transferee Company.

If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of whatever nature by or against the Transferor Company is
pending, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason
of or by anything contained in this Scheme, but the said suit, appeal or other legal proceedings may be
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee Company, as the case may be, in the
same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and
enforced by or against the Transferor Company as if this Scheme had not been made.

In case of any litigation, suits, recovery proceedings which are to be initiated or may be intimated against
the Transferor Company, Transferee Company shall be made party thereto and any payment and
expenses made thereto shall be the liability of the Transferee Company.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, all contracts,
including contracts for tenancies and licenses, deeds, bonds, agreements, incentives, benefits,
exemptions, entitlements, arrangements, escrow arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever
nature in relation to the Transferor Company to which the Transferor Company are a party or to the
benefit of which the Transferor Company may be eligible and which are subsisting or having effect
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immediately before the Effective Date, shall be in full force and effect on or against or in favour, as the
case may be, of the Transferee Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of
the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto.

7.2.  The Transferee Company may, at any time after coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance with
the provisions hereof, if so required, under any law or otherwise, execute deeds, confirmations or other
writings, confirmations or novations or tripartite arrangements with any party to any contract or
arrangements to which the Transferor Company are a party or any writings as may be necessary to be
executed in order to give formal effect to the above provisions.

7.3.  On the Scheme becoming effective, such contracts / escrow arrangements / deeds / any other
arrangements shall stand transferred to or deemed to be transferred to the Transferee Company
without any further act or instrument or deed and further it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent

of any third party or other person who is party to any such contract / escrow arrangements / deeds /
any other arrangements.

8. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS UNTIL AND AFTER EFFECTIVE DATE

8.1.  With effect from the Appointed Date and upto and including the Effective Date, the Transferor Company
shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on its business and activities and shall be deemed to have
held and stood possessed of and shall hold and stand possessed of its entire business for and on
account of and in trust for the Transferee Company;

i. Carry on the business, in either name as the circumstances may be, for those unfinished or
incomplete business, contracts, transactions which may be necessary to be transacted and
completed;

i. Al the profits or income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company or expenditure or losses
incurred by the Transferor Company shall for all purposes be treated and deemed to be the profits
or income or expenditure or losses (as the case may be) of the Transferee Company; and

ii. The Transferor Company shall carry on their business and activities with reasonable diligence and
business prudence and shall not venture into/expand any new businesses, alienate, charge,
mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with the assets or any part thereof except in the ordinary
course of business without the prior consent of the Transferee Company.

8.2.  The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the Central
Government and all other agencies, departments and authorities concerned as are necessary under
any law for such consents, approvals and sanctions which the Transferee Company may require to
carry on the business of the Transferor Company.

8.3.  For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the applicable provisions of the
Scheme, it is clarified as follow:

8.3.1. With effect from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of the bank accounts of the
Transferor Company have been replaced with that of the Transferee Company, the Transferee
Company shall be entitled to operate the bank accounts of the Transferor Company in the name of the
Transferor Company in so far as may be necessary. All cheques and negotiable instruments, payment
orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the Transferor Company after
the Effective Date shall be accepted by the bankers of the Transferee Company and credited to the
account of the Transferee Company, if presented by the Transferee Company. Similarly, till the time
any regulatory registrations of the Transferor Company are closed / suspended and regulatory filings
are required to be done on such registrations, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to do so to
comply with the relevant regulations.

8.3.2. With effect from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to use all packed! labeled

goods, packing materials, cartons, stickers, wrappers, labels, containers, point of sale material, sign

board, samples, closures, other publicity material, etc. lying unused with the Transferor Company or
their vendors, suppliers or third party or in their supply chain or distribution channel and which the

Transferor Company is entitied to use under any statutes/ regulations, till such time as all of such stock

exhaust without making any amendment on those goods or materials.

With a view to avoid any disruption of business, to ensure continuity of operations and exports and to

maintain the same quality of product, with effect from the Effective Date and till such time all critical

licenses, product registrations, marketing authorizations, permits, quotas, approvals, incentives,
subsidies, efc. of Transferor Company are transferred, recorded, effected and/or perfected, in the
record of the relevant governmental / regulatory authorities in all applicable jurisdictions in favour of
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Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall carry on and be deemed to have been carrying
on all the business and activities of Transferor Company in and under the relevant licenses, product
registrations, marketing authorizations, permits, quotas, approvals, incentives, subsidies, etc. of
Transferor Company. Further, during such period, Transferee Company can procure or use or
manufacture, all material and product including packed/ labeled goods, packing materials, cartons,
stickers, wrappers, labels, containers, point of sale material, sign board, samples, closures, other
publicity material, etc. in the name and form/format of the Transferor Company.

STAFF, WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all staff, workmen and employees, who are on the payrolls
of the Transferor Company, employees/personnel engaged on contract basis and contract labourers
and interns/trainees of the Transferor Company who are on its payrolls shall become employees of the
Transferee Company with effect from the Effective Date, on such terms and conditions as are no less
favorable than those on which they are currently engaged by the Transferor Company, without any
interruption of service as a result of this scheme. With regard to provident fund, gratuity, leave
encashment and any other special scheme or benefits created or existing for the benefit of such
employees of the Transferor Company, upon this Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee
Company shall stand substituted for the Transferor Company for all purposes whatsoever, including
with regard to the obligation to make contributions to relevant authorities, in accordance with the
provisions of applicable laws or otherwise. It is hereby clarified that upon this Scheme becoming
effective, the aforesaid benefits or schemes shall continue to be provided to the transferred employees
and the services of all the transferred employees of the Transferor Company for such purpose shall be
treated as having been continuous. Further, the transfer of employees would be considered as if such
transfer is effected under Section 25FF of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947.

The existing provident fund, employee state insurance contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation fund,
staff welfare scheme and any other special scheme (including without limitation any employees stock
option plan) or benefits created by the Transferor Company for its employees shall be continued on the
same terms and conditions or be transferred to the existing provident fund, employee state insurance
contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme, etc., being maintained by the
Transferee Company or as may be created by the Transferee Company for such purpose. Pending
such transfer, the contributions required to be made in respect of such employees shall continue to be
made by the Transferee Company to the existing funds maintained by the Transferor Company.

The Transferee Company undertakes that for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment
compensation, gratuity and other terminal benefits to the employees of the Transferor Company, the
past services of such employees with the Transferor Company shall also be taken into account and it
shall pay the same accordingly, as and when such amounts are due and payable. Upon this Scheme
becoming effective, the Transferor Company will transfer/handover to the Transferee Company, copies
of employment information, including but not limited to, personnel files (including hiring documents,
existing employment contracts, and documents reflecting changes in an employee’s position,
compensation, or benefits), payroll records, medical documents (including documents relating to past
or ongoing leaves of absence, on the job injuries or illness, or fitness for work examinations),
disciplinary records, supervisory files relating to its and all forms, notifications, orders and
contribution/identity cards issued by the concerned authorities relating to benefits transferred pursuant
to this sub-clause.

The Transferee Company shall continue to abide by any agreement(s)/ settiement(s) entered into by
the Transferor Company with any of its employees prior to Appointed Date and from Appointed Date
till the Effective Date.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer and vesting of the Undertaking under clause 5 above, and the continuation of proceedings
by or against the Transferee Company in clause 6 above shall not affect any transaction or proceedings
already concluded or liabilities incurred, or any liabilities discharged by the Transferor Company, on or
after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Transferee Company shall
accept and adopt all acts, deeds and things made, done and executed by the Transferor Company as
acts, deeds and things made, done and executed by or on behalf of the Transferee Company.
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5.

INTER-SE TRANSACTIONS

Without prejudice to the aforesaid Clauses, with effect from the Appointed date, all inter-party
transactions between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be considered as
intra-party transactions for all purposes from the Appointed Date and on the coming into effect of this
Scheme, the same shall stand cancelled without any further act, instrument or deed above clause has
no impact.

Further, it is clarified that the above clause has no impact whatsoever on any taxes in the form of
income-tax, goods and service tax, service tax, works contract tax, value added tax etc. paid on account
of such transactions. The taxes paid shall be deemed to have been paid by or on behalf of the

~ Transferee Company and on its own account and therefore, the Transferee Company will be eligible

to claim the credit / refund of the same and is also entitled to revise returns, as may be necessary, to
give effect to the same.

CONSIDERATION

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of the fransfer and vesting of Transferor
Company in the Transferee Company pursuant to Part Il of this Scheme and subject to the provisions
of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall, without any further application, act, deed, consent,
acts, instrument or deed, issue and allot, on a proportionate basis to each shareholder of the Transferor
Company, whose name is recorded in the register of members as member of the Transferor Company
as on the Record Date, as follows:

“151 (One Hundred and Fifty One) equity shares in Transferee Company of the face value of Rs.

10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, credited as fully paid-up for every 15,000 (Fifteen Thousand) Equity

shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten only) fully paid-up held in Transferor Company.”
The equity shares to be issued and allotted pursuant to amalgamation of the Transferor Company with
the Transferee Company under this Scheme shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum of
association and articles of association of Transferee Company and shall rank pari-passu in all respects
with any existing equity shares of the Transferee Company after the Effective Date including with
respect to dividend, bonus, right shares, voting rights and other corporate benefits attached to the
shares of the Transferee Company.
The issue and allotment of the shares is an integral part hereof and shall be deemed to have been
carried out under the orders passed by the Tribunal without requiring any further act on the part of the
Transferee Company or the Transferor Company or their shareholders and as if the procedure laid
down under the Act and such other Applicable Law as may be applicable, were duly complied with. It
is clarified that the approval of the members of the Transferee Company to this Scheme, shall be
deemed to be their consent/approval for the issue and allotment of shares of the Transferee Company.
Subject to applicable Laws, the equity shares that are to be issued in terms of this Scheme shall be
issued in dematerialised form. The register of members maintained by the Transferee Company and/
or, other relevant records, whether in physical or electronic form, maintained by the Transferee
Company, the relevant depository and registrar and transfer agent in terms of Applicable Laws shall
(as deemed necessary by the Board of the Transferee Company) be updated to reflect the issue of the
shares in terms of this Scheme. The shareholders of the Transferor Company who holds shares in
physical form, should provide the requisite details relating to his/ her/ its account with a depository
participant or other confirmations as may be required, to the Transferee Company, prior to the Record
Date to enable it to issue the shares.
However, if no such details have been provided to the Transferee Company by the shareholders
holding shares in physical share certificates on or before the Record Date, the Transferee Company
shall deal with the relevant equity shares in such manner as may be permissible under the Applicable
Law, including by way of issuing the corresponding shares in dematerialised form to a trustee
nominated by the Board of Transferee Company (“Trustee of Transferee Company") who shall hold
these equity shares in frust for the benefit of such shareholder. The equity shares of Transferee
Company held by the Trustee of Transferee Company for the benefit of the shareholder shall be
transferred to the respective shareholder once such shareholder provides details of his/herfits demat
account to the Trustee of Transferee Company, along with such other documents as may be required
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12.7.

12.8.

12.9.

12.10.

12.11.

12.12.

12.13.

by the Trustee of Transferee Company. The respective shareholders shall have all the rights of the
shareholders of the Transferee Company, including the right to receive dividend, voting rights and other
corporate benefits, pending the transfer of equity shares from the Trustee of Transferee Company. Al
costs and expenses incurred in this respect shall be bome by Transferee Company.

For the purpose of the allotment of the shares, pursuant to this Scheme, in case any shareholder’s
holding in the Transferor Company is such that the shareholder becomes entitled to a fraction of a
share of the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall not issue fractional shares to such
shareholder and shall consolidate all such fractions and round up the aggregate of such fractions to
the next whole number and issue consolidated shares to a trustee (nominated by the Transferee
Company in that behalf) in dematerialised form, who shall within a period of 90 days from the date of
allotment of shares sell the shares in the market and distribute the net sale proceeds (after deduction
of the expenses incurred and applicable income tax) to the respective shareholders in the same
proportion of their fractional entitlements. The Transferee Company would within a period of 7 days of
compensating the eligible shareholders, submit to the Stock Exchange a report from the Audit
Committee and the Independent Directors stating that the eligible shareholders have been
compensated. Any fractional entitlements from such net proceeds shall be rounded off to the next
Rupee.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of any
shareholder of the Transferor Company, the Board of the Transferee Company shall be empowered in
appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate such a transfer as if
such changes in the registered holder were operative as on the Record Date, in order to remove any
difficulties arising to the transferor or transferee of equity shares in the Transferor Company, after the
effectiveness of this Scheme.

The shares to be issued pursuant to this Scheme in respect of any equity shares of the Transferor
Company which are held in abeyance under the provisions of Section 126 of the Act or otherwise shall
pending allotment or settlement of dispute by order of court or otherwise, be held in abeyance.

The shares to be issued by the Transferee Company in lieu of the shares of the Transferor Company
held in the respective unclaimed suspense account of the Transferor Company shall be issued to a
new unclaimed suspense account created for shareholders of the Transferor Company.

In the event, any or both the Parties restructure their share capital by way of share split / consolidation
/ issue of bonus shares during the pendency of the Scheme, the share exchange ratio stated in Clause
12 above shall be adjusted accordingly, to consider the effect of any such corporate actions undertaken
by such Party.

If necessary, the Transferee Company shall before allotment of the equity shares in term of the
Scheme, increase, reclassify, and/or restructure its authorized share capital in such manner and by
such amount as may be necessary to satisfy its obligation under the provisions of the Scheme in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.

The Transferee Company shall apply for listing of the Transferee Company new equity shares on the
Stock Exchanges in terms of and in compliance of SEBI Circular and other relevant provisions as may
be applicable. The Transferee Company new equity shares allotted by the Transferee Company,
pursuant to the Scheme, shall remain frozen in the depository system till listing/ trading permission is
given by the designated Stock Exchange.

The Transferee Company shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and/ or
undertakings as may be necessary in accordance with Applicable Law for complying with the formalities
of the Stock Exchanges and SEBI Circular.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN BOOKS OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Transferee
Company shall account for the transfer and vesting of the assets and liabilities of the Transferor
Company in its books of accounts as per “Acquisition Method" prescribed under the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 103 - "Business Combination” notified under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rules issued thereunder and other applicable Accounting Standards provided under the Act,
specifically:

All the assets (including intangible assets whether or not recorded in the books of Transferor Company)
and all liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the Transferor Company, shall stand transferred to,
and the same shall be recorded by, the Transferee Company at their fair value, as per Ind AS 103 and
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/ or other applicable Ind AS;

The value of the investments in the shares of the Transferor Company held by the Transferee Company
inter-se shall stand cancelled, without further act or deed;

The loans and advances inter-se between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company
appearing in the books of accounts of either the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, if
any, shall stand cancelled

The Transferee Company shall credit to its share capital account, the aggregate face value of the equity
shares issued by it to the shareholders of the Transferor Company in terms of Clause 12 of this
Scheme. The difference between the fair value and the face value of such equity shares issued will be
credited to the securities premium account;

The difference between the fair value of the equity shares issued and the fair value of the net assets
acquired and subject to adjustment as per clause 13.2 and 13.3 above will be treated as goodwill or
capital reserve as per Ind AS 103;

The Transferee Company shall ensure compliance with the requirements of the "Acquisition Method”
under Ind AS 103 for all other aspects of accounting for the amalgamation

In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, the impact, if any, will be quantified and adjusted in the “Other Equity” of the Transferee
Company to ensure that financial statements reflect the financial position on the basis of consistent
accounting policies.

COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to “Amalgamation” as specified
under Section 2(1B) of the IT Act and other relevant provisions of the T Act. If any terms or provisions
of the Scheme are found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of the said section at a
later date including resulting from a retrospective amendment of law or for any other reason
whatsoever, till the time the Scheme becomes effective, the provisions of the said section of the IT Act,
shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined necessary to comply with
Section 2(1B) of the IT Act and other relevant provisions of the IT Act.

All tax assessment proceedings / appeals (including application and proceedings in relation to advance
ruling) of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor Company pending and / or arising at the
Appointed Date and relating to the Transferor Company shall be continued and / or enforced until the
Effective Date as desired by the Transferee Company. As and from the Effective Date, the tax
proceedings shall be continued and enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the same
manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued and enforced by or against
the Transferor Company.

Further, the aforementioned proceedings shall not abate or be discontinued nor be in any way
prejudicially affected by reason of amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company or anything contained in the Scheme.

Any tax liabilities including but not limited to liabilities under the IT Act, foreign tax credit, Tax Treaties,
Customs Act 1962, Service Tax laws, VAT laws, Goods and Service Tax laws or other applicable laws
/ regulations dealing with taxes / duties / levies allocable or related to the business of the Transferor
Company to the extent not provided for or covered by tax provision in the accounts made as on the
date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred to the Transferee Company

Any refund including but not limited to refund under the IT Act, foreign taxes, Customs Act 1962, Service
Tax laws, VAT laws, Goods and Service Tax laws or other applicable laws / regulations dealing with
taxes / duties / levies allocable or related to the business of the Transferor Company due fo the
Transferor Company consequent to the assessment made on the Transferor Company and for which
no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall also
belong to and be received by the Transferee Company.

On or after the Effective Date, the Transferee Company is expressly permitted to revise, its financial
statements and returns along with prescribed forms, filings and annexures under the IT Act (including
for the purpose of re-computing minimum alternative tax, and claiming other tax benefits), service tax
law, VAT law, Goods and Service tax law and other tax laws, and to claim refunds and / or credits for
taxes paid (including tax on book profits, MAT credit and foreign tax credit), and to claim tax benefits
etc. and for matters incidental thereto, if required to give effect to the provisions of the Scheme

14

44



[ v Aadiihins

14.7.

14.8.

14.9.

15.

16.

16.1.

BB

it

g
B,

pany

L

notwithstanding that the period of filing / revising such returns / forms may have lapsed and period to
claim refund / credit also elapsed upon this Scheme becoming effective. Nothing contained in this
Scheme, shall restrict the Transferee Company to record assets and liabilities for income tax purpose
in accordance with the principles enunciated under the IT Act.

All taxes including income-tax, minimum alternate tax, foreign taxes, custom duty, service tax, goods
and service tax, etc. paid or payable by the Transferor Company in respect of their operations and / or
the profits of the business before the Appointed Date, shall be on account of the Transferor Company
and, in so far as it relates to the tax payment (including, without limitation, income-tax, minimum
alternate tax, custom duty, service tax, goods and service tax, etc.) whether by way of deduction of tax
at source, advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by the Transferor Company in respect of their profits
or activities or operation of the business after the Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed to be the
corresponding item paid by the Transferee Company and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with
accordingly. Further, any tax deducted at source by the Transferor Company / Transferee Company
on payables to the Transferee Company / Transferor Company on account of inter-se transactions
which has been deemed not to be accrued, shall be deemed to be advance taxes paid by the
Transferee Company and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly. Further, any goods and
service tax paid by the Transferor Company / Transferee Company to the Transferee Company /
Transferor Company on account of inter-se transactions which has been deemed not to be accrued,
shall be deemed to have been paid by or on behalf of the Transferee Company and shall, in all
proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

After the Appointed Date, obligation for deduction of tax at source on any payment made by or to be
made by the Transferor Company including but not limited to obligation under the IT Act, customs law,
goods and service tax law or other applicable laws / regulations dealing with taxes / duties / levies shall
be made or deemed to have been made and duly complied with by the Transferee Company.

Without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits, incentives, losses, credit for tax including
on book profits, accumulated losses, credits (including, without limitation income tax, excise duty,
service tax, applicable state value added tax, cenvat credit, goods and service tax credit, etc.) to which
the Transferor Company is entitled to in terms of applicable laws, shall be available to and vest in the
Transferee Company on and after the Appointed Date, even if such credits have not been availed off
in the books as on the date of transfer. Also, the Transferee Company will be entitled to avail Cenvat
Credit / Goods and Service Tax Credit after the Appointed Date in respect of all duties / taxes where
the documents are in the name of the Transferor Company. Further, licenses issued to the Transferor
Company by any regulatory authorities, if any, and all benefits and tax credits, if any, associated with
it shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company upon the Scheme becoming effective.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITHOUT WINDING UP

Subject to an order being made by the under Section 230 to 232 of the Act, the Transferor Company
shalf be dissolved without the process of winding up on the Scheme becoming effective in accordance
with the provision of the Act and the Rules made hereunder.

COMBINATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Authorised Share Capital of the Transferor Company shall
stand transferred, re-organised, credited and merged with that of the Transferee Company without
payment of additional fees and stamp duty as the said fees and stamp duty have already been paid by
the Transferor Company and the Authorised Share Capital of the Transferee Company will be
increased to that effect by just filing requisite forms and no separate procedure shall be followed under
the Act. Consequently, the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company shall without any
act, instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections 13, 61 and
other applicable provisions of the Act as follows:

The Share Capital of the Company is Rs.103,50,00,000/- (Rupees One hundred three crore and
fifty lakhs only) divided into 9,65,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and Rs. 7,00,000 preference
shares of Rs. 100 each. The Company has the power from time to time to increase or reduce its
capital and to issue any shares in the original or new capital as equity or preference shares and to
attach to any class or classes of such shares, any preference, rights, privileges or priorities in
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18.

19.

payment of dividends or distribution of assets or otherwise over any other shares or to subject the
same to any restrictions, limitations, or conditions and to vary the regulations of the Company, as
far as necessary to give effect to the same and upon the sub-division of any share to apportion the
right to participate in profits in any manner.

The approval of this Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 shail be deemed
to have the approval under Section 13, 61 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
and any other approvals required in this regard. It is clarified that the approval of the members of the
Transferee Company to the Scheme shall be deemed to be their approval also to the alteration to the
Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company as may be required under the Act.

PART - il

GENERAL CLAUSES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DIVIDENDS

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be entitled to declare and pay dividends
to their respective shareholders in respect of the accounting period commencing from and after
Appointed Date and up to the Effective Date. The dividend, if any, shall be declared by the Transferor
Company only with the prior written consent of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company.

It is clarified that the provisions in respect of declaration of dividends are enabling provisions only and
shall not be deemed to confer any right on any shareholders of the Transferor Company and/or the
Transferee Company to demand or claim any dividends which, subject to the provisions of the Act,
shall be entirely at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company, subject to such
approval of the shareholders, as may be required.

VALIDITY OF RESOLUTIONS

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and/or
shareholders of the Transferor Company as are considered necessary by the Board of Directors of the
Transferee Company and which are valid and subsisting shall continue to be valid and subsisting and
be considered as the resolutions of the Transferee Company and if any such resolutions have monetary
limits approved under the provisions of the Act, or any other applicable statutory provisions , then the
said limits as are considered necessary by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall be
added to the limits if any, under like resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and/or the
shareholders of the Transferee Company and shall constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the
Transferee Company.

APPLICATIONS TO THE NCLT

All the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, shall with all reasonable dispatch, make
applications to the NCLT, Chennai Bench since the registered office of Transferor Company and
Transferee Company is situated in Chennai. The jurisdiction of the Transferor Company and
Transferee Company is NCLT, Chennai Bench, for sanctioning this Scheme under Sections 230-232
of the Act for orders thereof for carrying this Scheme into effect.

MODIFICATIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

Subject to approval of NLCT, the Parties through their Board of Directors including any Committee of
Directors or other persons, duly authorised by the Board of Directors in this regard, may make, or
assent to, any alteration or modification to this Scheme or to any conditions or limitations or orders,
which the NCLT or any other Competent Authority may deem fit to direct, approve or impose and may
give such directions as they may consider necessary, to settle any doubt, question or difficulty, arising
under the Scheme or in regard to its implementation or in any manner connected therewith and to do
and to execute all such acts, deeds, matters and things necessary for putting this Scheme into effect,
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22.
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or to review the portion relating to the satisfaction of the conditions to this Scheme and if necessary, to
waive any of those (to the extent permitted under law) for bringing this Scheme into effect. The
shareholders approving the scheme shall be deemed to have given their consent to the proposed
modification to the scheme without any further recourse to them.

If any part or provision of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, the same
shall not, subject to the decision of the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company, affect the validity of implementation of the other parts and/or provisions of the Scheme. If
any part or provision of this Scheme hereof is invalid, ruled illegal by any Court of competent jurisdiction,
or unenforceable under present or future laws, then it is the intention of the Transferor Company and
Transferee Company that such part or provision, as the case may be, shall be severable from the
remainder of the Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be affected thereby, unless the deletion of such
part or provision, as the case may be, shall cause this Scheme to become materially adverse to the
Transferor Company andfor Transferee Company, in which case the Transferor Company and/or
Transferee Company shall attempt to bring about a modification in the Scheme, as will best preserve
for the Transferor Company and/or Transferee Company, the benefits and obligations of the Scheme,
including but not limited to such part or provision.

SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVALS /SANCTIONS

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

i.  the approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of the respective members and such
class of persons of Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, as required in terms
of the applicable provisions of the relevant Act as well as any requirements that may be
stipulated by the Appropriate Authority in this respect;

i.  the approval of the shareholders of transferor and transferee company through e-voting and
/ or other mode as may be required under any applicable law and the SEBI circular. The
scheme is conditional upon scheme being approved by the public shareholders through e-
voting in terms of Para 10(a) of Part | of SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665dated November 23, 2021 and the Scheme
shall be acted upon only if vote cast by the public shareholders in favour of the proposal are
more than the number of votes cast by the public shareholders against it.

i.  sanction of the Appropriate Authority, being obtained under Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Act, if so required on behalf of
the Transferor Company and the Transferee company;

iv.  the necessary certified copies of the order under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, and other
applicable provisions of the Act are duly filed with the Registrar of Companies;

v.  approval of Appropriate Authorities (including Securities and Exchange Board of India) and
receipt of ‘No-Objection letter’ from Stock Exchange where such approval or consent is
necessary; and

vi.  all other sanctions and approvals as may be required by law in respect of this Scheme being
obtained.

COSTS

All costs, charges, levies and expenses (including, but not limited fo, any taxes and duties, stamp duty,
registration charges, etc.) of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company, respectively in relation
to or in connection with or incidental to this Scheme or the implementation thereof shall be borne and
paid for by the Transferee Company, unless otherwise determined by the Boards of Directors of the
Transferor Company and Transferee Company.

SEVERABILITY

If any part of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, the same shall not,
subject to the decision of the Transferor Company and/or Transferee Company, affect the validity or
implementation of the other parts and/or provisions of this Scheme.

For WHEELS INDIA LIMITED
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In the event of any inconsistency between any of the terms and conditions of any earlier arrangement
amongst the Transferor Company and Transferee Company and their respective shareholders, and
the terms and conditions of this Scheme, the latter shall prevail.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in Clause 20 not being obtained and/
or the Scheme not being sanctioned by the NCLT or such other appropriate authority, if any, this
Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect, save and except in respect of any act or
deed done prior thereto as is contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and/ or liabilities which might
have arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out
as is specifically provided in the Scheme or as may otherwise arise in law and agreed between the
respective parties to this Scheme. Upon the termination of this Scheme as set out in above clause, no
rights and liabilities shall accrue to or be incurred by respective Parties or their shareholders or creditors
or employees or any other person. In such case, each party shall bear and pay its respective costs,
charges and expenses for and or in connection with the Scheme unless otherwise mutually agreed.
The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be entitled to
revoke, cancel and declare the Scheme of no effect if they are of the view that the coming into effect
of the Scheme with effect from the Appointed Date could have adverse implications on the combined
entity post the Amalgamation.

BINDING EFFECT

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the same shall be binding on the Transferor Company,
Transferee Company, Governmental Authority and all concerned parties without any further act, deed,
matter or thing.

PROPERTY IN TRUST

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, on or after Effective Date, until any property, asset,
license, approval, permission, contract, agreement and rights and benefits arising therefrom pertaining to
the Undertaking of the Transferor Company are transferred, vested, recorded, effected and/ or perfected,
in the records of any Appropriate Authority, regulatory bodies or otherwise, in favour of the Transferee
Company, such company is deemed to be authorized to enjoy the property, asset or the rights and
benefits arising from the license, approval, permission, contract or agreement as if it were the owner of
the property or asset or as if it were the original party to the license, approval, permission, contract or
agreement. It is clarified that till entry is made in the records of the Appropriate Authorities and till such
time as may be mutually agreed by the relevant Parties, the Transferor Company will continue to hold the
property and/or the asset, license, permission, approval, contract or agreement and rights and benefits
arising therefrom, as the case may be, in trust for and on behalf of the Transferee Company.

REMOVAL OF DIFFICULTIES

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company through mutual consent and acting through their
respective Boards, jointly and as mutually agreed in writing may give such directions (acting jointly) and
agree to take steps, as may be necessary, desirable or proper, to resolve all doubts, difficulties or
questions arising under this Scheme, whether by reason of any orders of NCLT or of any directive or
orders of any Appropriate Authority, under or by virtue of this Scheme in relation to the arrangement
contemplated in this Scheme and/ or matters concerning or connected therewith or in regard to and of
the meaning or interpretation of this Scheme or implementation thereof or in any manner whatsoever
connected therewith, or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of various conditions of this
Scheme and if necessary, to waive any of those to the extent permissible under Applicable Law; and do
all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or expedient for carrying the Scheme into
effect.

Jeo o), Raderdonns 18

aoad 1 AKBEMMIE

48



Niranjan Kumar®

Registered Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets

Annexure- B

Date: 07 December 2021

Ta, To,

The Board of Directors The Board of Directars

Wheels India Limited Sundaram Hydraulics Limited

21, Pattulos Road, Chennai, Tamil Nadu 21, Pattulos Road, Chennai, Tamil Nadu

Subject: Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of Sundaram
Hydraulics Limited (*SHL") with Wheels India Limited (‘WIL’),

Dear Sirf Madam,

We refer to the engagement letter dated 02 November 2021 and discussion undertaken with the
Management of Wheels India Limited ("WIL' or Transferee Company’) and Sundaram Hydraulics
Limited ['SHL' or ‘Transferor Company’) (hereinafter both of them together referred to as ‘the
Management’), wherein the Management has requested Niranjan Kumar, Registered Valuer —
Securities or Financial Assets ("MK, ‘we’ or 'us’) to undertake a valuation exercise and recommend a
share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of SHL (Transferor Cormpany) with WIL
(Transferee Company) {"Proposed amalgamation’).

Hereinafter the Management including the Board of Directars of WIL and SHL shall together be
referred to as 'the Management’; the Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall together be
referred to as Transacting Companies’,

Please find enclosed the report [(comprising 15 pages including annexures) detailing our
recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation, the methodologies
employed and the assumptions used in our analysis.

This report sets out our scope of work, background, source of information, procedures performed by
us, and our recommendation of the share exchange ratio,

BACKGROUND, SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

Wheels India Limited ("WIL' or ‘Transferee Company’) was incorporated on 13 June 1960 and is
engaged in the business of manufacturing of automotive and industrial components. Its product
portfolio comprises of steel wheels and forged aluminium wheels; air suspension systems for buses,
trucks and trailers; control and speciality products; and machined components for various other
applications. WIL holds 16.3% equity stake in Sundaram Hydraulics Limited, 74.0% stake in WIL Car
Wheels Limited and 9.5% stake in Axles India Limited (WIL Car Wheels Limited and Axles India Limited
are hereinafter together referred to as ‘the investee companies of WIL'). The equity shares of WIL are
listed on BSE and MSE.

Sundaram Hydraulics Limited {"SHL" or ‘Transferor Company') was incorporated on 07 December
2007 and is engaged in the business of design, manufacture, and distribution of hydraulic cylinders for
the domestic and global MCE industry. SHL is also engaged in manufacturing of axle shafts for dump
trucks and cylinders for windmill and subcontracting excavator cylinders for overseas companies, The
equity shares of SHL are unlisted.

M5-1003, Hills and Dales Ph 3, NIEM Annexe, Pune - 411060, Mab.; +91 3921515656 | niranjan@nskumar.com | www.nskumar.com


user
Text Box
Annexure - B


50

We understand that the Management of the Transacting Companies are contemplating a scheme of
amalgamation, wherein they intend to amalgamate SHL with WIL; in accordance with the provisions
of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory madifications, re-enactment or
amendments thereof for the time being in force ["the Act”) read with the Companies [Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 [“the Rules”), as amended from time to time and all
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and any other applicable law for the time being in force
including the applicable provisions of the SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and the circulars issued therein, in each case, as amended from time to time, and
in a manner pravided in the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation (‘the Scheme'). Further, as consideration
for the proposed amalgamation under Part |l of the Scheme, equity shares of the Transferee Company
would be issued to the equity sharehaolders of Transferor Company respectively;

The equity shares to be issued for the aforesaid proposed amalgamation will be based an the share
exchange ratio as determined by the Board of Directors on the basis of the share exchange ratio report
prepared by us.

In connection with the above mentioned proposed amalgamation, the Management has appointed
Miranjan Kumar, Registered Valuer — Securities or Financials Assets ('NK') to submit a report
recommending a share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation,

We would like to emphasize that certain terms of the proposed amalgamation are stated in our report,
however the detailed terms of the proposed amalgamation shall be more fully described and
explained in the Scheme document to be submitted with relevant authorities in relation to the
proposed amalgamation. Accordingly, the description of the terms and certain other information
contained herein is qualified in its entirety by reference to the underlying Scheme.

We understand that the appointed date for the proposed amalgamation shall be 01 October 2021 as
defined in the S5cheme or such other date as the competent authority may direct or approve. We have
determined the share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation as at the report date ('Valuation
Date’).

The scope of our services is to conduct a relative {and not absolute) valuation exercise as at the
Valuation Date to determine the equity value of the Transacting Companies and then arrive at the
share exchange ratio using internationally accepted valuation methodologies as may be applicable to
the Transacting Companies including requirement prescribed by the Securities Exchange Board of
India ['SEBI') Regulations as may be applicable to listed companies and report on the same in
accordance with generally accepted professional standards including ICAI Valuation Standards, 2018
notified by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [ICAl).

The Management have informed us that:

a) There would not be any capital variation in the Transacting Companies till the proposed
amalgamation becomes effective without approval of the shareholders and other relevant
authorities;

b) Till the proposed amalgamation becomes effective, neither of the Transacting Cormpanies would
declare any dividend which are materially different from those declared in the past few years.

c) There are no unusual/ abnormal events in the Transacting Companies other than those
represented to us by the Management till the report date materially impacting their operating /
financial performance,

Niranjan Kumar Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed
Sl e R R amalgamation af SHL with WIL Page 2 of 15
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SOURCES OF INFORMATIOM

In connection with the recommendation of share exchange ratio, we have used the following
information obtained from the Management and/ or gathered from public domain:
A, Company specific information:

Information provided by the Management which includes:

+ Audited standalone/ consolidated financial statements of WIL for the financial year ended 31
March 2021;

s Limited reviewed standalonef consolidated financial statements of WIL for the six months’ period
ended 30 September 2021;

e Audited financial statements of SHL for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and for the six
months’ period ended 30 September 2021;

e Audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and limited reviewed
financial staternents for the six months’ period ended 30 September 2021 of investee companies
of WIL;

e Cuarterly reported financial performance of Transacting Companies including investee companies
of WIL far the trailing twelve month periad ended 30 September 2021;

* Financial projections of SHL from 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2026 {‘Management Projections’)
which represents Management's best estimate of the future financial performance of SHL;

= Shareholding pattern of WIL as at 30 Septemnber 2021; and shareholding pattern of SHL as at the
report date;

» Draft scheme of amalgamation between the Transacting Companies pursuant ta which praposed
amalgamation is to be undertaken;

¢ Discussions and correspondence with the Management in connection with business operations of
Transacting Companies and investee companies, past trends, proposed future business plans and
prospects, realizability of assets, etc.

B. Industry and economy information:

e |nformation available in public domain and databases such as Capital 10, NSE, BSE including
market prices, trading volumes etc.

Such other information and documents as provided by the Management for the purposes of this
enpagement,

Besides the above listing, there may be other information provided by the Management which may
not have been perused by us in detail, if not considered relevant for our defined scope.

We have also considered/ obtained such other analysis, review, explanations and information
considered reasonably necessary for our exercise, from the Management.

The Management of the Transacting Companies have been provided with the opportunity to review
the draft report (excluding the recommended share exchange ratio) as part of our standard practice
to make sure that factual inaccuracy/ omissions are avoided in our report.

N ira njan Ku mar Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed
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PROCEDURES ADOPTED

Procedures used in our analysis included such substantive steps as we considered necessary under the
circumstances, including, but not necessarily limited to the following:

s Discussion with the Management to:

- Understand the business and fundamental factors that affect the business of the Transacting
Companies including their earning generating capability.

- Enguire about the historical financial performance, current state of affairs, business plans and
the future performance estimates.

*  Analysis of information shared by the Management,
*  Reviewed the draft scheme of amalgamation between the Transacting Companies.

e Reviewed the audited financial statements of the Transacting Companies including investee
companies of WIL for the financial year ended 31 March 2021;

s Reviewed the audited financial statements of SHL for the six months’ period ended 30 September
2021;

= Reviewed the limited reviewed financial statements of WIL including investee companies of WIL
for the six months' period ended 30 September 2021,

* Reviewed the cashflow projections provided by the Management for SHL including understanding
basis of preparation and the underlying assumptions;

* Reviewed quarterly repoarted financial performance of Transacting Companies and investee
companies of WIL for the trailing twelve manth {"TTM’) period ended 30 September 2021;

¢ ldentification of suitable comparable companies for the Transacting Companies in discussion with
the Management;

s Reviewed the shareholding pattern of WIL as at 30 September 2021 and shareholding pattern of
SHL as at the report date;

e Selection of appropriate internationally accepted valuation methadology/ (ies) after deliberations
and consideration to the sector in which the Transacting Companies and investee companies of
WIL operate, analysis of the business operations and financial performance, etc.;

# Arrived at valuations of the Transacting Companies using the method/(s) considered appropriate;

# Arrived at the value of the shares after giving due weightage to the value arrived under the
different methods.

e Arrived at the fair share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of SHL with WIL.

Ni rﬂﬂj an Kumar Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed
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SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND DISCLAIMERS

Provision of valuation opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas of our
regular practice. The services do not represent accounting, assurance, accounting/ tax due diligence,
consulting or tax related services that may otherwise be provided by us.

This report, its contents and the results herein are specific and subject to:

&« the purpose of the valuation agreed as per the terms of the engagement;

e the date of the repart;

+ shareholding pattern of the Transacting Companies;

& limited reviewed financial statements of WIL and audited financial statements of SHL for the six
months’ period ended 30 September 2021;

s limited reviewed financial statements for the six months’ period ended 30 September 2021 of
investee companies of WIL;

& quarterly reported financial perfarmance of Transacting Companies and investee companies of
WIL for trailing twelve months ended 30 September 2021,

s comparability of the companies considered for comparable companies multiple (CCM) Method
including the financial parameters considered;

& accuracy of the information available in public domain including proprietary database with
respect to comparable companies identified and their financial information considered;

s realisation of cashflow projections as provided by the Management relating to SHL;

+ market price reflecting the fair value of the underlying equity shares of WIL; and

& data detailed in the section - Sources of Information

We have been informed that the business activities of the Transacting Companies have been carried
out in the normal and ordinary course between the latest available financials and the report date and
that no material changes have occurred in their respective operations and financial position between
the latest available financial statements and the report date.

Avalue analysis of this nature is necessarily based on the prevailing stock market, financial, economic
and other conditions in general and industry trends in particular. It is based on information made
available to us as of the date of this report, events occurring after that date hereof may affect this
report and the assumptions used in preparing it, and we do not assume any obligation to update,
revise or reaffirm this report.

The ultimate analysis will have to be tempered by the exercise of judicious discretion by the valuer
and judgment taking into account the relevant factors. There will always be several factors e.g.
Management capability, present and prospective yield on comparable securities, market sentiment
etc., which are not evident on the face of the financial statement, but which will strongly influence the
warth of a share.

The recommendation{s) rendered in this report only represent our recommendation(s) based upon
information furnished by the Transacting Companies till the date of this report and other sources, and
the said recommendation(s) shall be considered to be in the nature of non-binding advice (our
recommendation should not be used for advising anybody to take buy or sell decision, for which
specific opinion needs to be taken from expert advisors).

The determination of fair value for arriving at share exchange ratio is not a precise science and the
conclusions arrived at in many cases, will, of necessity, be subjective and dependent on the exercise
of individual judgment. There is, therefore, no indisputable single fair value. While we have provided
our recommendation of the share exchange ratio based on the information available to us and within

N irﬂ njﬂn KU mar Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed
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the scope and constraints of our engagement, others may have a different opinion. The final
responsibility for the determination of the share exchange ratio at which the proposed armalgamation
shall take place will be with the Board of Directors of the Transacting Companies, who should take
into account other factors such as their own assessment of the proposed amalgamation and input of
other advisors.

In the course of our analysis, we were provided with bath written and verbal information, including
market, technical, financial and operating data including information as detailed in the section -
Sources of Information.

In accordance with the terms of our engagement, we have assumed and relied upon, without
independent verification of

o the accuracy of information that was publicly available; and
# the accuracy of information made available to us by the Managerment;

both of which formed a substantial basis for the report.

We have not carried out a due diligence or audit or review of the Transacting Companies for the
purpase of this engagement, nor have we independently investigated or otherwise verified the data
provided.

We are not legal or regulatory advisors with respect to legal and regulatory matters for the proposed
amalgamation. We do not express any form of assurance that the financial information or other
information as prepared and provided by the Management of the Transacting Companies is accurate,
Also, with respect to explanations and information sought from the advisors, we have been given to
understand by the Transacting Companies that they have not omitted any relevant and material
factors and that they have checked the relevance or materiality of any specific information to the
present exercise with us in case of any doubt. Accordingly, we do not express any opinion or offer any
form of assurance regarding its accuracy and completeness.

Our conclusions are based on these assumptions and information given by/ on behalf of the
Management. The Management has indicated to us that they have understood any omissions,
inaccuracies or misstatements may materially affect our recommendation. Accordingly, we assume
no responsibility for any errors in the information furnished by the Transacting Companies and their
impact on the report. Also, we assume no responsibility for technical information (if any) furnished by
the Transacting Companies, However, nothing has come to our attention to indicate that the
information provided to us was materially misstated/ incorrect or would not afford reasonable
grounds upon which to base the report, We do not imply and it should not be construed that we have
verified any of the infarmation provided to us, or that our inquiries could have verified any matter,
which a more extensive examination might disclose.

The report assumes that the Transacting Companies comply fully with relevant laws and regulations
applicable in all its areas of operations and that the Transacting Companies will be managed in a
campetent and responsible manner. Further, except as specifically stated to the contrary, this report
has given no consideration on to matters of a legal nature, including issues of legal title and compliance
with local laws and litigation and other contingent liabilities that are not represented to us by the
Management,

This report does not look into the business/ commereial reasons behind the proposed amalgamation
nar the likely benefits arising out of the same. Similarly, the report does naot address the relative merits
of the proposed amalgamation as compared with any other alternative business transaction, or other
alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives could be achieved or are available. This report is
restricted to recommendation of share exchange ratio anly.

REGISTE
WaLl
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We must emphasize that the latest financials of the Transacting Companies and investee companies
of WIL as at the report date were not provided by the Management for the purpose of our value
analysis, however, the Management has represented that they do not expect significant change in net
asset position between 30 September 2021 and report date. We have therefore considered the
audited/ limited reviewed financial statements for the six months' period ended 30 September 2021
for the purpose of our analysis.

Certain terms of the proposed amalgamation are stated in our report, however the detailed terms of
the proposed amalgamation shall be more fully described and explained in the Scheme document to
be submitted with relevant authorities in relation to the proposed amalgamation. Accordingly, the
description of the terms and certain other infarmation contained herein is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the Scheme document,

The fee for the Engagement is not contingent upon the results reported,

We owe responsibility only to the Board of Directors of the Transacting Companies who have
appointed us, and nobody else. We do not accept any liability to any third party in relation to the issue
of this report. It is understood that this analysis does not represent a fairness opinion. In no
circumstance shall our liability exceed the amount as agreed in our Engagement Letter,

This valuation report is subject to the laws of India.

Meither the report nor its cantents may be referred to or quoted in any registration statement,
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreement or document
given to third parties, other than in connection with the purpose of determining the share exchange
ratio for the proposed amalgamation and relevant filing with regulatory authorities in this regard,
without our prior written consent,

In addition, this report does not in any manner address the prices at which equity shares of WIL shall
trade following announcements of the proposed amalgamation and we express no opinion or
recommendation as to how shareholders of the Transacting Companies should wvote at any
shareholders’ meetings. Our report and the opinion/ valuation analysis contained herein is not to be
caonstrued as advice relating to investing in, purchasing, selling or otherwise dealing in securities.

<<<a<This space has been left blank intentionally>>»>>
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VALUATION APPROACHES

Basis and Premise of Valuation

Valuation of the Transacting Companies as on the Valuation Date is carried out in accordance with
ICAl Valuation Standards (“ICAI W57}, considering 'Fair Value’ base and ‘going concern value' premise.
Any change in the valuation base, or the valuation premise could have a significant impact on the
valuation outcome of the Company.

Basis of Valuation

It means the indication of the type of value being used in an engagement. Fair Value as per ICAI VS is
defined as under:

“Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahility in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the valuation date.”

Premise of Value

Premise of Value refers to the conditions and circumstances how an asset is deployed. Valuation of
the Specified Business is carried out on a Going Concern Value premise which is defined under ICAI VS
as under:

“Going concern value is the value of a business enterprise that is expected to continue to operate in
the future. The intangible elements of going concern value result from factors such as having a trained
work force, an operational plant, the necessary licenses, systems, and procedures in place, etc.”

It is pertinent to note that the valuation of any business/company or its assets is inherently imprecisa
and is subject to various uncertainties and contingencies, all of which are difficult to predict and are
beyvond our control, In performing our analysis, we made numerous assumptions considering inter-
alia dependency and financial assistance from existing shareholders and general business and
economic conditions, many of which are beyond the control of the company. In addition, this valuation
will fluctuate with changes in prevailing market conditions, and prospects, financial and otherwise, of
the business, and other factors which generally influence the valuation of the company, its business
and assets,

The application of any particular method of valuation depends on the purpose for which the valuation
is done. Although, different values may exist for different purpose, it cannot be too strongly
emphasized that a valuer can only arrive at one value for one purpose. Our choice of methodology of
valuation has been arrived at using usual and conventional methodologies adopted for transactions
of similar nature and our reasonable judgment, in an independent and bona fide manner based on
our previous experience of assignments of a similar nature.

The following are commaonly used and accepted methods for determining the value of the equity
shares of a company:

1. Market Approach:

al Market Price method

b) Comparable Companies Market Multiple method
2. Income Approach - Discounted Cash Flow method
3. Asset Approach — Met Asset Value method

For the proposed amalgamation, we have considered the following commonly used and accepted
methods for determining the value of the equity shares of the Transacting Companies for the purpose
of recommending the share exchange ratio, to the extent relevant and applicable:

Niranjan Kumar Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed
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1. Market Approach
a)  Market Price Method

The market price of an equity share as quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as the value
of the equity shares of that company where such quotations are arising from the shares being regularly
and freely traded in, subject to the element of speculative support that may be inbuilt in the value of
the shares. But there could be situations where the value of the shares as quoted on the stock market
would not be regarded as a proper index of the fair value of the share especially where the market
values are fluctuating in a volatile capital market.

In the present case, equity shares of WIL are listed on NSE, they are widely held, regularly and
frequently traded with reasonable volumes on both the exchanges. We have therefore used the market
price approach to value the equity shares of WL

Equity shares of SHL are not listed on any stock exchange. We have therefore not considered the
market price method to determine the fair value of equity shares of SHL,

Since in the subject case equity shares of a listed company i.e. WIL would be issued to the shareholders
af unlisted company i.e. SHL, the minimum price at which shares are to be (ssued is prescribed under
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2018
issued vide notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/31 dated 11 September 2018 and as amended
from time to time., The regulation reads as under:

The price of equity shares to be issued shall be determined by Regulation 164, The relevant extract of
the regulations is:

Regulation 164 (Pricing of frequently traoded shares)

{1} If the equity shares of the issuer have been listed on a recognised stock exchange for o period of
twenty six weeks or more as on the relevant date, the price of the equity shares to be allotted
pursuant to the preferential issue shall be not less than higher of the following:

{a) the average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price of the related
equity shares gquated on the recognised stock exchange during the twenty-six weeks
preceding the relevant date; or

(b} the average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average prices of the related
equity shares quoted on a recognised stock exchange during the two weeks preceding the
relevant date.

The relevant date for the purpose of computing the price af the equity shares of WIL has been
considered to be the date of the board meeting of WIL approving the Scheme in accordance with the
SEBI Circulars relating to schemes of arrangement. We have therefore considered the prices upto a day
prior to the relevant dote i.e. price upto 06 Decemnber 2021 have been considered, to ensure that the
price of WIL shares being considered for the exchange are not less than the minimum price arrived
under the above formula prescribed under Requlation 164,

Nirﬂnjﬂn Ku mar Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed
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b) Comparable Companies Multiples ('CCM'} / Comparable Transactions Multiples (‘CTM')
method

Under CCM, the value of shares/ business of a company is determined based on market multiples of
publicly traded comparable companies, This valuation is based on the principle that market valuations,
taking place between informed buyers and informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant to
valuation. CCM applies multiples derived from similar or ‘comparable’ publicly traded companies,
Although no two companies are entirely alike, the companies selected as comparable companies
should be engaged in the same or a similar line of business as the subject company. Relevant multiples
need to be chosen carefully and adjusted for differences between the circumstances.

Based on our analysis and discussion with the Manogement, we understand that there are comparable
listed companies which operate in similar line of business and having similar business models as that
of the Transacting Companies including the investee companies of WIL, we have therefore used COM
Method for valuing equity shares of the Transacting Companies.

Under CTM, the value of shares/ business of a company is determined based on market multiples of
publicly disclosed transactions in the similar space as that of the subject company. Multiples are
generally based on data from recent transactions in a comparable sector, but with appropriate
adjustment after consideration has been given to the specific characteristics of the business being
valued.

Based on our analysis and discussion with the Management, we understand that there are no recent
comparable transactions, datao of which is available in public domain, involving companies of similar
nature and having o simifar operating/ financial metrics as that of Tronsacting Companies, we have
therefore not used CTM method to value the shares of these Companies.

2, Income Approach — Discounted Cash Flow Method ['DCF')

DCF method values a business based upon the available cash flow a prudent investor would expect
the subject business to generate over a given period of time. This method is used to determine the
present value of a business on a going concern assumption and recognizes the time value of money
by discounting the free cash flows for the explicit forecast period and the terminal value at an
appropriate discount factor. The free cash flows represent the cash available for distribution to bhoth
the owners of and lenders to the business. The terminal value represents the total value of the
available cash flow for all periods subsequent to the forecast period. The terminal value of the
business at the end of the forecast period is estimated and discounted to its equivalent present value
and added to the present value of the explicit forecast period cash flow to estimate the value of the
business,

The projected free cash flows are discounted by the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) to
arrive at the enterprise value, The WACC represents the returns required by the investors of both debt
and equity weighed to their relative funding in the entity.

WIL is a listed company and since the information related to future financial projections of the
Company is price sensitive in nature, we were not provided with the financial projections of these
Companies by the Management, We have therefore not used DCF method to determine the fair value
af the equity shares of WIL

SHL is a profit making company and generates surplus cash. Going forward as well, SHL is expected to
muake profits and generate surplus cash in future, We hove therefore used DCF method to determine
the fair value of the equity shares of SHL.

N iranjan Kumar Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed
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RECOMMENDATION OF THE RATIO OF SHARE EXCHANGE FOR THE PROPOSED AMALGAMATION.

The share exchange ratio has been arrived at on the basis of a relative (and not absolute) equity value
of the Transferor company and Transferee company for the proposed scheme of amalgamation based
on the various methodologies mentioned herein earlier. Suitable rounding off have been carried out
wherever necessary to arrive at the recommended share exchange ratio.

Refer Annexure 1 for value per share under different methods prescribed and the share exchange ratio.
In light of the above and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as discussed
and outlined herein above including scope, limitations and assumptions describe in this report and
the engagement letter, we recommend the share exchange ratio as follows:

To the equity shareholders of SHL:

151 (One Hundred and Fifty One} equity shares af WIL having foce value of INR 10 each fully paid up
shall be issued for every 15,000 (Fifteen Thousand) equity shares held in SHL having foce value of INR

10 each fully paid up,
Respectfully submitted,
9 ¢
IBBIfRV /0B
2018/10137
Miranjan Kumar
Registered Valuer- Securities or Financial Assets
IBBI Registration Number: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137
Date: 07 December 2021 ICAIRVO/06/RY-PO00D021/2018-19
Flace: Pune UDIN: 21121635A88AHVER11
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Annexure 1: Summary of share exchange ratio

Amalgamation of SHL (Transferor Company) with WIL [Transferee Company)

Waluation Approach WIL (A) SHL (B)
Transferee company Transferor company
Value per share Waelght (%) Value per share Woeight (%)
{INR) {INR)

Market approach

-Market Price Method 760.50 S0.0% A 0L.0%

-Comparable Companies Multiple [CCM) Method 830,71 50.0% 7.89 50.0%
Income approach - Discounted Cash Flows Method A 0.0% B8.13 50.0%
Asset approach - NAY Method A, 0.0% M, 0.0%
Relative value per share 795.61 i.ﬂ';'] 8.01 "{'Ej-
Share Exchange Ratio Round UH[{BIT&]]_ - - - e ul}ml
Recommended Share Exchange Ratio : (For every 15,000 equity shares] 151

A Mot Adopted

Motes:

1} Market Approach — Market Price Method

The equity shares of SHL are not listed on any stock exchange, we have therefore not considered
market price method to determine the fair value of equity shares of SHL.

2) Income Approach- Discounted Cash Flow Method

WIL is a listed company and since the information related to future financial projections of the
Company is price sensitive in nature, we were not provided with the financial projections of WIL
by the Management. We have therefore not used DCF method to determine the fair value of
the equity shares of WIL.

3)  Asset Approach- NAV Method
WIL and SHL, presently operate as a going concern and would continue ta do so for the

foreseeable future and NAY Method does not value the future profit generating ability of the
business, we have therefore not used this method to value the equity shares of WIL and SHL.
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KUNVAR]I

SINCE 1960

Date: 07 December 2021 Driven By Knowledge

To, To,

The Board of Directors The Board of Directors

Wheels India Limited Sundaram Hydraulics Limited

21, Pattulos Road, Chennai, 21, Pattulos Road, Chennai,

Tamil Nadu - 600002, India. Tamil Nadu - 600002, India.

Subject: Fairness opinion on the share exchange ratio recommended by Niranjan Kumar,
luer- urities or Financial Assets th r | ti of

r. Limited with Wheels India i

We refer to the engagement letter dated 25 November 2021 and discussions undertaken with the
Management of Wheels India Limited (“WIL" or "Transferee Company”) and Sundaram Hydraulics
Limited (“SHL" or "Transferor Company”) (hereinafter both of them together referred to as “the
Management"), wherein the Management has requested Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited
("Kunvarji” or “We” or "us”) to provide a fairness opinion on the share exchange ratio
recommended by Niranjan Kumar, Registered Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets
("Independent Valuer") vide report dated 07 December 2021 ("Valuation Date") in connection with
the proposed amalgamation of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited with Wheels India Limited (together
WIL and SHL are referred to as "Transacting Companies") (hereinafter referred to as “Proposed
amalgamation” or “Proposed Transaction”).

Please find enclosed our deliverables in the form of report (“the Report”). This Report sets out the
transaction overview, scope of work, background of the companies, sources of information and
our opinion on the share exchange ratio recommended by Independent Valuer for the aforesaid
Proposed amalgamation. This Report is subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, limitation
and disclaimers detailed hereinafter. As such the report is to be read in totality, and not in parts,
in conjunction with the relevant documents referred to therein.

This report has been issued only for the purpose of facilitating the Proposed Transaction and
should not be used for any other purpose.

For, Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited

A O Pra

Mr. Atul Chokshi
Director (DIN: 00929553)

Place: Ahmedabad

Kunvarji Finstock Pvt. Ltd.
Kunvarji, B - Wing, Siddhivinayak Towers, Off. S.G. Road, Makarba, Ahmedabad - 380 051

Phone:+91 79 6666 9000 | Fax : + 91 79 2970 2196 | Email: info@kunvarji.com
www.kunvarji.com CIN - U65910GJ1986PTCO08979
000303/2021
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KUNVARJI

SINCE 1960

Driven By Knowledge
FAIRNESS OPINION

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION IN THE NATURE OF
PROPOSED AMALGAMATION OF

SUNDARAM HYDRAULICS LIMITED (TRANSFEROR COMPANY)
WITH
WHEELS INDIA LIMITED (TRANSFEREE COMPANY)

STRICTLY PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL

Prepared By:

‘KUNVARJI

SINCE 1960

Driven By Knowledge

Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited

(SEBI Category I Merchant Banking Registration Number - INM000012564)

Kunvarji, B-Wing,
Siddhivinayak Towers,
Nr. D.A.V. School, Off. S. G. Road,
Makarba,

Ahmedabad-380051

Kunvarji Finstock Pvt. Ltd.
Kunvarji, B - Wing, Siddhivinayak Towers, Off. 5.G. Road, Makarba, Ahmedabad - 380 051
" Phone:+91 79 6666 2000 | Fax : + 91 79 2970 2196 | Email: info@kunvarji.com
www.kunvarji.com CIN - U65910GJ1986PTC008979
000304/2021
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KUNVARJI

SINCE 1960

Driven By Knowledge
1. BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES

SUNDARAM HYDRAULICS LIMITED (TRANSFEROR COMPANY)

Sundaram Hydraulics Limited ('SHL' or ‘Transferor Company’) was incorporated on 07 December
2007 and is engaged in the business of design, manufacture, and distribution of hydraulic
cylinders for the domestic and global MCE industry. SHL is also engaged in manufacturing of axle
shafts for dump trucks and cylinders for windmill and subcontracting excavator cylinders for
overseas companies.

The equity shareholding pattern of SHL as at report date is set out below:
Particulars Number of shares

4,37,51,300

Equity shares having face value of INR 10 each

Note: We understand that the equity shares of SHL held by WIL shall stand cancelled automatically
upon the proposed scheme of amalgamation being effective.

WHEELS INDIA LIMITED (TRANSFEREE COMPANY)

Wheels India Limited ('WIL' or ‘Transferee Company’) was incorporated on 13 June 1960 and is
engaged in the business of manufacturing of automotive and industrial components. Its product
portfolio comprises of steel wheels and forged aluminium wheels; air suspension systems for
buses, trucks and trailers; control and speciality products; and machined components for various
other applications. WIL holds 16.3% equity stake in Sundaram Hydraulics Limited, 74.0% stake in
WIL Car Wheels Limited and 9.5% stake in Axles India Limited (WIL Car Wheels Limited and Axles
India Limited are hereinafter together referred to as ‘the investee companies of WIL'). The equity
shares of WIL are listed on BSE and NSE.

The equity shareholding pattern of WIL as at 30 September 2021 is set out below:

Category of shareholder Number of equity shares Percentage
(Face Value of INR 10 each) %
Promoter and Promoter Group 13843428 313%
Public 1,02,21,130 42.5%
Total 2,40,64,558 100.0341
>‘Jf—‘~\£° A\
— \
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Kunvarji Finstock Pvt. Ltd.

Kunvarji, B - Wing, Siddhivinayak Towers, Off. 5.G. Road, Makarba, Ahmedabad - 380 051

Phone:+91 79 6666 9000 | Fax : + 91 79 2970 2196 | Email: info@kunvarji.com
www.kunvarji.com ¢y y65910G)1986PTC008979
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‘KUNVARJI

SINCE 1960

Driven By Knowledge
2. TRANSACTION OVERVIEW AND SCOPE OF SERVICES

Transaction Overview

We understand that the Management of the Transacting Companies are contemplating a scheme
of amalgamation, wherein they intend to amalgamate Sundaram Hydraulics Limited with Wheels
India Limited in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in a manner provided in the draft scheme of
amalgamation (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Scheme’).

As a consideration for the proposed amalgamation, equity shareholders of SHL would be issued
equity shares of WIL. The equity shares to be issued for the aforesaid proposed amalgamation will
be based on the share exchange ratio as determined by the Board of Directors based on the share
exchange ratio report prepared by Independent Valuer appointed by them.

Scope of Services

Pursuant to Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 or SEBI
Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020, as amended
from time to time, we have been requested by the Management to issue a fairness opinion in
relation to the share exchange ratio recommended by Independent Valuer vide report dated 07
December 2021 for the proposed amalgamation of Transferor Company with Transferee
Company.

In this regard, the Management has appointed Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited (“Kunvarji” or
“We" or “us”), SEBI Registered (Category I) Merchant Banker to provide fairness opinion on the
share exchange ratio recommended by an Independent Valuer as at Valuation Date for the
Proposed amalgamation.

Our scope of work only includes forming an opinion on the fairness of the recommendation of
the Valuer on the share exchange ratio arrived at for the purpose of Scheme and does not involve
evaluating or opining on the fairness or economic rationale of the Scheme per se. This report is
subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, limitations and disclaimers detailed hereinafter. As
such, the Report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant
documents referred to herein.

Kunvariji Finstock Pvt. Ltd.
Kunvarji, B - Wing, Siddhivinayak Towers, Off. S.G. Road, Makarba, Ahmedabad - 380 051

Phone:+91 79 6666 9000 | Fax : + 91 79 2970 2196 | Email: info@kunvarji.com
CIN - U65910GJ1986PTC008979
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3. SOURCES OF INFORMATION

We have relied on the following information made available to us by the Management of the
Transacting Companies/ obtained from public domain for the purpose of this report:

* Signed share exchange ratio report issued and prepared by Niranjan Kumar, Registered
Valuer- Securities or Financial Assets dated 07 December 2021;

* Audited standalone/ consolidated financial statements of WIL for the financial year ended 31
March 2021;

e Limited reviewed standalone/ consolidated financial statements of WIL for the six months’
period ended 30 September 2021,

* Audited financial statements of SHL for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and for the
six months' period ended 30 September 2021;

¢ Audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and limited reviewed
financial statements for the six months’ period ended 30 September 2021 of investee
companies of WIL;

* Quarterly reported financial performance of Transacting Companies and investee companies
of WIL for the trailing twelve month period ended 30 September 2021;

* Financial projections of SHL from 01 April 2021 to 31 March 2026 (‘Management Projections’)
which represents Management's best estimate of the future financial performance of SHL;

 Shareholding pattern of WIL as at 30 September 2021; and shareholding pattern of SHL as at
the report date;

* Draft scheme of amalgamation between the Transacting Companies pursuant to which
proposed amalgamation is to be undertaken;

* Publicly available market data, key trends and valuation multiple of comparable companies;

The Management has been provided with the opportunity to review the draft fairness opinion
report (excluding our fairness opinion on the share exchange ratio) as part of our standard practice
to make sure that factual inaccuracy/ omissions are avoided.
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4, PROCEDURES ADOPTED

In connection with this exercise, we have adopted the following procedures to carry out the
opinion:

e Requested and received financial and qualitative information.

e Obtained data available of Companies in public domain.

e Discussion with the Management to:
Understand the business and fundamental factors that affect the business including their
earning generating capability and enquire about the historical financial performance, current
state of affairs, business plans and the future performance estimates.

e Reviewed signed share exchange ratio report issued and prepared by Niranjan Kumar,
Registered Valuer- Securities or Financial Assets dated 07 December 2021;

e Reviewed the draft scheme of amalgamation between the Transacting Companies.

e Reviewed the cashflow projections provided by the Management for SHL including
understanding basis of preparation and the underlying assumptions;

e Analysis of key trends and valuation multiples of the Comparable Companies using data
available in public domain and proprietary databases.

e Discussion with Independent Valuer on such matters which we believed were necessary or
appropriate for the purpose of issuing this opinion.
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LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND DISCLAIMERS

The fairness opinion contained herein is not intended to represent fairness opinion at any time
other than report date. We have no obligation to update this report.

This Report, its contents and the results herein are specific to (i) the purpose of fairness opinion
agreed as per the terms of our engagement; (ii) the Report Date; (iii) the shareholding pattern of
Transacting Companies (iv) limited reviewed financial statements of WIL and audited financial
statements of SHL for the six months' period ended 30 September 2021; (v) limited reviewed
financial statements for the six months’ period ended 30 September 2021 of investee companies
of WIL; (vi) quarterly reported financial performance of Transacting Companies and investee
companies of WIL for trailing twelve months ended 30 September 2021; and (v) draft scheme of
amalgamation.

A fairness opinion of this nature is necessarily based on the prevailing stock market, financial,
economic and other conditions in general and industry trends in particular as in effect on and the
information made available to us as of, the date hereof. Events occurring after the date hereof
may affect this report and the assumptions used in preparing it, and we do not assume any
obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this report.

The fairness opinion rendered in this Report only represent our opinion based upon information
furnished by the Companies and gathered from public domain (and analysis thereon) and the said
opinion shall be considered to be in the nature of non-binding advice. Our fairness opinion should
not be used for advising anybody to take buy or sell decision, for which specific opinion needs to
be taken from expert advisors.

We have not independently audited or otherwise verified the financial information provided to us.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or offer any form of assurance regarding the truth and
fairness of the financial position as indicated in the financial statements. Also, with respect to
explanations and information sought from the Management, we have been given to understand
by the Management that they have not omitted any relevant and material factors about the
Transacting Companies and that they have checked the relevance or materiality of any specific
information to the present exercise with us in case of any doubt. Our conclusion is based on the
information given by/on behalf of the Transacting Companies. The Management has indicated to
us that they have understood that any omissions, inaccuracies or misstatements may materially
affect our fairness opinion.

Kunvarji Finstock Pvt. Ltd.

Kunvarji, B - Wing, Siddhivinayak Towers, Off. 5.G. Road, Makarba, Ahmedabad - 380 051
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It is understood that this opinion is solely for the benefit of confidential use by the Board of
Directors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company for the purpose of facilitating
companies to comply with Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10,
2017 or SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020,
as amended from time; disclosures to be made to relevant regulatory authorities including stock
exchanges, SEBI, National Company Law Tribunal or as required under applicable law and it shall
not be valid for any other purpose. This opinion is only intended for the aforementioned specific
purpose and if it is used for any other purpose; we will not be liable for any consequences thereof.

The Report assumes that the Companies comply fully with relevant laws and regulations
applicable in all its areas of operations, and that the Companies will be managed in a competent
and responsible manner. Further, this Report has given no consideration to matters of a legal
nature, including issues of legal title and compliance with local laws, and litigation and other
contingent liabilities that are not represented to us by the Management. Our fairness opinion
assumes that the assets and liabilities of the companies, reflected in their respective balance sheet
remain intact as of the Report date.

The report does not address the relative merits of the proposed amalgamation as compared with
any other alternative business transaction, or other alternatives, or whether or not such
alternatives could be achieved or are available.

The fee for the engagement is not contingent upon the results reported.

We will not be liable for any losses, claims, damages or liabilities arising out of the actions taken,
omissions of or advice given by any other to the Transacting Companies. In no event shall we be
liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses arising in any way from fraudulent acts,

misrepresentations or willful default on part of the Companies, their directors, employees or
agents.

This report is not a substitute for the third party's own due diligence/ appraisal/ enquiries/
independent advice that the third party should undertake for his purpose.

This Report is subject to the laws of India.

Neither the Report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any registration statement,
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreeme
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5. OUR RECOMMENDATION

As stated in the Share Exchange Ratio Report dated 07 December 2021 prepared by Niranjan
Kumar, Registered Valuer- Securities or Financial Assets, they have recommended the following:

“151 (One Hundred and Fifty One) equity shares of WIL having face value of INR 10 each fully paid
up shall be issued for every 15,000 (Fifteen Thousand) equity shares held in SHL having face value
of INR 10 each fully paid up.”

The aforesaid amalgamation shall be pursuant to the draft scheme of amalgamation and shall be
subject to receipt of approval from the National Company Law Tribunal or such other competent
authority as may be applicable and other statutory approvals as may be required. The detailed
terms and conditions of the amalgamation are more fully set forth in the draft scheme of
amalgamation. Kunvarji has issued the fairness opinion with the understanding that draft scheme
of amalgamation shall not be materially altered and the parties hereto agree that the Fairness
Opinion would not stand good in case the final scheme of amalgamation alters the Proposed
Transaction.

Based on the information, data made available to us, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the
Share exchange ratio as recommended by Niranjan Kumar, Registered Valuer- Securities or
Financial Assets in relation to the proposed draft scheme of amalgamation is fair to the equity
shareholders of WIL and SHL in our opinion.

For, Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited

."{1::.'\“‘:_‘,#5 %, :’\‘
Lm o /
I“ (U J.l:-"')
Mr. Atul Chokshi \e /~)
. LAy
Director (DIN: 00929553) G > ¥

Date: 07 December 2021
Place: Ahmedabad
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Annexure- D
National Stock Exchange Of India Limited

Ref: NSE/LIST/31234 February 10, 2022

The Company Secretary
Whesds India Limited
21, Patullos Road,
Chennai — 600 002.
Kind Attn.: Ms. K.V Lakshmi

Dear Madam,

Sub: Observation Letter for draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited with
WheelsIndia Limited and their respective shareholders.

Weareinreceipt of draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited (“Transferor Company”)
with Wheedls India Limited (" Transferee Company") and their respective shareholders.

Based on our letter reference no. NSE/LIST/29504 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI Circular no.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (“Circular”), kindly find following comments on the draft
scheme:

a. Company shall ensure disclosure of all details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings
prosecution initiated and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the company, its promoters
and directors, before Hon’ble NCLT and shareholders, while seeing approval of the scheme.

b. Company shall ensure additional information, if any, submitted by the Company, after filing the Scheme
with the Sock Exchanges, and from the date of receipt of this |etter is displayed on the websites of the
listed company and the Stock Exchanges

c. Theentitiesinvolved in the scheme shall duly comply with various provisions of the said Circular.

d. The Company shall ensure that the new equity sharesto be issued & allotted by the transferee company
only in demat form to the respective shareholders of the Transferor Companies.

e. The Company should ensure that the information pertaining to all the unlisted companies involved in the
scheme shall be included in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Part E of
Schedule VI of the ICDR Regulations, 2018 in the explanatory statement or notice or proposal
accompanying resolution to be passed, which is sent to the shareholders for seeking approval.

f. Company shall ensurethat all details mentioned in their letter dated January 03, 2021 shall be disclosed
to the shareholders for enabling them to take an informed decision on the scheme under consideration.

g. The Company shall ensurethat the financialsin the schemeincluding financials considered for valuation
report are not for period more than 6 months old.

h. Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Sock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the petition
to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and the company is obliged to bring the
observations to the notice of NCLT.

Mational Stock Exchan ge of India Limited | Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandm Kuda Complesx, Bandra (El, Mumbai - 400 051,
India+91 22 26598100 | www.ne=india.com | CIN UST120MH199 2PLCO&9T A9
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It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
comments/obser vationsg'r epr esentations.

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted companies
involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the Circular.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking given in
terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No objection” in terms of
Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the Company to file the draft scheme with
NCLT.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted to the
Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws
and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines/ Regulationsissued by statutory authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from February 10, 2022 within which the scheme
shall be submitted to NCLT.

The Company shall ensure filing of compliance status report stating the compliance with each point of
Observation Letter on draft scheme of arrangement on the following path: NEAPS > | ssue > Scheme of
arrangement > Reg 37(1) of SEBI LODR, 2015> Seeking Observation letter to Compliance Status.

Y ours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Harshad Dharod
Manager

P.S. Checklist for al the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following URL:
https://www.nsei ndia.com/compani es-listing/rai sing-capital -further-issues-mai n-sme-checklist
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Telephone Nos. :
Regd. Office : (044) 28522745
Factory : (044) 26234300
(044) 26258511

WHEELS INDIA LIMITED

Corporate Identity Number : L35921TN1960P1.C004175

Telefax : 044 - 26257121
Web : www.wheelsindia.com

Registered Office : - Factory :
21, Patullos Road, Chennai - 600 002. Padi, Chennai - 600 050,
January 25, 2022

National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
‘Exchange Plaza’. C-1, Block

G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai — 400051

Scrip Code: WHEELS

Ref.: Application for grant of approval under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the Scheme of Amalgamation presented
under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”)
for proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited (“Transferor
Company” OR “SHL”) with Wheels India Limited (“Transferee Company” OR “WIL”) and their
respective shareholders (the “Scheme”)

Sub.: Report on Complaints in terms of SEBI Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/665
dated November 23, 2021 in respect of the Scheme uploaded on stock exchange website on
January 03, 2022

Dear Sir / Madam,

This is with reference to our application (no. 29504) under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Sundaram
Hydraulics Limited (“Transferor Company” OR "SHL") with Wheels India Limited (“Transferee Company”
OR "WIL") and their respective shareholders.

As per Para I(A)(6) of the SEBI Circular dated November 23, 2021, the Company is required to submit a
"Report on Complaints” containing the details of complaints/comments received by the Company on the
Draft Scheme, within 7 days of expiry of 21 days from the date of filing of the Scheme with the Exchanges
and hosting of the same on its website.

The Scheme and other relevant documents were hosted by NSE on its website on January 03, 2022.
Accordingly, please find attached herewith Report on Complaints as the period of 21 days from the hosting
of said documents by the NSE on its website expired on January 24, 2022.

PLEASE ADDRESS ALL COMMUNICATIONS TO THE FACTORY
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The Report on Complaints is also being uploaded on the website of the Company, as per requirement of
said SEBI Circular.

Kindly take the same on your record and provide us necessary “No Objection” at the earliest to enable us
to file the Scheme of Amalgamation with Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal.

Thanking you.
Yours faithfully,

For Wheels India Limited

NG
/'_ L. WLA/"/!(/WH UTJ: %é%w\‘ \ 4¥‘
K V Lakshmi
Company Secretary

)3

. Bt

Encl: a/a
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Complaints Report

(For period from January 03, 2022 upto January 24, 2022)

Part A
Sl .
Particulars Number
No.
1 Number of complaints received directly Nil
2 Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges / SEBI Nil
3 | Total Number of complaints / comments received (1+2) Nil
4 | Number of complaints resolved Not Applicable
5 Number of complaints pending Not Applicable
Part B
r‘?{')‘ Name of complainant Date of Complaint | Status (Resolved / pending)

Not Applicable

For Wheels India Limited

/(ﬁ V. Ao leohin—

KV Lakshmi

Company Secretary
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Brahmayya

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Wheels India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Wheels India Limited (“the
Company’™). which comprisc the Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income). statement of changes in Equity and statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended. and notes to the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory mformation.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022. and Profit and Other
Comprehensive Loss, changes in Equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report. Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance Report and
Sharcholder’s Information but docs not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so., consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a material misstatement of this other
information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar, T:491-044-28131128/38/48/58
Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014.India. E:mail@brahmayya.com | www.brahmayya.com
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Responsibility of Management for Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that
give a truc and fair view of the financial position. financial performance including other comprehensive
income. changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India. including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting rccords in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the asscts of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities: sclection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and arc free [rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors arc also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
as a whole are frec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Recasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be cxpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statcments,
whether duc to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may inveolve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢} Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rcasonablencss of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar, T:491-044-28131128/38/48/58
Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014.India. E:mail@brahmayya.com | www.brahmayya.com
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d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosurcs in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and eveuts in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period and arc
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order”™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A” to this report a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belicef were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears {rom our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agrecment with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this
report.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company (o its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

() The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements. Refer Note No.27 (1) (b) of Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foresceable losses.

(iii) There has been generally no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall,
whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;,

(b) The Management has represented, that. to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity. including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™). with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall. whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identificd in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances. nothing has come (o our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations as provided under (a) and (b) above. contain any material misstatement.
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(v)  The final dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year in respect of the previous financial
year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act 2013 to the extent it applies to payment of dividend

The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the
approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Charteréd Accountants
Firm/Regn. No. 0005118

‘ DA\ e
Date: May 20,2022 [ \ P
7L Ravyi Sankar

Partiier

Membership No. 025929

UDIN - 22025929AJKDKT6162

Place: Chennai
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“Annexure - A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of
even date

(i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative details
and situation of Property plant and equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) The Property Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the year. in
accordance with an annual plan of verification, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of the Property Plant and Equipment. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) The Title deeds of all the immovable properties owned by the company are held in the name of the
Company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
during the year.

¢) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March
31. 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thercunder.

(i) a) The inventorics have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the
year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records which were not material. have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate
from banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or
statements filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the
Company.

(111) Based on our examination of records and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, {irms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other partics, in
respect of which:

a) The Company has not made any investment and not provided any loans or advances in the nature of
loans or stood guarantee. or provided sccurity to any other entity during the year. and hence reporting
under clause 3(iii)(a) to 3(i)() of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loan to its directors. covered under Section 185 of Companies Act, 2013.Section 186 of the
Companies Act. 2013 is not applicable to the company for the year.

) The Company has accepted public deposits and has complied with the provisions of scctions 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder.

(v1) The Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under subsection (1) of
section 148 of the Act in respect of the products manufactured by the Company and we have broadly
reviewed the cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been

7
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so made and maintained. We have. however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vil) a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax,
provident fund. employees’ state insurance, income tax, and other statutory ducs applicable to it
during the year with appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to
us. there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues outstanding as at
March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, duty of customs and Goods and Service tax which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute. The dues in respect of Service tax which have not been deposited on account of dispute
are as follows:

Name of the Nature of | Amount Period to Forum where the | Remark
Statute Ducs (Rs. in which the dispute is pending | s, if any
crore) | amount relates
Service Tax Act. | Service Tax | 5.71 Assessment CESTAT -
1994 Year 2009-10
to Assessment
Year 2018-19

(viid) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961. as income during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(viii) of the order does
not arise.

(ix) a) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a)
of the order does not arise.

b) According to the information and explanations given (o us. the company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(ix)(b) of the order does not arise.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans were
applied for the purpose for which loans were obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the company, the Company has not utilised the funds raised on short
term basis for long term purposes.

) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or to mect the obligations of its subsidiarics or associate comipanies.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the order does not arise.

D According to the information and explanations given (o us, the company has not raised loans during
the year on the pledge of sccuritics held in its subsidiarics or associate companies. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the order does not arise.

~

!
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(x) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither
raised during the year any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the order does not arise.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/ fully or partly or optionally
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the order does
not arise,

(xi) a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given {o us,
no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course
of our audit.

b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013 has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

¢) As represented to us by the Management. there have been no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xii)(a).(b).(c) of the Order does not arise.

(xili)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Companics Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued during the year April 01, 2021 to
March 31, 2022.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company during the year. the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the company. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(xv) of the order does not arise.

(xvi) a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Hence. reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b)In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions. 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the current year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been uo resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the vear. Accordingly
reporling under clause 3(xviii) of the order does not arise.
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(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention. which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, slate that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

(xx) a) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects requiring a
transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso
to sub-scction (3) of Section 1335 of the said Act. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the
Order is not applicable for the year.

b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 133 of Companies Act.
Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Brahmayya & Co..
Charl;red Accountants
Firm/Regn, No. 000511S
Place: Chennai I e

Date: May 20, 2022 P
L. Ravi-Sankar
Partner
Membership No. 625929
UDIN - 22025929AJKDKT6162
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“Annexure - B” to the Independent Auditors” Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report
of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Wheels India Limited (“the
Company™) as of March 31. 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the yecar ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAT").
These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including
adherence to company’s policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAI
and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act. 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating cffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal {inancial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the rcliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
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timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects. an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on
the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Brahmayya & Co,,
Chartered Accountants
Finp/Reg/n. No. 0005118

Place: Chennai VA
;f/'Q/L@( | o]
Date: May 20, 2022 el IR -
L.\Ravi-Sankar
Partner

Membership No. 025929
UDIN - 22023929AJKDKT6162
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63RD ANNUAL REPORT

BALANCE SHEET AS AT
Rs. In Crores

PARTICULARS Note No. 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
1 ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 744.32 760.35
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2 85.25 42.56
(c) Other Intangible Assets 3 2.73 3.27
(d) Right of Use Assets 4 25.37 19.06
{e) Financial Assets
iy Investments 5 14.24 16.68
iy Others 6 19.97 19.04
(f) Other Non Current Assets 7 18.62 6.25
910.50 867.21
2. Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 769.58 512.09
(b) Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables 9 868.23 706.00
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11a 2.35 2.1
iii) Bank Balances other than (ji) above 11b 0.47 0.51
iv) Others 11 6.80 3.82
(c) Other current assets 12 171.25 126.06
1,818.68 1,350.59
TOTAL 2,729.18 2,217.80
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 24.06 24.06
(b) Other Equity 14 651.05 575.26
675.11 599.32
Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 15 237.67 303.94
i) Lease Liabilites 16 17.01 15.00
(b) Provisions 17 5.64 5.82
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 18 50.39 50.74
310.71 375.50

2. Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 20 573.39 305.24
iy Trade payables

A) total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and smatt enterprises;

and 21 74.03 46.34
B) total outstanding dues of

creditors other than micro enterprises

and small enterprises 21 885.78 747.65

iii)l.ease Liabilties 22 9.68 5.58

iv) Others 23 33.83 23.10

(b) Other current liabilities 24 131.50 88.14

(c) Short-term provisions 25 28.08 20.15

d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 26 7.07 6.78
1,743.36 1,242.98
TOTAL 2,729.18 2,217.80

Significant Accounting Policies A

S.RAM =7 ‘s Rﬁﬁ/ Per our report of even date

Chairman Managing Director Di for BRAHMAYYA & Co.
DIN:00018308 DiN:00063415 'DIN:00063667 Chartered Accountants

Firm-Registration,No. 000511S
/,r <\\:\RL\§'%%\\ ,/ 1/
Ry N '
(=) A »,:?Q/'\}
RAVI SANKAR

< . ~.__Partner
-Merribership No. 025929

ﬂﬂf) Lb/ K- v. Latoaha
R. RAGHUNATHAN K.V.LAKSHMI
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

May 20, 2022



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH

Rs. In Crores

91

Note no. 2022 2021
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products 3,320.13 2,003.26
Sale of Services 31.45 25.71
Other operating revenues 335.11 182.78
Revenue from Operations 3,686.69 2,211.75
Other income 29 14.38 4.19
TOTAL INCOME 3,701.07 2,215.94
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 30 2,825.27 1,547.15
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Work-
in-progress 31 (143.59) (20.40)
Employee benefit expense 32 352.13 274.60
Finance Costs 34 63.10 52.68
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1,3&4 95.02 80.63
Other Expenses 33 402.63 271.56
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,594.56 2,206.22
Profit before exceptional items and tax 106.51 9.72
Exceptional items - -
Profit before tax 106.51 9.72
Tax expense: 35
Current tax 27.08 1.38
Deferred tax (0.36) 26.72 1.59 2.97
Profit for the year 79.79 6.75
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified fo profit or loss
- Changes in Fair valuation of Equity Instrument
through Other Comprehensive Income (2.45) (0.02)
- Remeasurements of post employment defined
benefit plan 1.15 2.00
Less: income Tax relating to remeasurements (0.29) (1.59) (0.50) 1.48
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 78.20 8.23
Earnings per equity share: 36
1. Basic 33.16 2.80
2. Diluted 33.16 2.80
Significant Accounting Policies A
S. RAM — SR AM SAD Per our report of even date
Chairman Managing Director Director for BRAHMAYYA & Co.
DIN:00018309 DIN:00063415 DIN:00063667 Chartereqf\’ccountants
Re{g_istratip’n,’NZf 000511S
/ﬂ’l _— Ko Ab et INDIA [ \WV&/\)
R. RAGHUNATHAN K.V.LAKSHMI " LRAVI SANKAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Partner

May 20, 2022

Membership No. 025929



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Rs. In Crores

As at 31.03.2022

As at 31.03.2021

92

Balance at the beginning of the year 24.06 24.06
Changes in Equity share capital during
the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 24.06 24.06
B) OTHER EQUITY
Other Comprehensive
Reserves and Surplus Income (OCI)
Total
Capital Securities General Retained | FVOCI| Equity |Other items
Reserve* |Premium Reserve |Earnings Instrument |of OCI
A. Balance as at 31st March,2020 - 70.10 411.28 95.84 2.04 (5.85)] 573.41
Profit for the year 8.75 6.75
Changes in Fair valuation of Equity
Instrument (0.02) (0.02)
Remeasurement of defined benefit
plans 1.50 1.50
B. Total Comprehensive Income for
the year 2020-21 - - - 6.75 (0.02) 1.50 8.23
Final Dividend 2018-20 (6.38) (6.38)
Transfer to General Reserve 2.00 (2.00) -
C. Total - - 2.00 (8.38) - - (6.38)
D. Balance as at 31st March,2021
(A+B+C) - 70.10 413.28 94.21 2.02 (4.35) | 575.26
Profit for the year 79.79 79.79
Changes in Fair valuation of Equity
Instrument (2.45) (2.45)
Remeasurement of defined benefit
plans 0.86 0.86
E. Total Comprehensive Income for
the year 2021-22 - - . 79.79 (2.45) 0.86 | 78.20
Final Dividend 2020-21 (2.41) (2.41)
Transfer to General Reserve - -
F. Total - - - (2.41) - - (2.41)
G. Balance as at 31st March, 2022
(D+E+F) - 7010 413.28 171.59 (0.43) (3.49)] 651.05

* Capital Reserve is Rs. 1713/-

//?
S.RAM A__—

Chairman
DIN:00018309

i, W2

R. RAGHUNATHAN
Chief Financial Officer

May 20, 2022

Sé%‘»ﬁ)

Managing Director
DIN:00063415

—

’US/PW’/
«Tirector
DIN:00063667

o v, dtbecdnn

K.V.LAKSHMI
Company Secretary

Per our report of even date
for BRAHMAYYA & Co.

AVI SANKAR

Partner

mbership No. 025929



a)

c)

d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter refered to as 'Ind AS') notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015.

The financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies
are applied consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles,
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at
the Balance Sheet date, reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period and disclosure of
contingent liabilities as at that date. The estimates and assumptions used in these financial statements are
based upon the management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the
financial statements.

The Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division [l of Schedule il o the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company's normal operating cycle has been ascertained as 12 months based on the nature of products and
the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated.

Property, Plant and Equipment

a) Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of GST credits as reduced by accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

b) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment has been provided under the Straight Line Method in
accordance with Schedule |l of the Companies Act 2013.

¢) Leasehold Land: Premium paid on Leasehold Land is amortised over the lease period.

d) The expenditure during construction period relating to the new project till the commencement of
commercial production is capitalised and allocated to the relevant equipments.

e) In accordance with IndAS 23, the borrowing costs attributable to the qualifying assets that necessarily
takes substantial period to get ready for its intended use are capitalised.

f) Grants received for Investment in Property Plant & Equipment are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

g) The cost of software relating to ERP is amortised over the estimated useful life viz., 5 years. The cost of
other intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful life viz., 3 years.

h) Upon first time adoption of IndAS, the carrying value of all the assets as at Transition date i.e. 01st April
2016 has been considered as its Deemed cost.

Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses if any.

Inventories

The stock of raw materials, work-in-progress, stores, loose tools and goods in fransit are valued at cost (net of
GST credits) on weighted average basis.

The stock of finished goods are valued at cost (net of GST credits including appropriate overheads) or net
realisable value whichever is lower.
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h)

Financial instruments
i) Financial assets:

Financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of financial assets which are recognised at fair value
through profit and loss, its transaction cost is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. In other cases,
the acquisition cost of the financial assets is net of the attributable transaction cost.
Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at:
i} Amortised cost or
ii) Fair Value through profit and loss{(FVTPL)
i) Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Trade receivables and Loans:

Trade receivables and Loans are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at
amortised cost, using Effective Interest Rate method net of any expected credit losses. The Effective Interest
Rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of financial instrument.

Investments:

All investments in equity instruments (other than in Subsidiaries and Associates covered under (d) above)
classified under financial assets, are initially measured at fair value. Fair Value changes on an Equity
instruments is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss or Other Comprehensive Income,as the case
may be.

Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as 'other income' in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

ii) Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are initially measured at amortised cost. [n case of trade payables, they are initially'

recognised at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortised cost using Effective Interest
Rate method.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of an event and is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligations. Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obiigation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurence or non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that a outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the control over the goods have been transferred to
customers. Service income is recognised once the obligations are performed.Interest income is recognised at
Effective Interest Rate method. Dividend income is recognised when right to receive the payment is
established. Export incentives are recognised as revenue as and when exports are made.

Employee Benefits
Provident Fund:

Eligible employees receive benefits from Provident Fund which is defined contribution plan. Both, the
employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the regional provident fund authorities/
Company's Employees Provident Fund Trust. The Company has an obligation to make goad the shortfall,if
any between the return from the investments made from the trust and the notified interest rate accrued to the
employees account.
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m)

n)

o)

Gratuity:

The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees eligibie for gratuity at the time of
retirement, death, incapacity or termination of employment. Liabilities with regard to the gratuity plan are
determined by actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date based upon which the Company contributes all
the ascertained liabilities to LIC, which is the administrator of the plan.

Unencashed Leave Salary:

Unencashed leave salary is accounted on actuarial valuation and the Company contributes part of the
ascertained liabilities to SBI Life Insurance Company Limited, which is the administrator of the pian.

Others:

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as Employees State Insurance, Superannuation are
charged as expenses based on the amount of contribution required to be made. These benefits are classified
as defined contribution schemes as the Company has no obligation beyond what has been recognised as
expense in the Statement of profit and loss.

Research & Development expenses:

Revenue expenditure on Research & Development is charged to profit & loss account in the year in which it is
incurred.

Leases:

The company has applied IND AS 116 using modified retrospective approach. The Lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of remaining payments as at the commencement date discounted using the
lessee's incremental borrowing rate. The cost of Right of Use Assets shall comprise of amount of initial
mesurement of lease liability adjusted for any payments made after or before the commencement of lease
term less any lease incentive received. The Leased Assets are depreciated on straight line basis over the
period of lease. '

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in Foreign currencies are accounted at the rates of exchange prevailing as on the date of the
transaction. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of such transactions are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are reinstated at the rate of exchange
prevailing on the reporting date.

Derivative contracts:

Forward contracts are entered to hedge the foreign currency risk.The profit/ loss arising on these contracts is '

accounted for as income/ expenditure on the date of settlement of the contract.

The outstanding contracts are Marked to Market on the reporting date and the net loss/ gain arising therefrom
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings per share:

Earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year attributable to the
equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

Income taxes

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year and is determined in accordance
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognised using the Balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amount.

Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognised only if
there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise such assets.
Other deferred tax assets are recognised if there is reasonable certainty that there will be sufficient future
taxable income available to realise such assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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NON CURRENT ASSETS - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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Rs. In Crores

Gross Block at cost Depreciation/Amortisation Net Block
A.\dditio_ns
Peseription 313:3’,.2;21 gzggz‘g"‘% Deletions 31.?):53.2;22 31 .?):832521 Additions | Deletions 31.?);2;22 3132.2;22 31 32.2;21
Capitalised)

1. TANGIBLE ASSETS
Land (Free hold) 0.94 - - 0.94 - - - 0.00 0.94 0.94
Land (Lease hold) 27.50 - 1.81 25.69 1.21 0.27 0.24 1.24 24.45 26.29
Buildings 151.74 12.98 12.57 152.15 54.02 4.71 5.05 53.68 98.47 97.72
Plant and Equipment 1343.68 68.53 21.19 1391.02 716.22 80.02 16.53 779.71 611.31 627.46
Furniture and Fixtures 6.59 0.88 0.48 6.99 5.01 0.29 0.44 4.86 213 1.68
Vehicles 0.13 6.01 ‘ 0.04 0.10 0.10 0.00 0.04 0.06 0.04 0.03
Office Equipment 22.92 3.01 2.31 23.82 16.59 2.24 2.19 16.64 6.98 6.33

1553.50 85.41 38.40 1600.51 793.15 87.53 24.49 856.19 744.32 760.35
3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer Software 20.63 1.38 0.13 21.88 18.17 1.24 0.10 19.31 2.57 2.46
Technical Know-how 5.65 0.16 - 5.81 4.84 0.81 - 5.65 0.16 0.81

26.28 1.54 0.13 27.69 23.01 2.05 0.10 24.96 273 327

Total 1579.78 86.95 38.53 1628.20 816.16 89.58 24.59 881.15 747.05
Previous year 1382.63 203.00 5.85 1579.78 743.75 76.82 4.41 816.16 763.62




4. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
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Rs. In Crores

Gross Block at cost Depreciation/Amortisation Net Block
Description As At ”n . As At As At . . As At As At As At
31.03.2021 | Additions | Deletions | /o0,y | 313202¢ | Additions | Deletions | 5,4 5002 | 313.2022 | 31.3.2021
Leased Assets 23.65 11.51 - 35.16 4.59 544 0.24 9.79 25.37 19.06
Total 23.65 11.51 - 35.16 4.59 5.44 0.24 9.79 25.37 19.06
Previous year 10.02 14.18 0.55 23.65 1.04 3.81 0.26 4.59 19.06
2. CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
a) Buildings 12.43 6.80
b) Plant and Machinery* 72.82 35.76
85.25 42.56
* includes machinery in transit - Rs. .Nil (previous year - Rs. 0.30 Crs)
Ageing of CWIP as on March 31, 2022 :
Amount in Capital work in progress
Less than one 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Project in Progress 80.59 3.14 0.79 0.73 85.25
Ageing OF CWIP as on March 31, 2021 :
Amount in Capital work in progress
Less than one 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Project in Progress 28.19 11.9_2 1.54 0.91 42.56




NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
5 INVESTMENTS
Unquoted
Investment in Equity Instruments
i) In Subsidiary Company at Cost

WIL Car Wheels Limited

37,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully subscribed and

paid-up

ii) In Associate Company at Cost

Axles India Limited
24,24,661 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up

iii) In Other Entity at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive

Income
Sundaram Hydraulics Limited
71,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

Add/(Less) : Change due to Fair Valuation*

Rs. In Crores
As at
31.03.2022

7.15

(1.42)

3.70

3.70

2.72

2.72

5.73

Rs. In Crores

As at

31.03.2021
3.70
3.70
2.72
2.72

7.15

1.02 8.17

* Valuation as per the registered valuer, for the purpose of Scheme of Amalgamation of Sundaram Hydraulics Ltd. and
Wheels India Ltd. has been taken as fair value of equity shares held by the company for the period ending 31st March,

2022.

iv) In Other Entities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
MEFCO Engineers Private Limited
20,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid up

Siva Electric Generation Private Limited

1,862,172 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

Gamma Green Power Private Limited
12,00,062 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

Beta Wind Farm Private Limited
2,25,370 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

Siva Green Energy India Private Limited
95,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

6 NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS
a) Security Deposits (unsecured - considered good)
b) Advances to employees

7 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
a) Advances for Capital goods
b} Prepaid expenses

CURRENT ASSETS

8 INVENTORIES

a) Raw Materials
(Includes Goods in Transit- Rs. 28.52 crs)
(previous year - 15,93 Crs)

b) Work - in - Progress

c) Finished goods

d) Stores and Spares

e) Loose tools

0.20 0.20
0.16 0.16
1.20 1.20
0.43 0.43
0.10 2.09 0.10 2.09
14.24 16.68
19.35 18.47
062 057
997 1904
18.27 5.64
0.35 0.61
18.62 6.25
356.42 261.75
178.41 107.48
136.61 63.95
57.11 52.25
41.03 26.66
769.58 512.09



9 TRADE RECEIVABLES
a) Unsecured - Considered good

Trade receivable ageing schedule March 31, 2022

Rs. In Crores
As at
31.03.2022

86823

868.23

Rs. In Crores
As at
31.03.2021

706.00

706.00

Particulars

Not Due

Less than 6
months

6 months - 1
year

1-2years

2 -3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables
considered good*
which have significant increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Disputed trade receivables
considered good
which have significant increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Total

679.90

183.62

3.29

1.42

868.23

679.90

183.62

3.28

1.42

868.23

* it includes unbilled amount of Rs. 35.84 Crores.

Trade receivable ageing schedule March 31, 2021

Particulars

Not Due

l.ess than 6
months

6 months - 1
year

1-2years

2 - 3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables*
considered good*
which have significant increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Disputed trade receivables
considered good
which have significant increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Total

592.78

102.21

7.97

2.70

0.30

0.04

706.00

592.78

102.21

7.97

2.70

0.30

0.04

706.00

* it includes unbilled amount of Rs. 29.93 crores




Rs. In Crores Rs. In Crores
As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
a i) Current Accounts 1.45 1.28
iy Cash on hand 0.02 0.06
iif) Deposit with Banks towards Liquid assets 0.88 0.77
requirement under Acceptance of Deposit rules, 2014
2.35 2.1
Bank Balances with more than three months maturity
i) Fixed Deposits
(as a Guarantee to Commercial Taxes Department) 0.13 0.13
i) Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 0.34 0.38
0.47 0.51
11 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS
Advances to employees 2.41 2.19
Duty Drawback Receivable 1.60 1.06
Export Incentive License 2.76 0.56
interest accrued on deposits and investments 0.03 0.01
6.80 3.82
12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured - Considered good
a) Advances other than Capital Advances
Advances to Vendors 3.62 4.39
Other Advances 3.3 6.93 1.84 6.23
b) Balance with GST/ Central Excise authorities 113.49 85.35
c) VAT receivable - 0.90
d) Export incentives receivable 6.88 8.73
e) GST refund receivable on Exports 16.49 13.75
f) Prepaid expenses 27.46 11.10
171.25 126.06
13 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
a) Authorised » 50.00 50.00
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
b) Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
2,40,64,558 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 24.06 24.06
¢) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each No. of Rs.In No. of Rs. In Crores
shares Crores shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,40,64,558 24.06 2,40,64,558 24.06
Change in Equity Share Capital during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,40,64,558 24.06 2,40,64,558 24.06

d) Rights, Preferences and restrictions

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each member is entitled to one vote
by e voting (remote e - voting/ e - voting at the meeting), every shareholder is entitled to vote in proportion to their holdings.

e) Shareholding of shareholders holding more than 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
5% of shares as at (Number of {Number of
shares) shares)
T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited - 49,11,028
Southern Roadways Private Limited - 22,32,628
Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited 56,014,117 56,01,117
Trichur Sundaram Santhanam & Family Private 71,43,656 R
Limited
f) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group 31.03.2022
31.03.2022 (Percentage 31.03.2021 31.03.2021
(Number of of Total (Number of (Percentage of
shares) Shares) shares) Total Shares)
T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited - - 49,11,028 20.41%
Southern Roadways Private Limited - - 22,32,628 9.28%
Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited 56,01,117 23.27% 56,01,117 23.27%
Trichur Sundaram Santhanam & Family Private 71,43,656 29.69% i }
Limited*
India Motor Parts & Accessories Limited 10,98,655 4.57% 10,98,655 4.57%

* Refer note 50 (b)
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14 OTHER EQUITY

a) Capital Reserves*

b) Securities Premium

c) General Reserves

d) Retained Earnings

e) Other Comprehensive income Reserve

* Capital Reserve is Rs. 1713/-
Refer Note no. 37

NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
15 BORROWINGS
A. SECURED BORROWINGS
a) Term Loans from Banks
By first Charge by way of hypothecation of specific
machinery
b) Term Loans from others

By first Charge by way of hypothecation of specific
machinery

B. UNSECURED BORROWINGS
a) Fixed Deposits

Includes Rs. 0.79 crores received from Directors
(previous year Rs. 0.19 crores ))

Terms of Repayment : Refer Note no.28

16 Lease Liabilities

Lease Liabilities*
(*Refer Note no. 46)

17 PROVISIONS
Provisions for employee benefits

18 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred Tax Assets
Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

a) Deferred Tax Liability
i} Depreciation
iiy Export Incentives
iii) Remeasurement of Financial Liabilities

Less:

b) Deferred Tax Asset
Expenses allowable on payment basis

c) Minimum Alternate Tax credit entittement”®
Net Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets) (a-b-¢)

Rs. In Crores
As at
31.03.2022

70.10

413.28

171.59
(3.92)

651.05

89.66

24.66

123.35

237.67

17.01
17.01

5.64
5.64

55.29
(4.80)

50.39

Rs. In Crores
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Rs. In Crores
As at
31.03.2021

70.10

413.28
94.21
(2.33)

575.26

99.76

49.21

154.97

303.94

15.00
15.00

5.82
5.82

55.89
(5.15)

50.74

Rs. In Crores

Charge in Charge in
31.03.2022 Statementof .4 4535601 Statement of
Profit or .
Profit or Loss
Loss
53.42 0.02 53.39 2.40
1.73 (0.47) 2.20 0.45
0.14 (0.16) 0.30 0.10
55.29 (0.61) 55.89 2.95
490 (0.25) 515 1.36
- (0.84)
50.39 (0.36) 50.74 2.43




20
A
a)

21

22

23

b)
c)
d)

24

Rs. in Crores

Rs. In Crores

As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
BORROWINGS
SECURED BORROWINGS
Loans repayable on demand from Banks 295.74 133.54
Hypothecation by way of first charge on all
movabie assets present and future, consisting of
stock of raw materials, work-in-progress, finished
goods, consumable stores and spares, goods-in-
transit and book debts.
UNSECURED BORROWINGS
Loans repayable on demand from Banks 132.00 70.00
Fixed Deposits 8.75 10.64
(Includes Nil received from Directors)
Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer 136.90 91.08
Note no. 28)
(Includes Rs. 0.19 crores received from Directors
(previous year Rs. 0.79 crores))
573.39 305.24
TRADE PAYABLES
Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 74.03 46.34
Dues to Others 885.78 747.65
959.81 793.99
(Refer Note no. 38 for details of dues to Micro Enterprises and Smail Enterprises)
Trade payables ageing schedule March 31, 2022
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 1-2years |2-3years More than 3 Total
year years
Undisputed Trade Payables
Micro and Small Enterprises 74.03 74.03
Other than Micrc and Small Enterprises 773.53 112.25 885.78
Disputed Trade Payables
Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Total 847.56 112.25 - - - 959.81
Trade payables ageing schedule March 31, 2021
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 1-2years | 2-3years More than 3 Total
year years
Undisputed Trade Payables
Micro and Small Enterprises 46.28 0.04 0.02 - - 46.34
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 640.15 106.85 0.44 0.15 0.06 747.65
Disputed Trade Payables
Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Total 686.43 106.89 0.46 0.15 0.06 793.99
Lease Liabilities
Lease Liabilities* 9.68 5.58
(*Refer Note no. 46) 9.68 5.58
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS
Creditors for capital goods (includes due to Micro 13.11 8.18
enterprises and Small enterprises Rs .1.88
crores (previous year Rs. 0.79 crores)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 13.25 9.13
Unclaimed Dividends 0.34 0.38
Trade Deposits 1.30 1.26
Recovery from Employees 2.00 1.52
Unclaimed matured deposits and interest 3.83 2.83
accrued thereon e
33.83 23.10
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from Customers 14.88 8.07
Statutory dues 107.94 71.43
Employee Benefits Payable 5.33 3.8
Provision for expenses 3.35 4.66
131.50 88.14
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25 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

a) Provision for employee benefits
b) Provision for Warranty (Refer Note below)
¢) Due to Directors

i} Provision for Warranty claims :

Provision for warranty related costs is an estimate made by the management based on possible future outflow on servicing the
customer for any corrective action when the product is soid to the customer. Initial Recognition is based on historical experience. The

estimate of warranty related costs is reviewed annually.

Rs. In Crores
As at
31.03.2022

18.46
6.21
3.41

28.08

Rs. In Crores
As at
31.03.2021

14.30
5.72
0.13

20.15
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)|Movement in Provisions

As at
01st April, 2021

Additions

Amounts used

As at
31st March, 2022

Warranties

5.72 0.49

6.21

26 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
Provision for Taxation less Advance Tax and Tax
deducted at Source

Less: Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement set
off

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

iy Contingent Liabilities
a) Bills discounted with Banks

b) Disputed amounts in respect of GST, Income Tax and
Value Added Tax which are contested in appeal and not
provided for (of which a sum of Rs. NIL (previous year
Rs. 0.34 crores) paid under protest appears under other
current assets in the Balance Sheet)

i) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for

7.07

7.07

6.78

6.78

Rs. In Crores

As at 31.3.2022

2.21

5.71

39.64

28 TERMS OF REPAYMENT OF TERM LOANS AND OTHER LOANS

The term loans and other loans are repayable over a period of 1 to 5 years as per the terms of agreement entered

into with the Banks / others.

29 OTHER INCOME

a) Interest on deposits and advances
b) Dividend Received

¢) Other non-operating income

d) Net Gain on foreign currency transactions and
transiation :

30 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Raw Materiai
Companents

Rs. In Crores
2021-22
0.93

2.97
10.48

14.38

2,364.73
460.54

2,825.27

As at 31.3.2021

38.08

6.75

22.50

Rs. In Crores
2020-21

1.76
0.36
2.07

4.19

1,222.96
324.19
1,547.15
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Rs. In Crores Rs. In Crores
2021-22 2020-21
31 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK - IN - PROGRESS

a) Opening inventory of Finished Goods 63.95 52.20
less: Closing inventory of Finished Goods 136.61 63.95
Net change in stock of Finished Goods (72.66) (11.75)

b) Opening inventory of Work - in - Progress 107.48 98.83
Less: Closing inventory of Work - in - Progress 178.41 107 .48
Net change in stock of Work - in - Progress (70.93) (8.65)
Net change in Finished Goods and Work in (143.59) (20.40)
Progress

32 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

a) Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Commission 306.95 240.23
b) Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 16.20 13.39
C) Staff Welfare expenses 28.98 20.98

352.13 274.60

33 OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of Stores, tools and spare parts 107.96 66.40

Power and fuel 139.62 92.00
Rent including Lease Rent 13.17 13.34
Repairs to

Buildings 11.44 7.57

Machinery 16.24 9.40
Insurance 5.43 482
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income 1.51 1.63
Directors sitting fees 0.17 0.14
Auditors' remuneration

Statutory Audit 0.43 0.39

Tax Audit 0.07 0.06

Certification fees 0.13 0.10

Reimbursement of expenses 0.02 0.65 0.08 0.63
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility 1.06 1.62
(Refer - Note 48)
Freight 52.05 32.23
Net Loss on foreign currency transactions and - 0.49
translation ,
Miscellaneous expenses 53.33 41.29

402.63 271.56

34 FINANCE COSTS

a) Interest expense 63.76 51.41
b) Other borrowing costs (0.66) 1.27

63.10 52.68




Rs. In Crores

Rs. In Crores
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35 Income Tax Expenses 2021-22 2020-21
A. Components of Income Tax Expense
i) Tax Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss :
(a) Current Tax
- on Current year Tax Income 27.08 1.38
(b) Deferred Tax
- on Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences (0.36) 1.59
26.72 2.97
ii) Tax Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income :
(a) Current Tax on Remeasurement of Post Employment 0.29 0.50
Benefit obligation
B. Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Total Comprehensive Income before tax 105.21 11.70
income Tax Expense 26.48 2517% 2.94 25.17%
Income not chargeable to tax 0.62 (0.09)
Income Tax Incentives (0.38) (0.18)
Expenses not admissible 0.42 0.25
Others (0.13) 0.53
Tax Expenses recognised in Profit or Loss 27.01 25.67% 3.47 29.70%
Statement*
2021-22 2020-21
36 Earnings Per Share
Net profit as per P& L account 79.79 8.75
Weighted Average Number of Shares 2,40,64,558 2,40,64,558
Nominal value per share - Rupees 10.00 10.00
Basic & Diluted earnings per share - Rupees 33.16 2.80
37 Dividend of Rs. per equity share amounting to Rs.Crores for the Financial year 2021-22 recommended by Board of

Directors which is subject to the approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual General meeting is not recognised as liability

as at the date of Balance sheet.

38 Disclosures required under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006"

Particulars

a) The Principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining

unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises
- Interest due on above

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Smalil and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to

the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment(which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
and

each accounting year,

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance of a deductibie expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Rs. In Crores

2021-22

74.03

2020-21

46.34

This information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as 'Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises' on the basis of information available with the Company on which the Auditors have relied upon.
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39 Expenditure incurred on Scientific Research and Development Rs. In Crores
2021-22 2020-21

a) Revenue Expenditure 16.18 14.55

b) Capital Expenditure 5.94 1.19

40 Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

a) Provident Fund

In respect of the Employees Provident Fund Scheme, the Company has contributed Rs. 6.55 crores for the year ended 31st March
2022 (previous year Rs. 5.63 crores) to Provident fund Authorities.

b) Superannuation :

The Company has contributed Rs. 0.66 crores for the period 2021-22 (previous year Rs. 0.54 Crores) to the Superannuation trust and
the same is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under the head Employee benefit expenses.

Defined Benefit Plan

¢) In respect of Employees Provident Fund managed through Trust, the Company has contributed Rs. 3.73 crores for the year ended
31st March,2022 (previous year Rs. 2.75 crores) to the Provident Fund Trust. The interest payable by trust to the beneficiaries of trust
as per the rate notified by the Government is met by the trust with contribution from company for the previous year ended 31st March
2022 of Rs. 2.19 crores. (previous year - Rs. 1.87 Crores).

d) Gratuity and Leave Salary

In case of the above Defined Benefit Plans, the liability is determined on the basis of Actuarial Valuation and provided for in the
Statement of Profit and Loss/ Other Comprehensive Income which are disclosed as below :

Rs. in Crores

Gratuity (funded) Leave Salary (Partly funded)
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
Change in defined benefit obligation ’
Opening defined benefit obligation 26.55 27.45 9.62 9.20
Current service cost 3.60 3.90 R -
Interest cost 1.74 1.71 0.57 0.54
Actuarial loss / (gain) due to change in demographic & financial
Assumptions {0.97) {0.70) {0.25) (0.21)
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from experience adjustments 0.73 (2.49) 2.98 212
Benefits paid (2.80) (3.32) (2.36) (2.03)
Closing defined benefit obligation 28.85 26.55 10.56 9.62
Change in fair value of assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 26.08 29 .41 3.65 3.43
Expected return on plan assets 1.72 1.56 0.24 0.23
Actuarial gain / (Loss) arising from return on plan assets {0.09) (0.09) 0.06 (0.01)
Contribution by employer 0.57 552 2.36 2.03
Beneiits paid (2.80) (3.32) (2.36) (2.03)
Closing fair value of plan assets 25.48 26.08 3.95 3.65
Rs. in Crores
Gratuity (funded) Leave Salary (Partly funded)
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of obligations at year end 28.85 26.55 10.56 9.62
Fair value of plan assets at year end 25.48 26.08 3.95 3.65
Net (liability) / asset recognised as on 31st March (3.37) (0.47) (6.61) (5.97)
Expenses recognised in the Profit & Loss Statement
Current Service cost 3.60 3.59 - -
Interest on defined benefit obligation 1.74 1.71 0.57 0.54
Expected return on plan assets (1.72) (1.56) {0.24) (0.23)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss (on Leave Saiary) - - 2.67 1.92
Expenses recognised in the Profit & Loss Alc 3.62 3.74 3.00 2.23
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability
Actuarial loss / (gain) due to change in demographic & financial (0.97) (0.70)
Assumptions
Actuarial foss / (gain) arising from experience adjustments 0.73 (2.49)
Actuarial gain / (Loss) arising from return on plan assets 0.09 0.09
Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {0.15) (3.10) NA NA




Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate (p.a)

Attrition rate

Salary escalation

Gratuity L eave Salary
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
7.28% 6.91% 7.15% 6.76%
1-3% 1-3% 1-3% 1-3%
5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Mortality Rate is lALM (2006-08) Ultimate constantly for both the plans

Risk Exposure :

Through its defined benefit pians, the Company is, exposed to some of the general risks such as investment
Risk, Interest rate risk, Longevity risk and Salary escalation risk and having no entity specific risks .

The sensitivity analysis of the impact of changes in the above assumption is given in the below tables :

a) Gratuity
Change in
Assumption
Assumptions
Discount 0.50%
Salary escalation 0.50%
Mortality 5.00%
Attrition 5.00%
b) Leave Salary
Change in
Assumption
Discount 0.50%
Salary escalation 0.50%
Mortality 5.00%
Attrition 5.00%
c¢) Provident Fund
Change in
Assumption
Discount 0.50%
Shortfall 0.50%
Mortality 5.00%
Attrition 5.00%

Rs. in Crores

Increase in Assumption Decrease in Assumption

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
27.66 25.41 30.13 27.78
30.16 27.79 27.62 25.38
28.86 - 26.56 28.84 26.54
28.88 26.57 28.82 26.53

Rs. in Crores

Increase in Assumption Decrease in Assumption

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
10.25 9.34 10.89 9.92
10.89 9.93 10.25 9.33
10.56 9.62 10.56 9.62
10.56 9.63 10.55 9.62

Rs. in Crores

Increase in Assumption Decrease in Assumption

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
1.07 1.86 1.09 1.89
1.09 1.92 1.06 1.86
1.08 1.87 1.08 1.88
1.08 1.87 1.08 1.88

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Defined
Benefit Obligation as it is unlikely that the change in the assumptions would occur in isolation of one another

as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Provident Fund

2021-22
7.36%
1-3%

2020-21
6.95%
1-3%
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41 Financial Instruments

Accounting classifications and fair values

108

The carrying amounts and fair value of financial instruments by class are as follows:

Financial Assets:
Financial Assets measured at Cost:

i. Investment in Equity shares

Financial assets measured at fair value:

i. Investment measured at Fair value
through other comprehensive income

ii. Investment measured at Fair value
through profit or loss

jii. Derivative financial instruments

Financial assets measured at amortised
cost:

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than Cash and cash
equivalents

Other financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities measured at fair
value:

Borrowings

Derivative financial instruments
Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost:

Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

Fair value hierarchy

Rs. In Crores

As at

31.03.2022

6.42

5.73

2.09

868.23
2.35

0.47
26.77

811.06
959.81
60.52

Rs. In Crores
As at
31.03.2021

6.42

8.17

2.09

706.00
2.1

0.51
22.86

609.18
783.99
43.68

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value
that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

Level 1 hierarchy - Includes Financial instruments measured using quoted prices in the active market.

Level 2 hierarchy - The Fair value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market, is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data.

Level 3 hierarchy - Includes Financial Instruments for which one or more of the significant inputs are not
based on observable market data. This is applicable for unlisted securities.

As at March 31, 2022
Financial Assets :

Equity shares

Derivative financial instruments
Total

Financial Liabilities :
Derivative financial instruments

Level 1

Level 2 Level 3

7.82



As at March 31, 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets :
Equity shares 10.26

Derivative financial instruments -
Financial Liabilities :
Derivative financial instruments

i) The Fair value of an Equity Instruments classified as at Fair value through profit or loss included
under Level 3 Investments is determined using Cost approach.

iy The Fair value of an Equity Instrument classified as at Fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income included under Level 3 Investments is determined using Discounted Cash flow technique in the
previous year and the same has been valued by Registered valuer taking a combination of comparable
companies multiple method and Discounted cash flow method during the year.

i) Valuation inputs are as follows : )

For the year ended
Significant Unobservable Input : 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
a) Risk adjusted discount rate * As per 9.58%
b) Earnings Growth rate Valuation report 2.00%

* Valuation as per the registered valuer, for the purpose of Scheme of Amalgamation of Sundaram
Hydraulics Ltd. and Wheels India Ltd. has been taken as fair value of equity shares held by the
company.

iv) There are no transfers between Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

v) Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Financial Assets and
B101Liabilities are stated at amortized cost which approximates their fair value.

Financial risk management

The Company's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk,
market risk and credit risk. The Risk management policies have been established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls,
periodically review and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly.

a) Management of liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial

liabilities. The Company's approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to
meet its liabilities . In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions.

The Company regularly monitors the rolling forecasts and the actual cash flows to service the financial
liabilities on a day-to-day basis through cash generation from business and by having adequate banking
facilities.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on
contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows along with its carrying value as at the Balance sheet date.

Rs. In Crores

Payable within

More than one year Total
one year
As at 31st March, 2022
Non-Derivative Liabilities
Trade Payables 959.81 - 959.81
Borrowings 573.39 237.67 811.06

Other Financial Liabilities 43.51 17.01 60.52
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Rs. In Crores

Payable within

More than one year Total

one year
Derivative Liabilities
Forward exchange contracts - - -
As at 31st March, 2021
Non-Derivative Liabilities
Trade Payables 793.99 - 793.99
Borrowings 305.24 303.94 609.18
Other Financial Liabilities 28.68 15.00 43.68

Derivative Liabilities

Forward exchange contracts - - -
b) Management of market risk:

The Company is exposed to the following market risks which affects the value of the Financial
instruments :
1. Currency risk

2. Interest rate risk
i) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate

because of the changes in foreign exchange rates. As at 31st March, 2022, the net un-hedged
exposure to the Company on holding such financial assets and liabilities amounts to Rs. 241.88 Crores

The Company manages currency exposures by continuously monitoring the Foreign currency rates with
the transaction rate and takes steps to mitigate the risk using Forward/ Derivative contracts.

Sensitivity to risk

A 5% strengthening of the INR against foreign currencies to which the Company is exposed (net of
hedge) would have led to approximately an additional Gain of Rs. 12.10 Crores in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. A 5% weakening of the INR against these currencies would have led to an equal
impact but with opposite effect.

The Foreign exchange forward contracts as at 31st March, 2022 is "Nil" (31st March,2021 - no
contracts)

i) Interest rate Risk

Interest rate is the risk that the Fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has Rs. 181.40 Crores Borrowings at
Floating rate of Interest as at 31st March, 2022 (previous year Rs. 200.84 Crores).

Sensitivity to risk
An increase in interest rate of 1% will likely to affect the profit negatively by Rs. 1.81 crores and a
decrease of 1% would have led to an equal impact but with opposite effect.

¢) Management of credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if the other party to the financial assets fails to
meet its contractual obligations.

i} Trade Receivables:

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivabies are limited as the customers are
predominantly original equipment manufacturers (OEs). All trade receivables are reviewed and
assessed for default on a quarterly basis. Our historical experience of collecting receivables is that
credit risk is low. Hence, provision for credit loss is not required to be created as per Expected credit
loss (ECL) method. Refer Note (f) for accounting policy on Financial Instruments.

i) Other Financial Assets:

The Company has exposure in Cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks. The
Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March, 2022 is the carrying value of each class
of financial assets as on that date.
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42 Borrowing Costs in accordance with IndAS 23 :

Borrowing Costs capitalised during the year

Capitalisation rate used for Borrowing Costs

111

Rs. In Crores

2021-22 2020-21
2.69 5.38
6.05% 5.39%

43 As per Ind AS 108 = "Operating Segments ", segment information has been provided under the Notes to Gonsolidated

Financial Statements.

44 Disclosure on Accounting for revenue from customers in accordance with IndAS 115

Disaggregated revenue information

Rs. In Crores

a) Type of goods and service 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
a) Sale of products 332013 2003.26
b) Sale of services 31.45 25.71
c) Other operating revenues 335.11 182.78
Total operating revenue 3686.69 221175
in India 2,686.04 1,645.76
Outside India 1,000.65 565.99

b) Timing of revenue recognition At a point of time At a point of time
Sale of products and other operating income 3686.69 2211.75

c) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities Nil Nil

d) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue at contracted prices 3686.69
Revenue from contract with customers 3686.69
Difference -

e) Unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligation Nil

45

if)

i)

Related Party disclosures in accordance with IndAS 24 :

Subsidiary :
WIL Car Wheels Limited

a) Associates:

Axles India Ltd.

b) Associates by virtue of their shareholding in Wheels India Limited :
T.V.Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Ltd.(up to 04th February 2022)

2211.75
2211.75

Nil

Trichur Sundaram Santhanam & Family Private Limited (With effect from 04th February 2022)

Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited

Other Related parties and the relationship where transaction exists :
a) Associate's Subsidiary
Sundaram Industries Private Limited (up to 04th February 2022)
The Associated Auto Parts Private Limited (up to 04th February 2022)
Sundaram Clayton Limited (up to 04th February 2022) iv)

Sl Air Springs Private Limited {(up to 04th February 2022)
TVS Motors Limited (up to 04th February 2022)

TVS Electronics Lid (up to 04th February 2022)
TVS Training & Services Ltd (up to 04th February 2022) v)
Lucas TVS Limited (up to 04th February 2022)

b) Subsidiary's Associate
Topy Industries Limited, Japan

Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. S. Ram
Mr. Srivats Ram

Post Employment Benefit plan entity

Wheels India Employees Gratuity Trust

Wheels India Limited Staff Provident Fund

Wheels India Senior Officers Superannuation Trust



Nature of transactions

Rs. in Crores

Rs. in Crores
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2021-22 2020-21
Subsidiary
Sale of goods 5.20 4.16
Purchase of goods 58.42 33.06
Rendering of Services 11.47 8.67
Receiving of Services 2.50 1.02
Sale of Assets - 0.06
Balance Payable 12.04 6.09
Balance Receivable 2.28 1.94
Associates
Dividend Received - 0.36
Dividend paid 1.05 2.79
Purchase of goods 3.07 0.46
Receiving of Services 3.59 1.05
Rendering of Services 0.08 0.06
Sale of goods 3.40 21.43
Balance Payable 0.01 0.12
Balance Receivable 0.01 1.84
Associate's subsidiary -
Purchase of goods 21.99 11.88
Receiving of Services 1.34 1.89
Rendering of Services - -
Sale of goods 6.94 7.60
Balance Payable 5.03 4.56
Balance Receivable 0.59 1.18
Rs. in Crores Rs. in Crores
Key Managerial Personnel Mr. S. Ram Mr. Srivats Mr. S. Ram Mr.
Ram Srivats
a) Short term employee benefits
Remuneration, Perquisites and Commission 1.14 4.30 0.13 114
Commission outstanding 1.14 2.27 0.13 -
b) Post Empioyment Benefits* 0.34 0.19
¢) Others
Interest on fixed deposits - 0.08 - 0.08
Dividend paid during the year - 0.01 - 0.01
Deposits balance outstanding - 0.98 . 0.81

* As the Liabilities for defined benefit plans are provided on actuarial basis, the amounts pertaining to Key Managerial
Personnel are not included.

Rs. in Crores Rs. in Crores
Employees Benefit Plans 2021-22 2020-21
Contribution Payable :ontribution Payable
Wheels India Employees Gratuity Trust 0.47 3.37 5.21 0.47
Wheels India Limited Staff Provident Fund 373 0.34 2.75 0.25

Wheels India Senior Officers Superannuation Trust 0.67 0.67 0.54 0.54
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46 Disclosures relating to leases in accordance with ind AS116 :

Rs. in Crores

a) Movement in Lease Liability 2021-22 2020-21
Balance as at 31st March 2021 20.58 9.27
Additions during the year 13.07 13.51
Modications to lease (1.66) (0.29)
Finance Cost Accrued during the year 1.44 1.12
Payment of Lease Liabilities (6.74) (3.03)
Balance as at 31st March 2022 26.69 20.58
Current Liability (Note no.22) 9.68 5.58
Non Current liabiliy (Note no. 16) 17.01 156.00
b) Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities Rs. in Crores
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Not later than 1 year 8.06 6.18
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 21.96 17.49
Total Undiscounted Lease Liability as at 31st March, 2022 30.02 23.67

c)Amount recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss
interest on Lease Liabilities 1.44 1.12
Expenses relating to short term leases 0.85 0.69

d)Amount recognised in the statement of cash flow

Total Cash outflow for leases 6.74 3.72
47 Disclosure on Accounting for intangible assets in accordance with Ind AS 38 Rs. In Crores
2021-22 2020-21

Computer software & Technical know how Refer to Note no. 3

Gross carrying amount at the beginning of the year 26.28 25.23
Acquired during the year 1.54 1.06
Deletion during the year 0.13 0.01
Gross carrying amount at the end of the year 27.69 26.28
Gross amortisation at the beginning of the year 23.01 20.66
Amortised during the year 2.05 2.36
Deletion during the year 0.10 0.01
Gross amortisation at the end of the year 24.96 23.01
Net carrying amount at the beginning of the year 3.27 4.57

Net carrying amount at the end of the year 2.73 3.27
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a)
b)

d)
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Disclosures in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility Rs. In Crores
2021-22 2020-21
Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 1.06 1.59
Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 1.06 1.59
Contribution towards :
Promoting Education 0.66 0.40
Rural Development Projects 0.14 0.09
Heaith care 0.02 0.03
National Heritage, Arts and 0.10 0.05
PM Cares, State Disaster 0.49 1.05
Management Authority &
Total 1.41 1.62
Amount spent during the year on
i) Construction / acquisition of any other asset - -
i) on purposes other than (i) above 1.41 1.62
Details of excess CSR expenditure
under Section 135 (5) of the Act :
Balance excess spent as at April 1, 2021 : - .
Amount spent during the year 1.41 162
Amount required to be spent during the 1.06 1.59
Balance excess spent as at March 31, 0.35 0.03
Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021 | Variance *
Current Ratio (times) Current assets Current liabilities 155 144 8%
Debt-equity ratio (times) Debt Equity 1.20 102 18%
Debt service coverage ratio Earning for debt |Debt service
service 1.46 0.78 87%
Return on equity ratio Net profit after tax |Shareholder's
funds 0.13 0.01 1010%
Inventory turnover ratio (times) Consumption Inventory 4.86 4.04 20%
Trade receivable turnover ratio (times) |Sales Average Trade
receivables 5.40 4.31 25%
Trade payables turnover ratio (times) Purchases Average Trade
payables
4.71 3.62 30%
Net capital turnover ratio (times) Total Income Average
Working capital 6.97 5.44 28%
Net profit ratio Net profit after tax | Total income 2.16% 0.30% 508%
Return on capital employed Earnings before |Average Capital
, interestand tax  {employed ’
11.06% 4.97% 123%
Return on investment Dividend Average
Investments - 2.16% -100%

* Reason for Variance

The major reason for variance is due to increase in sales and net profit during the year. The Company has recovered
from Covid 19 pandemic as compared to previous year.




50 Other notes :

115

a) The Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on December 07, 2021, approved the scheme of amalgamation of
Sundaram Hydraulics Limited with the Company and their respective shareholders. Based on receipt of 'No Objection Letter'
dated February 10, 2022 from NSE / SEBI, the Company has filed an application with the Hon'bie NCLT, Chennai on March 16,
2022 and is awaiting necessary directions in this regard.

b) Consequent to the approval of the composite scheme of amalgamation / arrangement, the holding of 71,43,656 equity shares
have been transferred to / vested in M/s. Trichur Sundaram Santhanam & Family Private Limited (TSSFPL), effective February

04, 2022.

c) During the year, the Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Returns/Statements filed
with the banks on a periodical basis are in agreement with the books of accounts.

51 Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to this year's classification.
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Statement of Cash Fiows in accordance with Ind AS 7

Annexed to the Balance Sheet for the year ended 31st March, 2022

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Total Comprehensive Income after tax
Add:

Depreciation

Obsolescence

Lease Liabilities

Effect of Exchange Rate Change
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Taxes on Income

Interest Expenses

Less:
Interest Income

Gain/(Loss) on Fair Valuation of Investments

Dividend Income

Cash flow from Operation before
Working

Cash flow from Working Capital

Trade Receivables

Inventories

Advances & Other Current Assets
Trade Payables

Other Payabies & Provisions

Taxes paid

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)

B Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Sale of Fixed Assets
Dividend Received
Interest Received
Net cash used in Investing Activities (B)

C Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings
Increase in Working Capital Borrowings
Repayment of Lease Liabilities
Dividend paid
Interest paid
Net cash used in Financing Activities (C)

Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents

Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents as per Balance sheet
(Add) /Less: Cash Credit as at the end of the year
Cash & Cash Equivalents for the purpose of IndAS 7

Rs. In Crores

2021-22 2020-21
78.20 8.23
95.02 80.63
0.06 0.81
0.85 0.69
(3.24) 2.89
0.59 0.02
27.01 3.47
63.10 183.39 52.68 141.19
261.59 149.42
0.94 1.76
(2.44) (0.02)
0.00 0.36
{1.50) 2.10
263.09 147.32
(157.14) (252.43)
(257.49) (123.97)
(58.32) (47.28)
163.91 354.90
56.57 (252.38) 48.91 (19.87)
(27.12) 10.10
(16.41) 137.55
{129.63) (111.86)
13.29 0.62
- 0.36
0.77 1.15
{(115.57) (109.73)
71.97 166.30
(92.40) (123.41)
213.21 (6.76)
(7.59) (2.59)
(2.45) (6.41)
(60.82) (54.19)
121.92 (27.06)
(10.06) 0.76
(2.48) 7.58
7.58 6.82
(10.06) 0.76
2.35 2.11
4.83 (5.47)
(2.48) 7.58
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Wheels India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of Wheels India Limited
(“the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary (together referred as “Group™). its associate. which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on the financial statements of the Subsidiary and Associate. the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companics Act. 2013
in the manner so required and give a truc and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India. of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and it’s Associate as at March 31, 2022. of
consolidated profit and other comprchensive income. consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash
flows for the vear then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies act. 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and its Associate in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companics Act. 2013 and the
Rules thereunder. and we have fulfilled our. other cthical respounsibilitics in accordance with these
requirecments and the Code of Ethics. We belicve that the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors arc responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report. but does not
include the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements docs not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statemcents. our responsibility is to read the
other information and. in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

I based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act. 2013 that
give a truc and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Associate
in accordance with the accounting principles gencrally accepted in India. including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that arc rcasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company. as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statcments, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group
and of its associate lo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters rclated to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of it’s associate arc
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain rcasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a matenial misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arisc from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basts of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. whether due to fraud or crror. design and perform audit procedures respounsive to those
risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the
override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013. we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management in Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014.India. E :mail@brahmayya.com | www.brahmayya.com



119
Brahmayyac:co-

Chartered Accountants

d) Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty cxists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate and to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However. future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢) Evaluatc the overall presentation. structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. including the disclosures. and whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the under lying transactions and cvents in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associate to express an opinion on the Consolidated Ind
AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction. supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statcments. which have been audited by other auditors. such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction. supervision, performance and opinion in respect of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entitics
included in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters. the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings.
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may rcasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable. related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be cxpected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matters

a) We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary. whose financial statements reflect total assets
of Rs.257.27 Crores as at March 31. 2022. total revenue from operations of Rs.340.25 Crores and net cash
inflows amounting to Rs.1.10 Crores for the year ended on that date. as considered in the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements. The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the Holding
company s share of net profit of Rs. 3.80 crores for the year ended March 31, 2022, in respect of one
associate. whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements of the
subsidiary and associate company have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished
to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary and associate and our report
in terms of subsection (3) of Scction 143 of the Acl. in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and
associate is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
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Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. and our report on other legal and regulatory
legal requirements. is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requircments

L.

a)

b)

¢)

d)

e)

h)

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on the financial statements of subsidiary and associate. as noted in the "Other Matters’
paragraph. we report. to the extent applicable. that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.

In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law relating (o preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheel. the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income). the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agrecment with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial stalements.

In our opinion. the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31. 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors of subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in India. none
of the directors of the Holding Company. its subsidiary included in the group and its associate
companies incorporated in India arc disqualified as on March 31. 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect Lo the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and
its associate. incorporated in India and the operating cffectiveness of such controls. refer to our
scparate report in “Annexure A7 which is based on the auditors™ report of the Holding Company.
subsidiary company. associatc companies incorporated in India.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act. as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the
remuneration paid by the Group to their directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act read with schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companics (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position of Group in its Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

.
A
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(i) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foresceable losses.

(iii) There has been generally no delay in transferring amounts. required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The respective Managements of the company and its subsidiary and associate which are
companies incorporated in India. whose financial statements have been audited under the
Companies Act. have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary and associate
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief. no funds (which arc material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or
any of such subsidiary and associate to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiary
and associate ("Ultimate Bencficiaries") or provide any guarantee. security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the company and its subsidiary and associate which are
incorporated in India. whose financial statements have been audited under the Companies Act,
have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary and associate respectively that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in
the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of such subsidiary and associate from
any person or entity, including forcign entity ("Funding Parties"). with the understanding,.
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiary and
associate shall, whether, directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and the auditors of the subsidiary and associate which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Companies Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors notice that has caused us or other
auditors to believe that the representations as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

() The final dividend declared and paid by the Parent Company during the year in respect of the previous
financial year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act 2013 to the extent it applies to payment of
dividend.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to
the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013, according to
the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Holding
Company and reports of subsidiary company and associate company issued by the respective auditors and
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is
applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

Place: Chennati

Date: May 20, 2022
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“Annexure - A” to the Auditors® Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of
our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies, Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group as of and for the
year ended March 31. 2022. we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Wheels
India Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company and its associate
company which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company, its associate company
which are companies incorporated in India, arc responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company s policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and crrors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act. 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on
Auditing. issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the asscssment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
whether due to frand or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of
the subsidiary company and associate company, which are companies incorporated in India in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below. is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company,
its subsidiary company and its associate company. which are companies incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary (o permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company arc being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting. including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the
Holding Company. its subsidiary companies and associate companies. which are companies incorporated in
India, have, in all material respects. an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based
on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section [43(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to subsidiary company and one associate
company, which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the
auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm/Regn No. 0005118

! - LL,& W'V\‘g"\}

L. Rayi,§mkar

Partner

Membership No. 025929

UDIN - 22025929AJKDLH364(0)

Place: Chennai

Date: May 20. 2022

—
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT

Rs. In Crores

PARTICULARS Note No. 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
| ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 874.75 860.92
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2 125.51 113.86
(c) Other Intangible Assets 3 2.82 3.39
(d) Right of Use Assets 4 25.54 19.14
(e) Financial Assets
i) Investments 5 24.50 23.14
iii) Others 6 21.18 20.15
(f) Other Non Current Assets 7 19.00 6.61
1,093.30 1,047.21
2. Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 799.88 547.87
(b) Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables 9 891.34 740.98
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10a 3.57 2.22
ii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 10b 0.66 1.25
iv) Others 11 7.15 4.06
(c) Other current assets 12 178.06 132.71
1,880.66 1,429.09
TOTAL 2,973.96 2,476.30
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 24.06 24.06
(b) Other Equity 14 709.63 636.63
Equity attributabie to the owners of
the Company 733.69 660.69
Non Controlling Interest 15 17.00 19.31
Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 16 252.02 334.51
ii) Lease Liabilites 17 17.18 15.08
(b) Non Current Provisions 18 7.63 7.74
(¢) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 19 42.39 45.87
319.22 403.21

2. Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 20 596.98 342.48
ii) Trade payables
A) total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises; and 21 74.60 46.89
B) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 24 1.009.86 850.00
iii)Lease Liabilties 22 9.68 558
iv) Others 23 35.96 2473
(b) Other current liabilities 24 142.14 95.43
(c) Short-term provisions 25 28.23 21.40
d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 26 6.60 6.57
1,904.05 1,393.09
TOTAL 2,973.96 2,476.30
Significant Accounting Policies B
S. RAM - SRIV, M S PRASAD Per our report of even date
Chairman Managing Director Director for BRAHMAYYA & Co.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH

Rs. In Crores

Note no. 2022 2021
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products 3,591.62 2,201.11
Sale of Services 23.36 17.79
Other operating revenues 351.51 194.47
Revenue from Operations 3,966.49 2,413.37
Other income 29 12.41 2.36
TOTAL INCOME 3,978.90 2,415.73
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 30 3,044.73 1,697.43
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Work-in-
progress 31 (142.85) (20.81)
Employee benefit expense 32 379.05 299.51
Finance Costs 34 71.49 58.87
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1,3 &4 100.96 85.60
Other Expenses 33 430.94 29424
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,884.32 2,414.84
Profit before exceptional items and tax 94.58 0.89
Exceptional items - -
Add: Share of Profit in Associate (Net of Tax) 3.22 (0.09)
Profit before tax 97.80 0.80
Tax expense: 35
Current tax 27.08 1.38
Deferred tax (3.46) 23.62 (0.70) 0.68
Profit for the year 74.18 .12
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Changes in Fair valuation of Equity Instrument (0.02)
through Other Comprehensive Income (2.45)
- Remeasurements of post employment defined 1.06 215
benefit plan
- Income tax relating to the remeasurements (0.27) (0.54)
- Share of OCl in Associate (net of tax) 0.58 (1.08) (0.04) 1.55
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 73.10 1.67
Profit for the year attributable to
-Owners of the Company 76.47 1.82
- Non Controlling interest (2.29) (1.70)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
attributable to
-Owners of the Company (1.06) 1.52
- Non Controlling Interest (0.02) 0.03
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to
-Owners of the Company 75.41 3.34
- Non Controlling Interest (NCI) (2.31) (1.67)
Earnings per equity share: 36
1. Basic 31.78 0.76
2. Diluted 31.78 0.76
Significant Accounting Policies B
F ) AN N

S. RAM / SRIVAT SAD Per our report of even date
Chairman Manading Director irector for BRAHMAYYA & Co.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31.03.2022

Rs. In Crores

As at 31.03.2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 24.06 24.06
Changes in Equity share capital during
the year - .
Balance at the end of the year 24.06 24.06
B) OTHER EQUITY
Other Comprehensive
Reserves and Surplus income (OCI) Non
Capital Securities |General Retained Equity |Otheritems
Reserve* Premium |Reserve |Earnings | Instrument |of OCI
A. Balance as at 31st March,2020 ~ 131.52 411.28 101.83 2.04 (7.00) 20.98 | 660.65
Profit for the year 1.82 (1.70) 0.12
Remeasurement of defined benefit
plans 1.54 0.03 1.57
Changes in Fair Valuation of Equity
Instruments (0.02) (0.02)
B. Total Comprehensive income for
the year 2020-21 - - - 1.82 (0.02) 1.54 (1.67) 167
Final Dividend 2019-20 (6.38) (6.38)
Transfer to General Reserve 2.00 (2.00) -
C. Total - - 2.00 (8.38) - - - (6.38)
D. Balance as at 31st March,2021
(A+B+C) - 131.52 | 413.28 95.27 2.02 (5.46) 19.31 | 655.94
Profit for the year 76.47 (2.29) 74.18
Changes in Fair valuation of Equity
Instrument (2.45) (2.45)
Remeasurement of defined benefit
plans 1.39 ©02)| 137
E. Total Comprehensive Income for
the year 2021-22 - - - 76.47 (2.45) 1.39 (2.31)] 73410
Final Dividend 2020-21 (2.41) (2.41)
Transfer to General Reserve -
F. Total - - - (2.41) - - - (2.41)
G. Balance as at 31st March,2022
(D+E+F) - 131.52 413.28 169.33 {0.43) (4.07) 17.00 | 726.63
* Capital Reserve is Rs. 17\1 3/;‘
Chaiem ‘/ . EW/G S PRASA Per our report of even date
Chairman Managing Director i r for BRAHMAYYA & Co.
DIN:00018309 DIN:00063415 DIN:00063667 Chartered Accountants
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A. Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) relate to Wheels India Limited ('the Company) and the
Company's subsidiary and the share of profit in its associate (jointly considered as "Group" hereinafter). The
CFS have been prepared on the following basis:

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the CFS from the date on which control is acquired
until the date on which control ceases to exist. The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Parent (WIL) and its Subsidiary line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Inter-Group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group Companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Consolidated
Statement of profit and loss, Consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively

b) Associates

The CFS include the Share of profit of an associate company which have been accounted for using equity
method as per "Accounting Standard (IndAS) 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures" in CFS.
Accordingly, the share of profit of the associate company has been added to the cost of investments.

The difference between the cost of investments in the associate and the share of net assets at the time of
acquisition of shares in the associate is identified in the CFS as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may
be.

The financial statements of an Associate and Subsidiary used in the CFS are drawn upto the same reporting
date as that of the Company i.e. 31st March, 2022

The CFS have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company's
separate financial statements.

Following entities have been considered in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements:

% of
Name of the Entity Relationship | , Country of |Holding and
Incorporation Voting
power
WIL Car Wheels Limited Subsidiary India 74.00%
Axles India Limited * Associate India 9.51%

* By virtue of Articles of Association of Axles India Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter refered to as 'Ind AS') notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015.

The financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies
are applied consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles,
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at
the Balance Sheet date, reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period and disclosure of
contingent liabilities as at that date. The estimates and assumptions used in these financial statements are
based upon the management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the
financial statements.

The Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal operating
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The Group's
normal operating cycle has been ascertained as 12 months based on the nature of products and the time
between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated.

Property, Plant and Equipment ,
a) Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of GST credits as reduced by accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

b) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment has been provided under the Straight Line Method in
accordance with Schedule 1l of the Companies Act 2013.

¢) Leasehold Land: Premium paid on Leasehold Land is amortised over the lease period.

d) The expenditure during construction period refating to the new project till the commencement of
commercial production is capitalised and allocated to the relevant equipments.

e) In accordance with IndAS 23, the borrowing costs attributable to the qualifying assets that necessarily
takes substantial period to get ready for its intended use are capitalised.

f) Grants received for Investment in Property Plant & Equipment are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

g) The cost of software relating to ERP is amortised over the estimated useful life viz., 5 years. The cost of
other intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful life viz., 3 years.

h) Upon first time adoption of IndAS, the carrying value of all the assets as at Transition date i.e. 01st April
2016 has heen considered as its Deemed cost.

Inventories

The stock of raw materials, work-in-progress, stores, loose tools and goods in transit are valued at cost (net
of GST credits) on weighted average basis. . _
The stock of finished goods are valued at cost (net of GST credits including appropriate overheads) or net

realisable value whichever is lower.
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Financial instruments
i) Financial assets:

Financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of financial assets which are recognised at fair value
through profit and loss, its transaction cost is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. In other cases,
the acquisition cost of the financial assets is net of the attributable transaction cost.
Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at:
i} Amortised cost or
ii) Fair Value through profit and loss(FVTPL)
i) Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Trade receivables and Loans:

Trade receivables and Loans are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at
amortised cost, using Effective Interest Rate method net of any expected credit losses. The Effective Interest
Rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of financial instrument.

Investments: ,
All investments in equity instruments (other than in Subsidiaries and Associates) classified under financial
assets, are initially measured at fair value. Fair Value changes on an Equity instruments is recognised in the

- Statement of Profit and Loss or Other Comprehensive Income,as the case may be.

Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as 'other income' in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. '

ii) Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are initially measured at amortised cost. In case of trade payables, they are initially

recognised at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortised cost using Effective Interest
Rate method.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of an event and is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligations. Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurence or non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that a outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the control over the goods have been transferred to
customers. Service income is recognised once the obligations are performed.Interest income is recognised at
Effective Interest Rate method. Dividend income is recognised when right to receive the payment is
established. Export incentives are recognised as revenue as and when exports are made.

Employee Benefits
Provident Fund:

Eligible employees receive benefits from Provident Fund which is defined contribution plan. Both, the
employees and the Group make monthly contributions to the regional provident fund authorities/ Wheels India
Employees Provident Fund Trust. The Group has an obligation to make good the shortfall,if any between the
return from the investments made from the trust and the notified interest rate accrued to the employees
account.
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Gratuity:

The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees eligible for gratuity at the time of
retirement, death, incapacity or termination of employment. Liabilities with regard to the gratuity plan are
determined by actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date based upon which the Group contributes all
the ascertained liabilities to LIC, which is the administrator of the pian.

Unencashed Leave Salary:

Unencashed leave salary is accounted on actuarial valuation and the Group contributes part of the
ascertained liabilities to SBI Life Insurance Group Limited, which is the administrator of the plan.

Others:

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as Employees State Insurance, Superannuation are
charged as expenses based on the amount of contribution required to be made. These benefits are classified
as defined contribution schemes as the Group has no obligation beyond what has been recognised as
expense in the Statement of profit and loss.

Research & Development expenses:

Revenue expenditure on Research & Development is charged to profit & loss account in the year in which it is
incurred.

Operating Leases:

The Group has applied IND AS 116 using maodified retrospective approach. The Lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of remaining payments as at the commencement date discounted using the
lessee's incremental borrowing rate. The cost of Right of Use Assets shall comprise of amount of initial
mesurement of lease liability adjusted for any payments made after or before the commencement of lease
term less any lease incentive received. The Leased Assets are depreciated on straight line basis over the
period of lease.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in Foreign currencies are accounted at the rates of exchange prevailing as on the date of the
transaction. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of such transactions are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are reinstated at the rate of exchange
prevailing on the reporting date.

Derivative contracts:

Forward contracts are entered to hedge the foreign currency risk.The profit/loss arising on these contracts is
accounted for as income/expenditure on the date of settlement of the contract.

The outstanding contracts are Marked to Market on the reporting date and the net loss/gain arising therefrom
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Earnings per share:

Earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable to
the equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

Income taxes

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year and is determined in accordance
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognised using the Balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amount.

Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognised only if
there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise such assets.
Other deferred tax assets are recognised if there is reasonable certainty that there will be sufficient future
taxable income available to realise such assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.




NON CURRENT ASSETS - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Rs. In Crores

Description Gross Block at cost Depreciation/Amortisation Net Block
As At Additions | Deletions As At As At Additions | Deletions As At As At As At
31.03.2021 | (including 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Borrowing
Cost
Capitalised)

1. TANGIBLE ASSETS
Land (Free hold) 14.45 - - 14.45 - - 14.45 14.45
Land (Lease hold) 27.50 - 1.81 25.69 1.21 0.27 0.24 1.24 24.45 26.29
Buildings 175.64 39.21 12.57 202.28 56.34 6.42 5.05 57.71 144.57 119.30
Plant and Equipment 1428.28 76.88 22.04 1483.12 736.45 83.69 16.56 803.58 679.54 691.83
Furniture and Fixtures 7.06 2.60 0.48 9.18 513 0.49 0.44 5.18 4.00 1.93
Vehicles 0.14 0.01 0.04 0.1 0.10 - 0.04 0.06 0.05 0.04
Office Equipment 24.37 3.15 2.31 25.21 17.29 2.42 2.19 17.52 7.69 7.08

1677.44 121.85 39.25 1760.04 816.52 93.29 24.52 885.29 874.75 860.92
3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer Software 21.563 1.44 0.13 22.84 18.95 1.33 0.10 20.18 2.66 2.58
Technical Know-how 5.65 0.16 - 5.81 4.84 0.81 - 5.65 0.16 0.81

27.18 1.60 0.13 28.65 23.79 2.14 0.10 25.83 2.82 3.39

Total 1704.62 123.45 139.38 1788.69 840.31 95.43 24.62 911.12 877.57
Previous year 1506.87 203.65 5.90 1704.62 763.04 81.68 4.41 840.31 864.31

132



133

4. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS Rs. In Crores
Gross Block at cost Depreciation/Amortisation Net Block
Description As At . . As At As At - Additio . As At As At As At
31.03.2021 | Additions| Deletions | .4 o4 5059 | 34.03.2029 | Additions | = | Deletions | 4, 03 5022 | 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021

Leased Assets 24.20 11.69 35.89 5.06 5.53 0.24 10.35 25.54 19.14
Total 24.20 11.69 ; 35.89 5.06 5.53 0.24 10.35 25.54
Previous year 10.32 1418 0.30 2420 1.16 392] 0.0 0.01 5.06 19.14
2. CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 31.03.2022  31.03.2021

a) Buildings 13.81 28.10

b) Plant and Machinery* 111.70 85.76

125.51 113.86

* Includes Machinery in Transit of Rs. .Nil (Previous year - Rs. 30 Crs)

Ageing OF CWIP as on March 31, 2022

Amount in Capital work in progress
Less than 1-2 years |2-3 years More than 3 Total
one year years
Project in Progress 83.66 9.99 28.11 3.75 125.51

Ageing OF CWIP as on March 31, 2021

Amount in Capital work in progress

Less than 1-2 years |2-3 years More than 3 Total
one year years

Project in Progress 37.13 41.07 33.76 1.90 113.86
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CONSOLIDATED - NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

Rs. In Crores Rs. In Crores
As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

NON CURRENT ASSETS
5 INVESTMENTS
Unquoted
Investment in Equity Instruments
i) In Associate Company at Equity Method
Axles India Limited 2,72 272
24,24,661 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up

(includes Goodwill on Acquisition of shares of Rs.0.97 crores)

Add: Share of profit 13.96 10.16
16.68 12.88
i) In Other Entity at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income
Sundaram Hydraulics Limited 7.15 7.15

71,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

Add/(Less): Change due to Fair Valuation* (1.42) 5.73 1.02 8.17

* Valuation as per the registered valuer, for the purpose of Scheme of Amalgamation of Sundaram Hydraulics
Ltd. and Wheels India Ltd. has been taken as fair value of equity shares held by the company for the period
ending 31st March, 2022..

iit) In Other Entities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

MEFCO Engineers Private Limited 0.20 0.20
20,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid up

Siva Electric Generation Private Limited 0.16 0.16

1,62,172 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

Gamma Green Power Private Limited

12,00,062 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 1.20 1.20

Beta Wind Farm Private Limited

2,25,370 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 0.43 0.43

Siva Green Energy India Private Limited

95,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 0.10 2.09 0.10 2.09
24.50 23.14

6 NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

a) Security Deposits (unsecured - considered good) 20.56 19.58

b) Advances to employees 0.62 0.57
21.18 20.15

7 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

a) Advances for Capital goods 18.60 5.93

b) Prepaid expenses 0.40 0.68
19.00 6.61

CURRENT ASSETS

8 INVENTORIES

a) Raw Materials 374.86 284.49
(Includes Goods in Transit- Rs. 28.52 crs)
(previous year - 15.93 Crs)

b) Work - in Progress 180.72 109.96
c) Finished goods 140.07 67.94
d) Stores and Spares 60.28 55.36
e) Loose tools 43.95 30.12

799.88 547.87
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Rs. In Crores
As at
31.03.2021

Rs. in Crores
As at
31.03.2022
9 TRADE RECEIVABLES

a) Unsecured - Considered good 891.34

891.34

740.98
740.98

Trade receivable ageing schedule March 31, 2022

Particulars

Not Due

Less than 6
months

6 months -1
year

1-2years

2 -3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables
considered good
which have significant increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Disputed trade receivables
considered good
which have significant increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Total

705.85

179.93

4.10

1.46

891.34

705.85

179.93

4.10

1.46

891.34

* it includes unbilled amount of Rs. 37.04 Crores.

Trade receivable ageing schedule March 31, 2021

Particulars

Not Due

Less than 6
months

6 months - 1
year

1-2years

2 - 3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables
considered good
which have significant increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Disputed trade receivables
considered good
which have significant increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Total

618.08

111.65

8.21

2.70

0.30

0.04

740.98

618.08

111.65

8.21

2.70

0.30

740.98

* it includes unbilled amount of Rs. 39.36 crores



10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

a i) Current Accounts

1

i) Cash on hand

iii) Fixed Deposits

Bank Balances with more than three months maturity
i} Fixed Deposits
(as a Guarantee to Commercial Taxes Department)
i) Unclaimed Dividend Accounts

iii) Earmarked Fixed Deposit Balances - Margin money
for Guarantee availed

1 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS
Advances to employees
Duty Drawback Receivable
Export Incentive License
Interest accrued on deposits and investments

12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured - Considered good

a) Advances other than Capital Advances

Advances to Vendors
Other Advances

p) Balance with GST/ Central Excise authorities
¢) VAT receivable

d) Export incentives receivable

e) GST refund receivable on Exports

f) Prepaid expenses

13 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

a)

b)

c)

e)

Authorised
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
2,40,64,558 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

Rs. In Crores

Rs. In Crores

Recongiliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year
Change in Equity Share capital During the year

Outstanding at the end of the year
Rights, Preferences and restrictions

As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
2.66 1.38
0.03 0.07
0.88 0.77
3.57 _ 2.22
0.13 0.13
0.34 0.38
0.19 0.74
0.66 1.25
2.74 2.41
1.60 1.06
2.76 0.56
0.05 0.03
7.15 4.06
3.64 4.41
3.31 6.95 1.84 6.25
118.65 90.60
- 0.90
742 8.95
16.49 13.75
28.85 12.26
178.06 132.71
Rs. In Crores Rs. In Crores
As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
50.00 50.00
24.06 24.06
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
No. of shares Rs.InCrores No.ofshares Rs.In Crores
2,40,64,558 24.06 2,40,64,558 24.06
2,40,64,558 2406  2,40,64,558 24.06

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each member is entitled to one vote by e
voting (remote e - voting/ e - voting at the meeting), every shareholder is entitled to vote in proportion to their holdings.

Shareholding of shareholders holding more than 5%
of shares as at

T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Limited

Southern Roadways Private Limited

Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited

Trichur Sundaram Santhanam & Family Private Limited

f) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group

T V Sundram lyengar & Sens Private Limited
Southern Roadways Private Limited

Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited

Trichur Sundaram Santhanam & Family Private
Limited *

india Motor Parts & Accessories Limited

Refer Note no. 50 (b)

31.03.2022
(Number of
shares)
56,01,117
71,43,656

31.03.2022
{Number of
shares)

56,01,117
71,43,656

10,98,655

31.03.2022
(Percentage of
Total Shares)

23.27%
29.69%

4.57%

31.03.2021
(Number of

shares)
48,11,028
22,32,628
56,01,117

31.03.2021
(Number of
shares)
49,11,028
22,32,628
56,01,117

10,98,655

31.03.2021
(Percentage of
Total Shares)
20.41%
9.28%

23.27%

4.57%
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As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
14 OTHER EQUITY
a) Capital Reserves* - -
b) Securities Premium 131.52 131.52
c) General Reserves 413.28 413.28
d) Retained Earnings 169.33 96.27
e) Other Comprehensive Income Reserve (4.50) (3.44)
* Capital Reserve is Rs. 1713/- 709.63 636.63
Refer Note no. 37
15 Non Controlling Interest Ownership Interest held by Non Controlling
Interest (%)
- Place of
Name of the Subsidiary Incorporation 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
WIL Car Wheels Limited (WCWL) India 26% 26%
NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
16 BORROWINGS
A. SECURED BORROWINGS
a. Term Loans from Banks
By first Charge by way of hypothecation of specific 104.01 130.33
machinery and fixed assets of the group at Mambattu,
Andhra Pradesh and freehold land at Vanod, Gujarat.
b. Term Loans from others
By first Charge by way of hypothecation of specific 24.66 49.21
machinery
B. UNSECURED BORROWINGS
a. Fixed Deposits 123.35 154.97
Includes Rs. 0.79 crores received from Directors
(previous year Rs. 0.19 crores })
252.02 334.51
Terms of Repayment : Refer Note no.28
17 Lease Liabilities
Lease Liabilities* 17.18 15.09
(*Refer Note no. 46) 17.18 15.09
18 PROVISIONS
Provisions for employee benefits 7.63 7.74
7.63 7.74
19 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Deferred Tax Liabilities 63.26 61.83
Deferred Tax Assets (20.39) (15.48)
Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement (0.48) (0.48)
42.39 45.87
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities Rs. In Crores Rs. In Crores
Charge in Charge in
31.03.2022  Statementof  31.03.2021 Statement of
Profit or Loss Profit or Loss
a) Deferred Tax Liability
i} Depreciation 61.39 2.08 59.33 3.85
iiy Export Incentives 1.73 (0.47) 2.20 0.45
iiiy Remeasurement of Financial Liabilities 0.14 (0.16) 0.30 0.10
63.26 1.45 61.83 4.40
Less:
b) Deferred Tax Asset
i} Expenses allowable for tax purpose on payment basis 4.90 (0.25) 5.15 1.12
iiy Unabsorbed depreciation under the Income Tax Act, 15.18 5.14 10.04 3.65
eligible for set off in subsequent financil years
i}y Expenses not admissable 0.31 0.02 0.29 0.28
¢} Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement 0.48 - 0.48 (0.84)
Net Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets) (a-b-c) 42.39 (3.46) 45.87 0.18
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As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
BORROWINGS
SECURED BORROWINGS
Loans repayable on demand from Banks 297.63 150.48
Hypothecation by way of first charge on all
movable assets present and future, consisting
of stock of raw materials, work-in-progress,
finished goods, consumable stores and spares,
goods-in-transit and book debts.
UNSECURED BORROWINGS
LLoans repayable on demand from Banks 137.45 74.06
Fixed Deposits 8.75 10.64
Includes NIL received from Directors (previcus
year - NIL )
Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer 153.15 107.31
Note no. 28)
(Includes Rs. 0.19 crores received from
Directors (previous year Rs. 0.79 crores))
596.98 342.49
TRADE PAYABLES
Dues to Micro Enterprises and Smali Enterprises 74.60 46.89
Dues to others 1,009.86 850.00
1,084.46 896.89
(Refer Note no.38 for details of dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises)
Trade payables ageing schedule March 31, 2022
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 1-2 2-3years More than \.p.
year years 3 years
Undisputed Trade Payables
Micro and Small Enterprises 74.25 0.35 74.60
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 793.92 215.91 0.01 0.02 1,009.86
Disputed Trade Payables
Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Total 868.17 216.26 0.01 0.02 - 1,084.46
Trade payabies ageing schedule March 31, 2021
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 1-2 2 -3 years More than Total
year years 3 years
Undisputed Trade Payables
Micro and Small Enterprises 46.23 0.64 0.02 - - 46.89
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 644.93 204.36 0.48 0.17 0.06 850.00
Disputed Trade Payables
Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Total 691.16 205.00 0.50 017 0.06 896.89
Lease Liabilities
Lease Liabilities* 9.68 5.58
(*Refer Note no. 46) 9.68 558
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS
Creditors for capital goods (includes due to 13.53 8.80
Micro enterprises and Smal! enterprises Rs
.1.88 crores (previous year Rs. 0.79 crores)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 13.58 9.29
Unclaimed Dividends 0.34 0.38
Trade Deposits 1.47 1.39
Recovery from Employees 3.21 2.24
Unclaimed matured deposits and interest 3.83 2.63
accrued thereon
35.96 2473



24 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from Customers
Statutory dues
Employee Benefits Payable
Provision for expenses

25 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

a) Provision for employee benefits
b) Provision for Warranty (Refer Note below)
c) Due to Directors

i} Provision for Warranty claims :

Rs. In Crores
As at
31.03.2022

14.88
113.28
5.33
8.65

142.14

18.61
6.21
3.41

28.23

Rs. In Crores
As at
31.03.2021

8.07
76.31
3.98
7.07

95.43

15.55
5.72
0.13

21.40
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Provision for warranty related costs is an estimate made by the management based on possible future outflow on servicing the customer
for any corrective action when the product is sold to the customer. Initial Recognition is based on historical experience. The estimate of

warranty reiated costs is reviewed annually.

i}/ Movement in Provisions As at 01st Additions Amounts used As at 31st
April, 2021 March,2022
Warranties 572 0.49 - 6.21
26 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
Provision for Taxation less Advance Tax and 6.60 6.57
Tax deducted at Source
Less: Minimum Alternate Tax credit - -
entiltlement set off
6.60 6.57

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

i) Contingent Liabilities

a) Bills discounted with Banks

b) Disputed amounts in respect of GST, Vaiue Added Tax
which are contested in appeal and not provided for (of which
a sumof Rs. NIL (previous year Rs. 0.34 crores) paid
under protest appears under other current assets in the

Balance Sheet)
il Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital account and not provided for

28 TERMS OF REPAYMENT OF TERM LOANS AND OTHER LOANS

Rs. In Crores

2.91

5.71

44.89

As at 31.3.2022 As at 31.3.2021

38.08

6.75

24.48

The term loans and other loans are repayable over a period of 1 to 5 years as per the terms of agreement entered

into with the Banks / others.

29 OTHER INCOME

a) Interest on deposits and advances
b) Profit on sale of fixed assets (Net)
c¢) Dividend Received

d) Other non-operating income

e) Net Gain on foreign currency transactions and
translation

Rs. In Crores
2021-22

0.97
0.06

0.90
10.48

12.41

Rs. In Crores
2020-21

1.82

0.36
0.18

2.36



Rs. In Crores

2021-22

30 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Raw Material 2,578.12
Components 466.61
3,044.73

31 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK - IN - PROGRESS

a) Opening inventory of Finished Goods 67.98
Less: Closing inventory of Finished Goods 140.07
Net change in stock of Finished Goods (72.09)

b) Opening inventory of Work - in - Progress 109.96
Less: Closing inventory of Work - in - Progress 180.72
Net change in stock of Work - in - Progress (70.76)
Net change in Finished Goods and Work - in - (142.85)
Progress

32 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

a) Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Commission 330.95
b)  Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 17.31
C) Staff Welfare expenses 30.79

379.05

33 OTHER EXPENSES

0.48
0.08
0.11
0.09
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Rs. In Crores
2020-21

1,367.33
330.10

1,697.43

55.91
67.98

(12.07)

101.22
109.96

(8.74)

(20.81)

262 .41
14.50
22.60

299.51

Consumption of Stores, tools and spare parts 115.92
Power and fuel 151.43
" Rent including Lease Rent 13.51
Repairs to
Buildings 11.89
Machinery 16.64
Insurance 5.89
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income 1.70
Directors sitting fees 0.20
Auditors' remuneration
Statutory Audit 0.52
Tax Audit 0.09
Certification fees 0.14
Reimbursement of expenses 0.02 0.77
Expenditure on Corperate Social Responsibility 1.06
( refer Note - 48)
Freight 53.77
Net Loss on foreign currency transactions and
translation -
Miscellaneous expenses 58.16
430.94

34 FINANCE COSTS

a) Interest expense 72.15
b) Other borrowing costs (0.66)
71.49

71.98
101.79
13.44

7.80
9.75
5.13
1.92
0.17

0.76
1.62

33.78
0.53

45.57

294.24

57.60
1.27

58.87
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37

Income Tax Expenses
A. Componets of income Tax Expense
i) Tax Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss :
(a) Current Tax
- on Current year Tax Income
(b) Deferred Tax
- on Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences

it} Tax Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income :

(a) Current Tax on Remeasurement of Post Employment Benefit
obligation

B. Reconciliation of Effective tax Rate

Total Comprehensive Income before tax
Less: Share of Profit of an Associate

Total Comprehensive income before tax
(excluding Share of an Associate)

Income Tax Expense
Income not chargeable to tax
Income Tax incentives
Expenses not admissible
Others
Tax Expenses recognised in Profit or Loss Statement*

Earnings Per Share

Net profit as per P& L account

Weighted Average Number of Shares
Nominal value per share - Rupees

Basic & Diluted earnings per share - Rupees

Rs. In Crores
2021-22

27.08

(3.46)

23.62

0.27

96.99
3.80
93.19

23.46
0.62
(0.38)
0.42
(0.23)
23.89

141

Rs. In Crores

2020-21
1.38
(0.70)
068
0.54
2.89
(0.13)
3.02
25.17% 0.76 25.17%
(0.09)
(0.16)
0.21
0.50
25.63% 1.22 40.38%
2021-22 2020-21
76.47 1.82
2,40,64,558 2,40,64,558
10.00 10.00
31.78 0.76

Dividend of Rs.8.30 Per equity share amounting to Rs. 19.97 Crores for the Financial year 2020-21 recommended by Board of Directors
which is subject to the approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual General meeting is not recognised as liability as at the date of

Balance sheet.

38 Disclosures required under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006"

Particulars

Rs. In Crores

2021-22 2020-21

a) The Principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any

supplier as at the end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises
- Interest due on above

74.60 46.89

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium - -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier

¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment(which have been

beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, untit such - -
date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006.

This information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as 'Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises’ on the basis of information available with the Group on which the Auditors have relied upon.



Rs. In Crores

39 Expenditure incurred on Scientific Research and Development

a)
b)

2021-22 2020-21
Revenue Expenditure 16.18 14.55
Capital Expenditure 5.94 1.18

40 Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

a) Provident Fund

In respect of the Employees Provident Fund Scheme, the Group has contributed Rs. 7.36 crores for the year ended 31st March 2022
(previous year Rs. 6.42 crores) to Provident fund Authorities. The Group has no obligation towards the Interest accumulation thereon.

b) Superannuation :

The Group has contributed Rs. 0.66 crores for the period 2020-21 (previous year Rs. 0.54 Crores) to the Superannuation trust and the
same is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under the head Employee benefit expenses.

Defined Benefit Pian

¢) In respect of Employees Provident Fund managed through Trust, the Company has contributed Rs. 3.73 crores for the year ended
31st March,2022 (previous year Rs. 2.75 crores) to the Provident Fund Trust. The interest payable by trust to the beneficiaries of trust as
per the rate notified by the Government is met by the trust with contribution from company for the previous year ended 31st March, 2021
of Rs. 2.19 crores. (previous year - Rs. 1.87 crores).

d) Gratuity and Leave Salary

in case of the above Defined Benefit plans, the liability is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation and provided for in the
Statement of Profit and Loss/ Other Comprehensive Income which are disclosed as below :

Rs. in Crores

Gratuity (funded) Leave Salary (Partly funded)
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Change in defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 28.99 30.04 14.09 10.40
Current service cost 3.78 410 - -
Interest cost 1.91 1.87 0.57 0.61
Actuarial loss / (gain) due to change in demographic &
financial assumptions {1.08) (0.78) {0.25) (0.24)
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from experience adjustments 0.90 (2.57) 2.98 2.63
Benefits paid (2.91) (3.67) (2.36) (2.31)
Closing defined benefit obligation 31.59 28.99 12.03 11.09
Change in fair value of assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 27.92 2434 3.65 3.43
Expected return on plan assets 1.85 1.68 0.24 0.23
Actuarial gain / (Loss) arising from Return on plan assets 0.11) (0.10) 0.06 (0.01)
Contribution by employer 0.75 567 2.36 2.31
Benefits paid (2.91) (3.67) (2.36) (2.31)
Closing fair value of plan assets 27.50 27.92 3.95 3.65
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of obligations at year end 31.59 28.99 12.03 11.09
Fair value of plan assets at year end 27.50 27.92 3.95 385
Net (liability) / asset recognised as on 31st March (4.09) (1.07) (8.08) (7.44)
Expenses recognised in the Profit & Loss Statement
Current Service cost 3.78 3.79 - -
Interest on defined benefit obligation 1.91 1.87 0.57 0.61
Expected return on plan assets (1.85) (1.68) {0.24) (0.23)
Benefits transferred - - - -
Actuarial gain/ loss (on Leave Salary) - - 2.67 2.40
Expenses recognised in the Profit & Loss Alc 3.84 3.98 3.00 2.78
Remeasurement on the net defined henefit liability
Actuarial loss / (gain) due to change in demographic & (1.08) (0.78)
financial assumptions
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from experience adjustments 0.90 (2.57)
Actuarial gain / (Loss) arising from Return on plan assets .11 0.10

Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {0.07) (3.25) NA NA
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Gratuity (funded)
Principal actuarial assumptions used 2021-22 2020-21
Discount rate (p.a) 7.29%-7.34% 6.91%-6.96%
Attrition rate 1-3% 1-3%
Salary escalation 5.00% 5.00%

Mortality Rate is IALM (2008-08) Uttimate constantly for both the plans

Risk Exposure :

Leave Salary

2021-22 2020-21
715% 6.76%-6.84%
1-3% 1-3%
5.00% 5.00%

Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is, exposed to some of the general risks such as Investment Risk,
Interest rate risk, Longevity risk and Salary escalation risk and having no entity specific risks .

The sensitivity analysis of the impact of changes in the above assumption is given in the below tables :

a) Gratuity
Change in i
Assumption Increase in Assumption
Assumptions 2021-22 2020-21
Discount 0.50% 30.27 27.73
Salary escalation 0.50% 33.05 30.36
Mortality 5.00% 31.61 29.00
Attrition 5.00% 31.63 29.01
b} Leave Salary
Change in
Assumption Increase in Assumption
2021-22 2020-21
Discount 0.50% 10.25 10.75
Salary escalation 0.50% 10.89 11.45
Mortality 5.00% 10.56 11.08
Attrition 5.00% 10.56 11.09
¢) Provident Fund
Change in
Assumption Increase in Assumption
2021-22 2020-21
Discount 0.50% 1.07 1.86
Shortfall 0.50% 1.09 1.92
Mortality 5.00% 1.08 1.87
Attrition 5.00% 1.08 1.87

Rs. in Crores

Decrease in Assumption

2021-22 2020-21
33.02 30.36
30.23 27.70
31.59 28.98
31.56 28.97

Rs. in Crores

Decrease in Assumption

2021-22 2020-21
10.89 11.44
10.25 10.74
10.56 11.08
10.55 11.08

Rs. in Crores

Decrease in Assumption

2021-22 2020-21
1.09 1.89
1.06 1.86
1.08 1.88
1.08 1.88

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in the assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of

the assumptions may be correlated.

Provident Fund

2021-22 2020-21
7.36% 6.95%
1-3% 1-3%
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41 Financial Instruments

Accounting classifications and fair values

The carrying amounts and fair vaiue of financial instruments by class are as follows:

Rs. In Crores Rs. In Crores
As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Financial Assets:
Financial assets measured at Cost:
i. Investment in Equity shares 16.68 12.88
Financial assets measured at fair value:
i. Investment measured at Fair value
through other comprehensive income 5.73 8.17
ii. Investment measured at Fair value
through profit or loss 2.09 2.09
iii. Derivative financial instruments - 22.65
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Trade receivables 891.34 718.33
Cash and cash equivalents 3.57 222
Bank balances other than Cash and cash
equivalents 0.66 1.25
Other financial assets 28.33 24.21
Financial Liabilities:
Financial Liabilities measured at fair value:
Borrowings - -
Derivative financial instruments - -
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised
cost:
Borrowings 849.00 677.00
Trade payables 1,084.46 896.89
Other financial liabilities 62.82 45.40

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value
that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

Levei 1 hierarchy - Includes Financial Instruments measured using quoted prices in the active market.

Level 2 hierarchy - The Fair value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market, is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data.

Level 3 hierarchy - Includes Financial Instruments for which one or more of the significant inputs are not
based on observable market data. This is applicable for unlisted securities.

As at March 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets :

Equity shares 7.82
Derivative financial instruments -

Total

Financial Liabilities :

Derivative financial instruments -
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As at March 31, 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets :

Equity shares 10.26
Derivative financial instruments 22.65

Financial Liabilities :
Derivative financial instruments

i) The Fair value of an Equity Instruments classified as at Fair value through profit or loss included under
Level 3 Investments is determined using Cost approach.

iy The Fair value of an Equity Instrument classified as at Fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income included under Level 3 Investments is determined using Discounted Cash flow technique in the
previous year and the same has been valued by Registered valuer taking a combination of comparable
companies multiple method and Discounted cash flow method during the year.

i) Valuation inputs are as follows :

For the year ended
Significant Unobservable Input : 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
a) Risk adjusted discount rate * As per Valuation 11.52%
b) Earnings Growth rate report 2.00%

* Valuation as per the registered valuer, for the purpose of Scheme of Amalgamation of Sundaram
Hydraulics Ltd. and Wheels India Ltd. has been taken as fair value of equity shares held by the
company.

iv) There are no transfers between Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

v) Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Financial Assets and
Liabilities are stated at amortized cost which approximates their fair value.

Financial risk management

The Company's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk,
market risk and credit risk. The Risk management policies have been established to identify and analyse
the risks faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically
review and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly.

a) Management of Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. The Company's approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to
meet its liabilities . In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions.

The Company regularly monitors the rolling forecasts and the actual cash flows to service the financial
liabilities on a day-to-day basis through cash generation from business and by having adequate banking
facilities.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on
contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows along with its carrying value as at the Balance sheet date.

Rs. In Crores

Payable within  More than one

one year year Total
As at 31st March, 2022
Non-Derivative Liabilities
Trade payable 1,084 .46 - 1,084.46
Borrowings 596.98 252.02 849.00
Other Financial liabilities 45.64 17.18 62.82

Derivative Liabilities
Forward exchange contracts - -
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As at 31st March, 2021
Non-Derivative Liabilities

Trade payable 896.89 - 896.89
Borrowings 342.49 334.51 677.00
Other Financial liabilities 30.31 15.09 45.40

Derivative liabilities
Forward exchange contracts - -

b) Management of Market risk:

The Company is exposed to the following market risks which affects the value of the Financial
instruments :
1. Currency risk;

2. Interest rate risk

i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of the changes in foreign exchange rates. As at 31st March, 2022, the net un-hedged exposure
to the Company on holding such financial assets and liabilities amounts to Rs. 241.88 Crores

The Company manages currency exposures by continuously monitoring the Foreign currency rates with
the transaction rate and takes steps to mitigate the risk using Forward/ Derivative contracts.

Sensitivity to risk

A 5% strengthening of the INR against foreign currencies to which the Company is exposed (net of
hedge) would have led to approximately an additional Gain of Rs. 12.10 Crores in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. A 5% weakening of the INR against these currencies would have led to an equal impact but
with opposite effect.

The Foreign exchange forward contracts as at 31st March, 2022 is "Nil" (31st March,2021 - no contracts)

ii) Interest rate Risk

Interest rate is the risk that the Fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has Rs. 181.40 Crores Borrowings at
Floating rate of Interest as at 31st March, 2022 (previous year Rs. 200.84 Crores).

Sensitivity to risk
An increase in interest rate of 1% will likely to affect the profit negatively by Rs. 1.81 crores and a
decrease of 1% would have led to an equal impact but with opposite effect.

¢} Management of Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if the other party to the financial assets fails to
meet its contractual obligations.

i) Trade receivables:

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited as the customers are
predominantly original equipment manufacturers (OEs). All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed
for default on a quarterly basis. Our historical experience of collecting receivabies is that credit risk is
low. Hence, provision for credit loss is not required to be created as per Expected credit loss (ECL)
method. Refer Note (f) for accounting policy on Financial Instruments.

ii) Other financial assets:

The Company has exposure in Cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks. The
Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March, 2022 is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets as on that date.
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Rs. In Crores

Borrowing Costs in accordance with IndAS23 : 2021-22 2020-21
Borrowing Costs capitalised during the year 3.89 8.67
Capitalisation rate used for Borrowing Costs 6.53% 5.38%
Segment information for the year ended 31st March, 2022 in accordance with ind AS 108 - Operating Segments'

The Group primarily operates in Automotive components segement. The Group also manufactures industrial componets
segment which includes components and structures for windmill, railways and thermal power plants. Accordingly the
reportable segments are

a) Automotive Components and

b} Industrial Components :

The segment information is provided to and reviewed by Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

Segment wise Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilites for the year ended
Rs. In Crores

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

1.Segment Revenue

(a) Automotive Components 3,214.86 2,014.84

(b) Industrial Components 751.63 398.53
Total 3,966.49 2,413.37

Less: Inter Segment Revenue - -

Revenue from Operations 3,966.49 2,413.37

2. Segment Results (Profit / (Loss) before
tax and interest from each sgemept)

(a) Automotive Components 134.44 19.84

(b) Industrial Components 34.85 38.53
Total 169.29 58.37
Less:

(interest 71.49 58.87
(iNother unalloacble income - (1.30)
Total Profit Before Tax 97.80 0.80

3. Capital Employed

Segment Assets

(a) Automotive Components 2,257.18 2,001.33
{b) Industrial Components 666.40 432.31
(c) unallocated 50.38 42.66
Total ' 2,973.96 2,476.30
Segment Liabilities

(a) Automotive Components 1,047.14 925.05
(b) industrial Components 217.28 108.82
(c) unallocated 975.85 781.74
Total 2,240.27 1,815.61
4. Capital Expenditure

(a) Automotive Components 79.63 86.50
(b) Industrial Components 55.64 33.30

5. Depreciation & Amortization expense
(a) Automotive Components 86.13 71.54
(b) industrial Components 14.83 14.086
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(ii) Geographical Information:
Rs. In Crores

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
1.Revenue from Operations

within India* 2,865.50 1,843.25
Outside India 1,000.99 570.12
Total 3,966.49 2,413.37
2. Non Current Assets

within India 1,093.30 1,047.21
Qutside India - -
Total 1,083.30 1,047.21

44 Disclosure on Accounting for revenue from customers in accordance with IND AS 115

Disaggregated revenue information Rs. In Crores

a) Type of goods and service 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
a) Sale of products 3591.62 2201.11
b) Sale of services 23.36 17.79
¢) Other operating revenues 351.51 194.47
Total operating revenue 3966.49 2413.37
In India 2965.50 1843.25
Outside India 1000.99 570.12

b) Timing of revenue recognition At a point of time At a point of time
Sale of products and other operating income 3966.49 2413.37

¢} Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities Nil

d) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue at contracted prices 3966.49 2413.37
Revenue from contract with customers 3966.49 2413.37
Difference - -

e) Unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligation Nil Nil

45 Related Party disclosures in accordance with ind AS 24 :

i} a) Associates:
Axles India Ltd.
b) Associates by virtue of their shareholding in Wheels India Limited :
T.V.Sundram lyengar & Sons Private Ltd.(up to 04th February 2022)
Trichur Sundaram Santhanam & Family Private Limited (With effect from 04th February 2022)
Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited

ii) Other Related parties and the relationship where transaction exists :
a) Associate's Subsidiary
Sundaram Industries Private Limited (up to 04th February 2022)
The Associated Auto Parts Private Limited (up to 04th February 2022)

Sundaram Clayton Limited (up to 04th February 2022) jii) Key Managerial Personnel:
S} Air Springs Private Limited (up to 04th February 2022) Mr. S Ram
TVS Motors Limited (up to 04th February 2022) Mr. Srivats Ram

TVS Electronics Ltd (up to 04th February 2022)

TVS Training & Services Ltd (up to 04th February 2022)
Lucas TVS Limited (up to 04th February 2022)

iv) Post Employment Benefit pian entity
b) Subsidiary's Associate Wheels India Employees Gratuity Trust
Topy Industries Limited, Japan Wheels India Limited Staff Provident Fund

Wheels India Senior Officers Superannuation Trust
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Nature of transactions Rs. in Crores Rs. in Crores
2021-22 2020-21
Associates
Dividend Received - 0.36
Dividend paid 1.05 278
Purchase of goods 3.07 0.46
Receiving of Services 3.59 1.05
Rendering of Services 0.08 0.086
Sale of goods 3.40 21.43
Royalty Paid 2.81 1.73
Balance Payable 4.10 2.52
Balance Receivable 0.01 1.84
Associate's subsidiary
Purchase of goods 21.99 11.88
Receiving of Services 1.34 1.89
Rendering of Services - -
Sale of goods 6.94 7.60
Balance Payable 5.03 4.56
Balance Receivable 0.59 1.18
Rs. in Crores Rs. in Crores
Key Managerial Personnel Mr. S. Ram Mr. Srivats Mr. S. Ram Mr. Srivats
Ram Ram
a) Short term employee benefits
Remuneration, Perquisites and 1.14 4.30 0.13 1.14
Commission
Commission outstanding 1.14 2.27 0.13 -
b) Post Employment Benefits* 0.34 0.19
¢) Others
Interest on fixed deposits - 0.08 - 0.08
Dividend paid during the year - 0.01 - 0.01
Deposits balance outstanding - 0.98 - 0.81

* As the Liabilities for defined benefit plans are provided on actuarial basis, the amounts pertaining to Key Managerial
Personnel are not included.

Employees Benefit Plans 2021-22 2020-21
Contribution  Payable Contribution Payable

Wheels India Employees Gratuity Trust 0.47 3.37 5.21 0.47

Wheels India Limited Staff Provident Fund 3.73 0.34 2.75 0.25

Wheels India Senior Officers Superannuation Trust 0.67 0.67 0.54 0.54



48 Disclosures reiating to leases in accordance with IndAS116 :

a) Movement in Lease Liability
Opening Balance

Additions during the year
modifications to lease

Finance Cost Accrued during the year
Payment of Lease Liabilities

Closing Balance

Current Liability (Note no.24)
Non Current liabiliy (Note no. 19)

b) Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities

Particulars

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Total Undiscounted Lease Liability

c)Amount recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss
Interest on Lease Liabilities
Expenses relating to short term leases

d)Amount recognised in the statement of cash flow
Total Cash outflow for leases

Rs. in Crores

2021-22 2020-21
20.67 9.46
13.24 13.51
(1.66) (0.29)

1.45 1.13
(6.84) (3.14)
26.86 20.67

9.68 5.58
17.18 15.09

8.10 6.23
22.11 17.49
30.22 23.72

1.45 1.13

0.97 0.79

6.84 3.83

47 Disclosure on Accounting for intangible assets in accordance with Ind AS 38 :

Computer software & Technical know how
Gross carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Acquired during the year

Deletion during the year

Gross carrying amount at the end of the year
Gross amortisation at the beginning of the year
Amortised during the year

Deletion during the year

Gross amortisation at the end of the year

Net carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Net carrying amount at the end of the year

48 Disclosures in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year

b) Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year
c) Contribution towards :

Promoting Education

Rural Development Projects

Health care

Nationai Heritage, Arts and Culture
PM Cares, State Disaster
Management Authority & Disaster

Total
d) Amount spent during the year on
i) Construction / acquisition of any other asset
i} on purposes other than (i) above

Details of excess CSR expenditure under
Section 135 (5) of the Act :

Balance excess spent as at April 1, 2021 .
Amount spent during the year

Amount required to be spent during the year
Balance excess spent as at March 31, 2022

e)

Refer to Note no. 3

Rs. In Crores

2021-22

27.18
1.60
0.13

28.65

23.79
2.14
0.10

25.83
3.39
2.82

2020-21

26.13
1.06
0.01

27.18

2119
2.61
0.01

23.79
4.94
3.39

Rs. In Crores

2021-22 2020-21
1.06 1.59
1.06 1.59
0.66 0.40
0.14 0.09
0.02 0.03
0.10 0.05
0.49 1.05
1.41 1.62
1.41 1.62
1.41 1.62
1.06 1.59
0.35 0.03
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49 Additional Information , as required under Schedule Ill o the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises

consolidated as Subsidiary / Associates / Joint ventures Rs. In Crores

Net Assets, i.e., total assets Share in Profit or loss Share in Other Share in Total
minus total liabilities Comprehensive Comprehensive Income
As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of | Amount| As % of Amount
Name of the Entity Consolidate Consolidate Consolidated Consolidat
d Net Assets d Profit Other ed Total
Comprehensi Comprehe
ve Income nsive
2021-22

Parent: Wheels India Limited 89.07%| 668.63 | 107.53%] 79.77 | -137.04%| 1.48 | 111.15%] 81.25
I. Subsidiary
Indian:
WIL Car Wheels Limited 6.45% 48.38 -8.79% (6.52) 293.52%| (3.17)| -13.25% (9.69)
Non Controlling Interest in Subs 2.26% 17.00 -3.09% (2.29) -2.78%| 0.03 -3.09% (2.26)
Il. Associates: ( Investments as per Equity meg
indian:
Axles India Limited 2.23% 16.68 4.35% 3.22 -53.71%| 0.58 5.20% 3.80
Total 100.00% 750.69 100.00% 74.18 100.00%| (1.08)] 100.00% 73.10
2020-21
Parent: Wheels India Limited 87.19%]| 592.90 | 5625.00%] 6.75 | 83.43%| 1.48 | 492.81%] 8.23
I. Subsidiary
indian:
WIL Car Wheels Limited 8.08% 54.91 | -4033.33% (4.84) 10.85%| 0.08 | -285.03% (4.76)
Non Controlling Interest in Subg 2.84% 19.31 | -1416.67% (1.70) 3.92%| 0.03 | -100.00% (1.67)
Il. Associates: ( Investments as per Equity method)
Indian:
Axles India Limited 1.89%)] 12.88 | -75.00%]| -0.09] ° 1.80%| -0.04] -7.78%|  (0.13)

Total | 100.00%| 680.00 | 100.00%] 0.12] 100.00%| 1.55] 100.00%] 1.67
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Other notes :

The Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on December 07, 2021, approved the scheme of amalgamation
of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited with the Company and their respective shareholders. Based on receipt of 'No Objection
Letter' dated February 10, 2022 from NSE / SEBI, the Company has filed an application with the Hon'ble NCLT, Chennai on
March 16, 2022 and is awaiting necessary directions in this regard.

Consequent to the approval of the composite scheme of amalgamation / arrangement, the holding of 71,43,656 equity shares
have been transferred to / vested in M/s. Trichur Sundaram Santhanam & Family Private Limited (TSSFPL), effective
February 04, 2022.

During the year, the Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Returns/Statements filed
with the banks on a periodical basis are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to this year's classification.

_”/7
S. RAM RASAD Per our report of even date
Chairman i Director for BRAHMAYYA & Co.
DIN:00018309 DIN:00063415 DIN:00063667 Charter)eé Accountants
Eil stratlon, 000511S
ly o
A \ ) .
Q ) ,/ ’
R. RAGHUNATHAN K.V.LAKSHMI A ff Y RA\?I SANKAR
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary LA N Partner

Membership No. 025929
May 20, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows in Accordance with ind AS 7
Annexed to the Balance Sheet for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Rs. In Crores

2021-22 2020-21
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Total Comprehensive Income after tax 73.10 1.67
Add:
Depreciation 100.96 85.60
Obsolescence 0.10 0.84
Lease Liabilities 0.85 0.79
Effect of Exchange Rate Change (3.24) 2.88
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.53 0.02
Taxes on Income 23.88 1.22
Interest Expenses 71.49 194.58 58.87 150.22
267.68 151.89
Less:
Share of an Associate 3.79 (0.13)
Interest Income 0.98 1.83
Gain/(Loss) on Fair Valuation of Investments (2.44) 0.14
Dividend Income - 2.33 0.36 2.20
Cash flow from Operation before Working 265.35 149.69
Capital Changes
Cash flow from Working Capital :
Trade Receivables (137.22) (266.60)
Inventories (251.99) (136.20)
Advances & Other Current Assets (58.40) (46.53)
Trade Payables 177.84 387.20
Other Payabies & Provisions 59.25 (210.51) 50.08 (12.04)
Taxes paid (27.23) 10.55
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 27.61 148.20
B Investing Activities -
Purchase of Fixed Assets (135.27) (119.80)
Sale of Fixed Assets 14.13 0.62
Dividend Received - 0.36
Interest Received 0.77 1.21
Net cash used in Investing Activities (B) (120.37) (117.61)
C Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 71.97 166.30
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (108.62) (137.03)
Increase in Working Capital Borrowings 199.55 9.41
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (7.59) (2.69)
Dividend paid (2.45) (6.41)
Interest paid (69.05) (59.53)
Net cash used in Financing Activities (C) 83.81 . (31.08)
Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (8.95) (0.49)
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents (1.26) 7.69
Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 7.69 8.18
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (8.95) (0.49)
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents as per Balance sheet 3.57 2,22
(Add)/ Less: Cash Credit as at the end of the year 4.83 (5.47)
Cash & Cash Equivalents for the purpose of IndAS 7 (1.26) 7.69
I} 3 3
S RAM J/Z’_../—? AD Per our report of even date
Chairman Director for BRAHMAYYA & Co.
DIN:00018309 DIN:00063415 DIN:00063667 /Charter/ed ‘Accountants
Fin “‘;‘sﬁa ion No. 0005118
I, W o) 0
i 'f PR Ly
) SV TV Ww o g
R. RAGHU ATHAN K.V.LAKSHMI ' Vl SANKAR
Chief Financial Officer Group Secretary Partner

May 20, 2022

Membershlp No. 025929
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opimon

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sundaram Hydraulies  Limited (fthe
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 81st March 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, (including other comprehensive income) the Statement ol Changes in Feuity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information |hercinalter referred to as “Ind AS
Financial Statements”].

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards preseribed under Section 183 of the Act, read with the Companics {Indian Accountng
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of aflairs of the Company as at 31" March 2022 and its Profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in cquity and its cash {lows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditng (“SA”) specilied under Section
143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibiliies under those standards are further deseribed i the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code ol Lithics issued by the Insttute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD, together with the independence requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder and we have fullilled our other ethical responsibiliies in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAT’s Code of Lihics.

We believe that the audit evidenee we have obtained is suflicient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opiion on the Ind AS Financial Statements.

-
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in theboard’s report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thercon.

Our opinion on the {inancial statements does not cover the other mlormation and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the [inancial statement, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s materially inconsistent with the
financial statement or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we arc required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for thelnd AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(3) of the Act,
with respeet to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view ol the
financial position, linancial performance including other comprehensive income, cash {lows and
changes in cquity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Ind AS.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequale accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for saleguarding the asscts of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularitics ; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies ; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent ; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating cflectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to conlinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting, unless the Management cither intends to hquidate the
Company or {o cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Dircctors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibility for Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a
whole are lree from material misstatement, whether due to [raud or error and (o issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ol assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always deteet a malerial misstatement
when it exasts. Misstatements can arise [rom fraud or crror and are considered material, if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part ol an audit m accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and  maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also -

»  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 0 those risks and obtain
audit evidence that is suflicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk ol not
detecting a material misstalement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuliing from crror,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentaions or the override
of internal control.

% Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order (o design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)@) ol the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate mternal
financial controls system in place and the operating clfectiveness ol such controls.

»  Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountng
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

v

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s usc of the gomg concern basis ol accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continuc as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required (o draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or il such disclosures are
inadequate, to modily our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
upto the date ol our auditor’s report. However, future cvents or conditions may cause the
Company (o ccase to continuce as a going concern,

$  LFvaluate the overall presentation, structurc and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements,
including the disclosures and whetlier the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying
ransactions and events in a manner (hat achieves {air presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing ol the audit and significant audit findng, including any signtficant deficiencies
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence and 0 communicate with them all relatonships and other
maltters that may rcasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matiers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance i the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements ol the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, n extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matier should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would rcasonably be cxpected to outweigh the public miterest benelits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government ol India in terms of sub-scction (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give n
“Annexure A” o this Report, a statement on the matters specified in para 3 and 4 of the said
Order

As required by the Scction 143(8) of the Act, we report that -

Q)

b)

g

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best ol our
knowledge and beliel were necessary lor the purposes of our audit ;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company, so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Fquity, dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account ;

In our opinion, the aloresaid Ind AS Fmancial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Company (Indian Accounting
Standard Rules 2015) ;

On the basis of the wrilten representations received [rom the Directors as on 31" March
2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on
31" March 2022, from being appointed as a Director in terms of Scetion 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy ol Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure “B” to this report ;

The Managerial Remuncration has been paid in accordance with the requisite

approvals mandated by the provisions ol Scction 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

1) With respect to the other matters to be mcluded n the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

1.

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
ol our information and according to the explanations given (o us -

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its [inancial position in its
Ind AS Financial Statements - Reler Note No.250)to the Ind AS Financial Statements.
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0. The Company does not have any long-term contracts mcluding derivative contracts, for

1.

1v.

a)

b)

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, (other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,) no funds have been advanced or loaned or
mnvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on hehalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

the management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, (other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,) no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, dircetly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or vbrovide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause a and b contain any material misstatement.

v."The company has not declared/paid any Dividend during the year

For S P VR and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N 0., 0169188

W1 Sy

M. Shenbagapriya
Partner

Place: Chennai Membership No. 219806

Date:

23.05.2022 UDIN: 22212806AJL.OOP2380
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on
other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of the Independent Auditor’s report to the members
of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March
2022, we report that:

(1)

(i)

()

(b)

)

(A)The Company is mamtaming proper records showing [ull particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant
details of right of use asscts.

(B)The company i1s maintaining proper records showing [ull particulars of Intangible
Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verilicaton. In
our opuuon, the frequency of verilication is reasonable

Ihe Company does not own any immovable property in its own name. Therelore
reporting under clause 3 (1) (¢) ol the order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property Plant and equipment (including Right of

Use assets) or Intangible assets during the year.

Based on our examination of the Books of Accounts and other Records of the
company and based on the mformation and explanaton provided by the
managemernt, no proceedings have been initated or are pending against the company
for holding any benami property under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
and rules made thereunder.

The Management has conducted Physical Venlication ol Inventory al reasonable

mtervals. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such venfication s
appropriate. The discrepancies arising out ol such physical verilication did not excecd
10% or more in aggregate for cach class ol inventory. In respect of discrepancics
which arc less than 109% n aggregate lor each class ol mventory, such discrepancics
have been properly dealt with in the books ol accounts

(b) During the year, the company had availed working capital limits in excess of Rs. Five

Crores from banks on the basis of security ol current asscts. The quarterly returns
and the statements submitted to lenders arc in agreement with the books of accounts.
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(1) The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companics, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other partics. Hence, clausces
(1) (), (b) (0), (d), (¢) and () ol the order are not applicable

(iv) The company has not granted any loans, made any investument and provided any
guarantee or security as envisaged under provisions of Section ol 185 and 186 of the act.

v The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 o 76 or

any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules [ramed thercunder.

() The maintenance ol cost records by the Company has not been specilied by the Central
Government pursuant to sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act

(i) () The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory duces including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues
applicable to it during the year with appropriate authoritics.

(b Disputed Sales Tax and Vatue Added Tax aggregating 1o Rs.1.21 Lakhis has not been
deposited on account of disputes which arc contested and appeal 1s pending with Sales
Tax Appcllate Trbunal

(vi)  Based on our examinauon of books of accounts and other records of the company and
based on information and explanaton provided by the management, the company has
not surrendered or disclosed any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income tax Act 1961.

(ix) ) Bascd on our examinaton ol the books of accounts and other records of the company,
the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payiment of interest thercon to any lender.

b) Based on our examination ol the Books ol Accounts and other Records ol the
company and based on the information and explanation provided by the management,
the company has not been declared as a willlul defaulter by any bank, linancial mstitution
or any other lender.

¢) The term loans were applied for the purpose lor which the loans were obtained.
d) Based on our exammation ol the Books of Accounts and other Records ol the

company and bascd on the mlormation and explanation provided by the management,
no funds raised on short term basis have been utlized for long term purposcs.
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¢) Based on our examination of the Books of Accounts and other Records of the
company and based on the mformation and explanation provided by the management,
The company has not taken any funds [rom any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiarics, associatcs or joint ventures.

[) The company has not raised loans during the year on pledge of securities held i its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or Associate companies.

(x) @) The Company has not raised monics by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public
Offer during the year.

b) The Company has not made any preferential alloument or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, pardy or optionally) during the year

(xi) a) Bascd on our examination of the Books of Accounts and other Records of the company
and based on the information and explanation provided by the management, no case ol
fraud by the company and [raud on the company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

b) No report under sub section (12) of Section 1143 of the Act in form AT was filed as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government

¢) The provisions regarding Whiste-blower under the Act are not applicable (o the
Company.

(xi1) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, clauses 3(xii)(a),(h),(¢} of the Order are
not applicable.

(xm) The ransactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) @) The company has an Internal Audit System commensurate with the Size and Nature of
its business
b) We have considered the Reports ol Internal Auditors for the year under audit.

(xv)  According (o the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not cntered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connccted with the directors during the year.
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a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xvi) of the Order does not arise.

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
actwvities, hence the provision of this clause is not applicable

¢) The company is not a Core Investment Company, hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c)
1s not applicable

d) The Group does not have any Core Investment Companies, hence reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) is not applicable

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses during the year and in the immediately preceding

financial year

(xviii) There has been no case of resignation of Statutory Auditor during the year.

(xix) On the basis of our evaluation of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of

financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statement and our knowledge of Board of Directors and Management plans, we

‘are of the opinion that, no materjal uncertainty exists as on the date of Audit Report that

company 1s capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet

(xx) ‘The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are

not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 8(xx) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company

(xxi) As the company is not required to prepare the consolidated financial statements, the

reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For § P V R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016918S

N Sy

M. Shenbagapriya
Partmer

Place: Chennai ' ‘ Membership No. 212806

Date:

23.05.2022 7 UDIN: 22212806 AJLOOP2380




163

S PV RAND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ytiv\ll_aNr?ézéhggrir\ﬁ;g‘;
. L rl

Adyar, Chennai 600 020.

Mobile # 9444414201, 9841449426
shenbagaca@gmail.com
Vijiramaswamy22@gmail.com

«“ANNEXURE B” to the independent Auditor’s Report referred to in paragraph 2 (f) of our Report of
Even Date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial
statements of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited, Chennai (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
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over financial reporting with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reportingwith reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial contro! over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that;

I, pertain to the maintenance of records, that in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

ll.  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

i provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting with reference to financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S PV R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016918S

M. Shenbagapriya
) Partner _
Place: Chennai | , Membership No. 212306
Date: 23.05.2022 ~ UDIN: 22212806AILC0OP2380
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SUNDARAM HYDRAULICS LIMITED 1 6€
21, PATULLOS ROAD, CHENNAI - 600 002
BALANCESHEET AS AT (Rs.in lakhs)
PARTICULARS ote No| As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
. ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
a) Property,Plant,Equipment
i)Tangible Assets 1 2,557.35 2,640.50
i) Right of use asset(Lease) 43.87 46.84
iii) Intangible assets - -
iv) Capital Work in progress 2 54.22 22.02
b) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 3 649.02 767.12
c) Financial Asset
i) Others 4A 37.82 4041
d) Other Non current Assets 4B 93.27 38.97
3,435.55 3,555.86
2 Current Assets
a) Inventories 5 3,330.88 2,428.82
b) Financial Assets
i) Trade Receivables 6 1,048.48 1,007.89
ii) Cash and Cash equivalents 7 0.42 1.51
ifi) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 8 10.67 9.77
iv) Others 9A 70.74 20.49
c¢) Other current assets I8 124.78 360.56
4,585.97 3,829.04
TOTAL 8,021.52 7,384.90
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A EQUITY
a) Share Capital 10 4,375.13 4,375.13
b) Other Equity 11 (3888.98) {4129.48)
486.15 245.65
B LIABILITIES
1 Non-Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 12 312.86 614.62
ii) Lease Liabilities 50.45 51.23
b} Provisions 13 9.34 5.37
372.65 671.22
2 Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i} Borrowings 14 2,406.71 1,656.30
it) Lease Liabilities 0.78 0.57
iii) Trade Payables 15 - -
A) total ou.tstandmg dues of m|c1.'o 907.43 590.90
enterprises and small enterprises
B) total outstanc.ilng dues of.credltors 3,526.37 4,068.33
other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
iv) Others - -
b) Other Current Liabilities 16 317.55 150.24
¢) Provisions 17 3.88 1.69
7,162.72 6,468.03
TOTAL 8,021.52 7,384.90
Company Overview and Significant accounting policies A e

SRIVATS RA
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00063415

May 23, 2022
Chennai

SRINIVAS AC
Director
DIN: 00017412

G.SATHYA
Chief Financial Officer

K- 4o

SAI GANESH K
Company Secretary

As per our report attached
For S P VR & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No.:016918S)

N Gl

M. SHENBAGAPRIYA
Partner
Membership No.212806
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
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(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
I |Revenue from Operations
Sale of products S1 10,905.26 5,636.95
Sale of services S2 121.29 4.40
Other Operating Revenues S3 217.22 106.67
Revenue from Operations-Gross 11,243.77 5,748.02
i {Other income 18 7.94 1.83
1 {Total Income (1 +11) 11,251.71 5,749.85
IV JExpenses
Cost of materials consumed 19 9,323.94 4,416.07
Changes in inventories of work in progress 20 (503.15) (95.38)
Employee Benefit Expenses 21 760.32 315.95
Finance Cost 22 289.61 190.26
Depreciation and amortization expense 1&2 211.92 21421
Other expenses 23 807.73 486.04
Tota! Expenses 10,890.37 5,527.15
V |Profit/ {Loss) before exceptional items and tax (lli - IV) 361.34 222.70
VI |Exceptional items - -
Vi |Profit/ (Loss) before tax {V + Vi) 361.34 222.70
VilljTax expense
- Current Tax - -
- Deferred Tax DTA (118.81)|  (118.81) (147.04) (147.04)
IX |Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year (VIll + IX) 242.53 75.66
Other Comprehensive Income
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post employment defined benefit plan (2.74) (2.07)
Less: income tax relating to remeasurements 0.71 0.54
-X [Total Comprehensive income for the year 240.50 74.13
X! |Earnings Per Equity Share 24
1.Basic
2.Diluted 0.55 0.17
7 As per our report attached
For SP V R & Associates
SRIVATS R IVAS ACHARYA Chartered Accountants

Chairman and W

DIN: 00063415

May 23, 2022
Chennai

Director
DIN: 00017412

Chief Financial Officer

SAl GANESH K
Company Secretary

(Registration No.:016918S)

M. SHENBAGAPRIYA

Partner

Membership No.212806
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Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31st Mar 2022 Rs. In Lakhs
A)Equity Share capital 2021-22 2020-21
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,375.13 4,375.13
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period - -
Changes in Equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at the end of the current reporting period 4,375.13 4,375.13
B} Other Equity (2021-22) - period ended 31 St March 2022
Share Equity Meney
applciation | Component received
money | of compound| Reserves and Surpius | against Total
pending financial share
allotment | instruments warrants
Retal‘ned ocl
Earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2021 (A) - - (4,127.64) (1.84) - {4,129.48)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period - - - - - -
Profit/ (Loss) for the period - - 242.53 - 242.53
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans - - - (2.03) (2.03)
Total Comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March 2022(B) - - 242,53 (2.03) - 240.50
Dividends - - - -
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - -
Total - - (3,885.11)| (3.87) - {3,888.98)
Balance as at March 31,2022 - - (3,885.11) (3.87) - (3,888.98)
B) Other Equity (2020-21) - period ended March 31,2021
Share Equity Money
appiciation | Component received
money |of compound| Reserves and Surplus | against Total
pending financial share
allotment | instruments warrants
Retained ocl
Balance as at 1 April 2020 (A) - - (4,203.30)] (0.31) - (4,203.61)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period - - - - - -
Profit/ (Loss) for the period - - 75.66 - - 75.66
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans - - - (1.53) - (1.53)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March 2021(B) - - 75.66 (1.53) - 74.13
Dividends - - - - - -
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - -
Total (4,127.64)] (1.84) - (4,129.48)
Balance as at March 31,2021 - - (a,127.69)] (1.84) - {4,129.48)

Nature and purpose of reserves:

The surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss is part of retained earnings. This is avaﬂabi’é for distribution to shareholders as dividend and

capitlisation.

SRIVATSRA
Chairman an naging Director

DIN: 00063415

May 23, 2022
Chennai

SRINIVAS A
Director
DIN: 00017412

Chief Financial Officer

S

SAI GANESH K
Company Secretary

As per our report attached
For S P VR & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No.:016918S)

N ol

M. SHENBAGAPRIYA
Partner
Membership No.212806



SUNDARAM HYDRAULICS LIMITED
21, PATULLOS ROAD, CHENNAI - 600002 YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Company Overview:

Sundaram Hydraulics Limited (SHL) was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on December 07, 2007
as a Public Limited Company domiciled in India. The Company is primarily into the business of design,
manufacture and distribution of hydraulic cylinders for the domestic and global MCE industry. The company also
diversified into manufacturing of axle shafts for dump trucks, cylinders for windmills, and sub-contracting of
excavator cylinders for overseas companies. SHL has also been supplying tools and components for air
suspension devices and also undertaking job work.

The registered office of the Company is situated at No.21, Patullos Road, Chennai — 600 002 and manufacturing
facility is located at Sriperumbudur.

a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
referred to as ‘Ind AS’) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015.

The financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concem basis. The accounting policies are
applied consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The preparation of the financlal statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, requires
the use of estimates and assumptions that impact the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance
Sheet date, reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period and disclosure of contingent liabilities
as at that date. The estimates and assumptions used in these financial statements are based upon the
management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements.

The Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company's normal operating cycle has been ascertained as 12 months based on the nature of products and
the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents.

b) Basis of measurement
These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of Cenvat, VAT, GST credits as reduced by
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the
assets’ carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which they were incurred.
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Depreciation on Fixed Assets other than Intangibles and Plant and Machinery is provided based on Straight Line
basis on the useful life of the asset as provided in the Schedule Il of Companies Act 2013.

With respect to Plant and Machinery the company has reassessed the useful life of the asset based on the
technical assessment by an external expert and depreciation has been provided on Straight Line basis on such

reassessed useful life.

The cost of software relating to ERP is amortized over the estimated useful life viz. 5 years. The cost of other
intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful life viz. 3 years.

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed
as “Capital work-in-progress”.

d) Inventories:

The stock of raw materials, stores and loose tools are valued at cost (net of GST credits on weighted average

basis). The stock of finished goods and work -in-process are valued at cost (net of GST credits including
appropriate overheads) or Net realizable value whichever is lower.

e} Financial instruments
i} Financial assets:

‘Financial asset is recognized at fair value. In case of financial assets which are recognized at fair value
through profit and loss, its transaction cost are recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss. In other
cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial assets.

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at;
i) Amortized cost
i) Fair Value through profit and loss
iit) Fair Value through other comprehensive income”

ii) Trade receivables and loans:
Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortized
cost, using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial instrument.

iii) Investments:
All investments in equity instruments (other than in Subsidiaries and Associates) classified under
financial assets, are initially measured at fair value. Fair Value changes on an equity instruments are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments
are recognized as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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f)

a)

iv) Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are initially measured at amortized cost. In case of trade payables, they are initially
recognized at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortized cost using effective
interest rate method.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of an event, and is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate
of the amount cannot be made.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from Sale of Products

Revenue from sale of products is recognized at the point in time when control of the promised goods (an
asset) is transferred to the customer, generally when the products are dispatched or appropriated in
accordance with the terms of sale. With respect to revenue from sale of wheels, the Company operates
predominantly on credit basis. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract
inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the
customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less. There are no significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to determination of the time of revenue from contracts with
customers are involved as the contract with customers explicitly states the point in time at which the customer
obtains control of the promised goods. The Contract with customers involves performance of a single
obligation, the amount stated in the contract is the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation.
Incremental Cost incurred to obtain or fulfil a contract with the customers not recognized as an asset, as the
amortization period of the assets is less than one year. Revenue is reduced for customer returns,
commissions, rebates and discounts, and other similar allowances. ‘

Contract balances:

Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the passage of time. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.
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Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Other Operating Revenue:

Other operating revenue comprises of income from ancillary activities incidental to the operations of the
Company and is recognized when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the
contract.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Dividend income is recognized when rights to receive payment is established.
Employee Benefits:

Provident Fund

Eligible employees receive benefits from provident fund which is defined contribution plan, Both the
employees and the company makes monthly contribution to the provident fund authorities, equal to specified
percentage of eligible covered employees’ salary. The company has no other obligations than the monthly
contributions.

Gratuity

The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at the time of retirement, death,
incapacity or termination of employment. Liabilities with regard to the gratuity plan are determined by actuarial
valuation as at the Balance Sheet date based upon which the Company contributes all the ascertained
liabilities to SBI Life Insurance Co. Ltd. who are the administrators of the plan.

Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognized in the
Other Comprehensive Income. The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yield,
computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income.

Unencashed Leave Salary
Unencashed leave salary is accounted on actuarial valuation.

Others

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees state insurance, labour welfare fund, etc.,
are charged as expenses based on the amount of contribution required to be made. The above benefits are
classified as defined contribution schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyond what
has been recognized as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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i)

k)

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted at the rates of exchange prevailing as on the date of the
transaction. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of such transactions are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and Liabilities denominated in foreign currency are reinstated at the rate of exchange
prevailing on the reporting date.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether there is any indication that its tangible,
intangible assets carried at cost have suffered an impairment loss with reference to their carrying amounts. If
any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment loss
is recognized, if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)

will be increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so however increased carrying amount

will not exceed the original carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been

recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized

immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Income Taxes:
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss or to an
item recognized directly in Equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year and is determined in accordance
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the
asset and the liability on net basis.

Deferred Tax

Deferred Income tax is recognized using the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount.

173



SUNDARAM HYDRAULICS LIMITED
21, PATULLOS ROAD, CHENNAI - 600002 YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that either future taxable profits or
reversal of deferred tax fiabilities will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities.

Leases:

Where the Company is lessee

All outstanding leases as on the date of inception of Ind AS 116 have been recognized as per the Modified
Retrospective Method. Lease liability is measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted at incremental borrowing rate as on the date of initial application. Right of use on leased assets is
measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments. For all leases entered into subsequently, Lease Liability is measured on the lease commencement
date, on a similar basis as mentioned above. Right of use on leased asset is measured at the value of lease
liability, adjusted for (i) prior lease payments, (ii) lease incentives, (i) initial direct costs incurred by lessee &
(iv) estimated removal / dismantling cost of the underlying asset.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liability is measured by adding the amount interest cost
and reducing the amount of lease payments to the value of lease liability. The amount of Right of use on
leased asset is depreciated over the life of the underlying asset on a straight line basis. Short term leases
and leases with low value of underlying assets are not considered for lease accounting.

Where the Company is lessor
The Company's leased out assets are in the nature of operating leases and lease payments received are
recognized as income on accrual basis during the lease term.

m) Earnings per share

Earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net profit/(loss)after tax for the year attributable to the
equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (CONT'D}
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Rs. in Lakhs)
GROSS BLOCK AT COST DEPRECIATION NETBLOCK

DESCRIPTION As on Additions Total Deletions As on As on For the Year Deleti As on As on As on

01.04.2021 Additions 31.03.2022| 01.04.2021 ons 31.03.2022] 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

TANGIBLE ASSETS

1.Buildings 764.92 22.60 22.60 - 787.52 332.19 24.62 - 356.81 430.71 432.73
2.Plant and Equipment 3,727.76 98.00 98.00 - 3,825.76 1,532.57 182.03 - 1,714.60 2,111.16 2,195.19
3.Furniture and Fixtures 27.08 4.09 4.09 - 31.17 16.42 1.36 - 17.78 13.39 10.66
4.0ffice Equipment 7.46 1.23 1.23 - 8.69 6.26 0.40 - 6.66 2.03 1.21
5.Motor vechile 3.54 - - 2.29 1.25 2.83 054 2.18 1.19 0.06 0.71
Total-Tangible Assets 4,530.76 125.92 125.92 2.29 4,654.39 1,890.27 208.95 | 2.18 2,097.04 2,557.35 2,640.50

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Software 28.76 - - - 28.76 28.76 - - 28.76 - -
Right of use asset(Lease) 52.79 - - - 52.79 5.95 2.97 8.92 43.87 46.84
TOTAL 4,612.31 125.92 125.92 2.29 4,735.94 1,924.98 211,92 | 2.18 2,134.72 2,601.22 2,687.34

b) i} Company has not carried out any revaluation of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022.
ii) There are no proceedings that have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami Property under the Benami transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1998 and

rules made there under.

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Capital Work in progress-Less

54.22 22.02

than 1 year

For the period ended March 31,2021

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Rs. in Lakhs)

GROSS BLOCK AT COST DEPRECIATION NETBLOCK
DESCRIPTION As on Additions Total Deletions As on As on For the Year Deleti As on As on As on
01.04.2020 Additions et 31.03.2021| 01.04.2020 ons 31.03.2021| 31.03.2021 31.3.2020

TANGIBLE ASSETS

1.Buildings 764.92 - - - 764.92 300.93 31.26 - 332.19 432.73 463.99
2.Plant and Equipment 3,634.03 93.73 93.73 - 3,727.76 1,355.85 176.72 - 1,532.57 2,195.19 2,278.18
3.Furniture and Fixtures 27.08 - - - 27.08 15.32 111 - 16.42 10.66 11.76
4.0ffice Equipment 7.46 - - - 7.46 5.96 0.30 - 6.26 1.21 1.51
5.Motor vechile 1.02 2.52 2.52 - 3.54 0.97 1.86 2.83 0.71 0.05
Total-Tangible Assets 4,434.51 96.25 96.25 - 4,530.76 1,679.02 211.24 - 1,890.27 2,640.50 2,755.49
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Software 28.76 - - - 28.76 28.76 - - 28.76 - -
Right of use asset(Lease) 52.79 - - - 52.79 2,98 2.97 5.95 46.84 49.81
TOTAL 4,516.06 96.25 96.25 - 4,612.31 1,710.76 214.21 - 1,924.98 2,687.34 2,805.30

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Capital Work in progress-Less
than 1 year

22.02 25.09
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (CONT'D}

DEFERRED TAX ASSET {NET)
Deferred Tax Asset
Deferred Tax Liability

Net Deferred Tax Asset

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)

As at 31.03.2022

As at 31.03.2021

1,016.35 1,136.13
367.33 369.01
649.02 767.12

Recognised in /

Recognised in _ As at
As at 31/03/2021 Profit & Loss reclassified frgrct: 31/03/2022
As at March 31,2022
Deferred tax assets / (Liabilities) in relation to
Plant,Property and Equipment (368.43) 1.29 - (367.14)
Loans accounted on EIR under INDAS (0.58) 0.40 - {0.18)
Expenses deductible on payment basis 5.84 2.77 0.71 13.32
Unabsorbed Depreciation 683.07 0.00 - 683.07
Business Loss 443.22 (123.68) - 319.54
Others - 0.41 - 0.41
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 767.12 {118.81) 0.71 649.02
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets/ {Liabilities)
. Recognised in /
Recognised in - As at
As at 31/03/2020 Profit & Loss reclassified from 31/03/2021
QCl
As at March 31,2021
Deferred tax assets / (Liabilities) in relation to
Plant,Property and Equipment (369.48) 1.05 - (368.43)
Loans accounted on EIR under INDAS (1.14) 0.56 - (0.58)
Expenses deductible on payment basis 7.07 2.23 0.54 9.84
Unabsorbed Depreciation 681.90 1.17 - 683.07
Business Loss 595.26 (152.05) - 443.22
Others - - -
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 913.61 (147.04) 0.54 767.12
NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS
Unsecured-Considered Good
a) Security Deposits 23.80 26.39
b) Bank deposits with more than 12 months
maturity ) i
c)Other deposits 14.02 14.02
37.82 40.41
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
a) Advance for Capital Goods 74.85 27.74
b} Adva‘n?ce Tax, Tax Deducted at Source less 18.42 9.97
provision for tax
¢) Prepaid Expenses-Others - 1.26
93.27 38.97
INVENTORIES - AS CERTIFIED BY CHAIRMAN &
MANAGING DIRECTOR
a) Raw Materials 1,206.68 859.33
b) Work-in-Progress 1,787.71 1,284.56
¢} Stores and Spares 289.66 243.26
d) Loose Tools 46.83 41.67
3,330.88 2,428.82
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

177

a)Unsecured-Considered Good 1,051.05 1,007.89
Less:Allowance for expected credit loss 2.57 -
1,048.48 1,007.89
Ageing As at 31st March,2022 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months{ 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3years Total
1.Undisputed Trade receivables-Considered
good 1,047.77 0.71 - 1,048.48
2.Undisputed Trade Receivables-Which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
3.Undisputed Trade Receivables-credit impaired - - - B - -
4. Disputed Trade Receivables-Considered good - - - - - -
5. Disputed Trade Receivables-Which have significant - - - - - -
increase in credit risk.
6. Disputed Trade Receivables -Credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 1,048.48
Ageing As at 31st March,2021 Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3years Total
1.Undisputed Trade receivables-Considered 981.28 2.56 8.41 10.77 2.83| 1,005.85
good -
2.Undisputed Trade Receivables-Which have -
significant increase in credit risk 1.00 - - - 1.05 2.05
3.Undisputed Trade Receivables-credit impaired -
4. Disputed Trade Receivables-Considered good -
S. Disputed Trade Receivables-Which have significant -
increase in credit risk.
6. Disputed Trade Receivables -Credit impaired -
Total 1,007.89
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
a) Balances with Banks
i) Current accounts 0.16 1.20
b} Cash on hand 0.26 0.31
0.42 1.51
BALANCES WITH BANK OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
il Fixed Deposits 10.67 9.77
(as Guarantee to Sales Tax Department)
10.67 9.77
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured - Considered Good
a) Advances to Employees 3.61 2.73
b} Other Advances 67.13 17.76
70.74 20.49
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
a) Balances with GST authorities 41.26 333.48
b) Advances to Vendors 72.49 23.53
) Prepaid Expenses 11.03 3.55
124.78 360.56
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS (CONT'D)
SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital

4,65,00,000 (Previous year: 4,65,00,000) Equity shares
of Rs 10/- each.

7,00,000 (Previous year: 7,00,000) Cumulative
redeemable Preferance shares of Rs 100/- each.

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital

4,37,51,300 (Pyrevious year: 4,37,52,300) Equity shares
of Rs 10/- each

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
4650.00 4,650.00
700.00 700.00
5350.00 5,350.00
4375.13 4,375.13

a.Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

2021-22 2020-21
No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs  No. of Shares Rs. in lakhs
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year: 43751300 4,375.13 43751300 4,375.13
Add:Shares issued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding as at the end of the year 43751300 4,375.13 43751300 4,375.13

b.Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each member is entitled to one vote by show
of hands and while on poll, every shareholder is entitled to vote in proportion to their holdings.

C.Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

in the Company as on :-

As at As at
ity Sh f Rs.10/- each
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- eac 31.03.2022  31.03.2021
No. of Shares  No. of Shares
Name of Shareholder Held Held
Wheels India Limited 7150000 7150000
Sundaram Finance Holdings Itd 11250000 11250000
Maham Holdings Limited 7745967 7745967
Mr. S.Ram 4926686 4926686
Ms. Gita Ram 2751850 2751850
Mr. Srivats Ram 5841480 5841480
Total 39665983 39665983
D.Details of share holding by Promotors:- As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
% of
L) 0,
No. of Shares| % of total % of'change No. of Shares % of change
Promotor Name during the total i
Held shares Held during
year shares )
the year
Wheels India Limited 7150000 16.34 - 7150000{ 16.34 -
Sundaram Finance Holdings Itd 11250000 25.71 - 11250000 25.71 -
Total 18400000 18400000
OTHER EQUITY
Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Total opening reserves (4,129.48) {4,203.61)
Add: Additions during the year 240.50 74.13
Closing balance {(3,888.98) (4,129.48)

(Refer statement of Changes in Equity)
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NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
12 FINANCIAL LIABLITIES-AT AMORTISED COST

A. SECURED BORROWINGS

i} a)Term loan from Bank
Secured by hypothecation of all the present &future
movable assets including all fixed assets and secured by
equitable mortgage on lease hold fand on pari passu
basis .
b)Term loan from Bank

Exclusive charge on the assets purchased with the loan
and pari-passu first charge on the movable assets of
the company{Excluding where it is exclusively charged).

B. OTHERS
Lease liablity

C.Terms of Repayment : Refer Note No.26

13 PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Benefits

FINANCIAL LIABLITITES
14 A, SECURED BORROWINGS
a) Current maturities of long term borrowings
b) Interest accrued but not due
¢ )Loans repayable on demand from Banks *
i) Cash Credit Facility
ii) Working Capital Demand Loan
iii) Other-Working capital facility
Secured by hypothecation of raw materials, stock-in-process, finished
goods, consumables & spares, receivables and other current assets of
the Company and second charge over the fixed assets of the Company.
The above facilities are also secured by second charge on lease hold
fand.

B.OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities

15 TRADE PAYABLES
a) Dues to Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises
b) Dues to others

312.86 539.79
- 74.83
50.45 51.23
363.31 665.85
9.34 5.37
9.34 537
489.12 547.35
9.19 7.93
698.26 487.50
1,077.92 500.00
132.22 113.52
2,406.71 1,656.30
0.78 0.57
0.78 0.57
907.43 590.90
3,526.37 4,068.33
4,433.80 4,659.23

Ageing As at 31st March,2022

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment I

L han 1
Particulars esst ::ar 1-2 years 2-3 years >3years Total
1.MSME 907.39 (0.03) 0.07 - 907.43
2.0thers 3,525.44 0.06 0.03 0.83 3,526.37
3.Disputed dues-MSME - - - - -
4.Disputed dues-Others - - - - -
Total 4,433.80
Ageing As at 31st March,2021 Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment [
Less than 1
Particulars ess :zar 1-2 years 2-3 years >3years Total
1.MSME 588.40 2.49 - - 590.90
2.0thers 4,058.39 4.09 (2.15) 8.00 4,068.33
3.Disputed dues-MSME - - - - -
4.Disputed dues-Others - - - - -
Total 4,659.23
16 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues 13.48 10.49
Creditors for capital goods - 253
Provision for expenses 304.07 137.22
317.55 150.24
17 SHORT- TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Benefits 3.88 1.69
3.88 1.69
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OTHER INCOME
Interest income on Deposits and Advances

Profit on sale of Property,Plant and Equipment

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Raw Materials
Components

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Opening Inventory of Work-in-Progress
Less: Closing inventory of Work-in-Progress
Net (increase) / decrease of Work in Progress

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages

Contribution to Provident Funds & Other funds

Staff welfare expenses

FINANCE COST

Interest expense

Interest expense - Right to use asset
Interest expense - others

Other Borrowing cost

OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores, tools and Spare parts
Power & Fuel
Insurance
Rates & Taxes
Repairs
Repairs to Plant&Machinery
Payment to Auditors
Statutory Audit fees
Tax Audit fees
GST audit fees
Certification fees
Reimbursement of expenses
Directors' Sitting Fees
Director Remuneration-Non.Ex
Freight Outward
Miscellaneous Expenses
Net loss on foreign currency translations &

transactions other than considered as finance cost

As at 31.03.2022

180

{Rs. in Lakhs)

As at 31.03.2021

2.49 1.83
5.45 -
7.94 1.83

7,442.55 2,255.33

1,881.39 2,160.74

9,323.94 4,416.07

1,284.56 1,189.18

1,787.71 1,284.56

(503.15) (95.38)
703.84 276.22
42.25 29.70
14.23 10.03
760.32 315.95
219.88 170.80
5.23 5.29
61.50 12.17
3.00 2.00
289.61 190.26
245.09 147.62
157.48 116.43
27.72 11.68
12.32 6.82
100.45 107.00
4.00 3.00
1.50 1.50
0.50 0.80
2.53 1.43
2.85 2.25
12.00 -
194.57 30.19
45.28 57.45
1.44 (0.13)
807.73 486.04
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Notes forming part of special purpose financial statements
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As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Earning per Share (EPS)
Net profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss 242.53 75.66
Welighted Average number of shares 43751300 43751300
Nominal value per share - Rupees 10.00 10.00
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share - Rupees 0.55 0.17
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
i)Contingent Liablities
a)Disputed amounts in respect of Central Sales
Tax,Value Added Tax which are contested in appeal
and not provided for { of .wh|ch a sum of Rs.13.93 15.14 1514
takhs (PY: 13.93 Lakhs)paid under protest appears
under Other Non current Financial assets in the
balancesheet.
i)lCommitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 32171 19.91
executed on
capital accounts and not provided for
Arrears of Dividend on 9% Cumulative Redeemable 313.09 313.09
Preference Shares
L o )
Arrears of Dividend on 7% Cumulative Redeemable 44.69 44.69
Preference Shares
Bank gurantee from IDFC First Bank towards tools 3.50 )
taken on returnable from BEML Ltd )
TERMS OF REPAYMENT OF LONG-TERM BORROWINGS &SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
a) Secured Borrowings - Term Loan from Bank
Terms of repayment of Borrowings
A
mou.nt Total No of
Institution Outstanding as Type of Securit Interest installmen | instaliments Repayable Repayable to
on March 31, e v Rate t remainin from pay
2022 &
HDFC TERM LOAN 1,45,21,068 8.35% 57 7 Feb'2018 |Oct'2022
HDFC-TL-CAPEX 49,88,202 Secured by 8.10% 16 4 July'2018 |Jan'2023
hypothecation of all the
HDFC-TL-CAPEX 24,94,006 | present &future 8.10% 16 4 Apr'2019  |Jan'2023
movable assets
FEDERAL BANK 83,01,960 lincluding all fixed assets [8.70% 38 8 Oct'2019  [Nov'2022
and secured by
FEDERAL BANK 57,17,335 [equitable mortgage on g 79, 33 3 Oct'2019  [Sep'2022
lease hold {and on pari
passu basis . , ,
FEDERAL BANK-GECL WC 3,05,84,783 8.50% 36 31 Nov'2021 jOct'2024
IDFC BANK-CAPEX 1,35,92,785 8.40% 16 16 Aug'2021 Huly'2026

b) Secured Borrowings - Short term borrowings from Bank

i) During the year the company has availed additional working capital facility of Rs.8.07 Cr from three bankers under consortium basis . The existing working capital
facility, Bill discounting facility and the new facility availed are repayable on demand.
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Notes forming part of special purpose financial statements

27 Financial Instruments Rs, In Lakhs
A. Accounting classifications and fair values
The carrying amounts and fair value of financial instruments by class are as follows:
As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Financial assets:
Financial assets measured at fair value: Nil Nil
Investments measured at

i. Fair value through other comprehensive income - -

ii. Fair value through profit or loss - -
fii. Derivative financial instruments - -
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

Trade receivables 1,048.48 1,007.89
Cash and cash equivalents 0.42 1.51
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 10.67 9.77
Loans
Other financial assets 70.74 20.49
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured at fair value:
Lease Liabilities 51.23 51.80
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Long term Borrowings 811.17 1,169.90
Short term Borrowings (less than 12 months) 1,908.40 1,101.02
Trade payables 4,433.80 4,658.23
Other financial liabilities - -
B (i) Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or
unobservable and consits of the following three levels:
Level 1 hierarchy - Includes Financial Instruments measured using quoted prices in the active market
Level 2 hierarchy - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market, is determined using
vatuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data.
Level 3 hierarchy - Includes financial instruments for which one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable
market data. This is applicable for unlisted securities.
There are no transfer between levels 1 and 2 during the year
(ii) valuation processess:
The finance department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes.
(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, deposits, cash and cash equivalents and other current financial
liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature and insignificant change in interest rate
28 Income Tax Expense 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
A Components of Income Tax Expense
i) Tax Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
a) Current Tax
on current year tax income - -
b) Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset)
on origination and reversal of temporary difference {118.81) (147.04)
{118.81) (147.04)
ii) Tax Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income 0.71 0.54
B Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard rate of corporation tax in
india as follows:

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Accounting Profit/ (loss) before income tax 361.34 222,70
Enacted tax rate in india (%) 26% 26%
Computed expected tax expense 93.95 57.90
Effect of

bie .

Fxpenses {net) that are not deductibie in determining taxable 18.88 581
income
True-up of tax provisions related to previous years 5.98 83.33
income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and 118.81 147.04

loss
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29 Disclosures required under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

30

Particulars

The Principal amount and the interest due theron (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

- Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment{which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accured and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disaliowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

31.03.2022

935.26
4.58

54.82

138.75

88.51

31.03.2021

335.87
4.85

37.70

76.95

44.10

This information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as 'Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises’ on the basis of information available with the Company on which the Auditors have relied upaon.

Employee Benefits

Brief Description of the plans:

The Company has various schemes for long term benefits such as Provident Fund, Superannuation, Gratuity and Earned Leave
Encashment. The company contributes gratuity amount to SBI life Insurance Co ltd.Both the employees and the company make
monthly contributions to the provident fund authorities,equal to specified percentage of eligible covered employees salary.The

Company has no further obligation than the monthly contributions.The liablity in respect of leave encashment benefit to staff is

determined on the basis of actuarial valuation and provided for accordingly.

In respect of the Employees Provident Fund Scheme, the fund is being maintained with Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and
hence the company has no obligations towards this interest contribution.

The liability in respect of Gratuity is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation and provided for in the Statement of Profit and

Loss as on 31/03/2022 are disclosed as below:

Rs. in lakhs
Gratuity {funded) Gratuity (funded)
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Change in defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 10.07 6.04
Interest Cost 0.72 0.43
Current service cost 2.04 1.53
Actuarial loss / (gain) 2.00 2.07
Benefits paid - -
Closing defined benefit obligation 14.83 10.07
Change in fair value of assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 8.59 3.12
Expected return on plan assets 0.61 0.40
;:Ic;:aarsi:ltgsain / (Loss) arising from Return on (©.74) )
Other adjustments - -
Contribution by employer - 5.06
Benefits paid - -
Closing fair value of plan assets 8.46 8.58
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of obligations at year end 14.83 10.07
Fair value of plan assets at year end 8.46 8.58
Amount now recognised as (liability)/ asset {6.37) {1.49)
Net (liability) / asset recognised as on 31st (6.37) (1.49)

March
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Gratuity Gratuity
Expenses recognised in the Profit & Loss Statemen
P € ffunded) {funded)
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
a) Interest on defined benefit obligation 0.72 0.43
b) Current service cost 2,04 - 1.53
c) Expected return on plan assets {0.61) (0.40)
d) Benefits transferred - -
e) Actuarial Gain/Loss - -
f Net actuarial loss / (gain) recognised in the current
year
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability
Actuarial loss / (gain) due to Change in
ss / gain) d € {1.17) (055)
Demographic & Financial Assumptions
Actuarial k in} due to experi
h) c. uarial loss / (gain} experience 317 262
adjustments
; Actuarial gain / (Loss) arising from Return on plan 074
assets :
Grand Total 4.89 3.63
Expenses recognised in the Profit & Loss A/c 2.15 1.56
Exp recognised in Other Compreh 294 2.07
Income
Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate {p.a) 7.62% 7.15%
Expected rate of return on plan assets (p.a) 7.15% 0.00%
Attrition rate 1.00% 1.00%
Salary escalation 5.00% 5.00%

Mortality Rate is IALM {2012-14) Ultimate constantly for both the plans

Risk Exposure :

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to some of the general risks such as Interest rate risk, Longevity risk and Salary
escalation risk, which are insignificant and not specific to the Company.

The Sensitivity Ananlysis of the Impact of Changes in the above assumption (by 1.0%) is given in the below tables :

a) Gratuity Rs. in Lakhs
ase | D i

Change in Assumption Increase in Assumption  Decrease in Assumption Alncre . n Ase:reas? "

n ption

2021-22 2021-22 2020-21 2020-21

Discount 12,36,965.00 17,91,308.00 8,34,223.00 12,24,581.00

Salary escalation 17,95,645.00 12,30,565.00 12,26,656.00 8,30,369.00

Mortality 14,85,098.00 NA  10,08,078.00 NA

Attrition 15,54,295.00 14,01,748.00  10,45,441.00 9,62,966.00

The sensitivity ananlysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that
the change in the assumptions would occur in isolation of one anather as some of the assumptions may be correlated.



SUNDARAM HYDRAULICS LIMITED
21, PATULLOS ROAD, CHENNA/ - 600 002

31. Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity shareholders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that-it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

32. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, include trade and other payables. The Company has various financial assets such as trade receivables
and cash and short-term deposits, which arise directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.
The Company’s senior management ensures that the company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. It is the Company’s policy
that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by
market risk include loans, deposits and FVTPL investments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Since there is no short term borrowings during the year with variable interest rates, this does not arise.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or
expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The Majority of the Company’s revenue and expenses are in Indian Rupees. The risk with respect to exposure in Foreign Currency if any will be
mitigated through hedging transactions.

Unhedged foreign currency

As at the balance sheet date, the Company's net foreign currency exposure that is not

Rs. In lakh
hedged is as follows: S I fakns
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Trade Payables (51.32) 7.46

Trade Receivables - -
Advance to suppliers - -

The disclosure sensitivity of profit and loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated
financial instruments

Impact on profit/(Loss)

Details 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
USD sensitivity In Rs. lakhs

INR/USD increases by 5% ‘ (2.61) 0.33
INR/USD decreases by 5% 2.61 {0.33)

South Korean Won Sensitivity
INR/SKW increases by 5% 0.04 - 0.04
INR/SKW decreases by 5% (0.04) (0.04)
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Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits
with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments. Management reviews the receivables
outstanding frequently and hence there is a very minimat risk.

"The Company's credit period generally ranges from 30-90 days.

Pravision for expected credit losses

The company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss aliowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix.
The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss
allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

The allowance for Expected Credit loss on Customer balance for the year ended 31™ March 2022 is Rs.2,57,090.

Movement in Credit Loss Allowance

Particulars 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
Balance at the beginning - -
Impairment Loss recognised/{reversed} 2.57 -
Amounts written off - -
Balance at the end 2.57 -

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain
sufficient liquidity and ensure funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company's prime source of liquidity is cash and cash
equivalents and the cash generated from operations.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Rs. In lakhs
Less than 1 year > 1 year Total

As at 31.03.2022
Long Term Borrowings 498.31 312.86 811.17
Short Term Borrowings 1,808.40 - 1,908.40
Trade and other payables 4,433.80 - 4,433.80
Financial Liabilities - Others (Lease Liabilities) 0.78 50.45 51.23
6,841.29 363.31 7,204.60

As at 31.03.2021
Long Term Borrowings 555.28 614.62 1,169.90
Short Term Borrowings 1,101.02 - 1,101.02
Trade and other payables 4,659.23 - 4,659.23
Financial Liabilities - Others (Lease Liabilities) 0.57 51.23 51.80
6,316.10 665.85 6,981.95
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33 Segment information for the year ended March 31, 2022 in accordance with ind AS 108:

(i) Primary segments:
Hydraulic Cylinder is the only reportable segment of the company
(ii) Revenue by Geographical Segment:
2021-22 2020-21
India Outside India Total India | Outside India Total
External 11,251.71 - 11,251.71 5,749.85 - 5,749.85
Iinternal - - - - - -
Total 11,251.71 - 11,251.71 5,749.85 - 5,749.85
Carrying
amount of 7,372.50 - 7,372.50 6,617.78 - 6,617.78
segment assets
A.ddltxons to 125.92 . 125.92 96.25 - 96.25
fixed assets

The geographical segments considered for disclosure are as follows:
a) Sales within india include Sales to customers located within India; and b) Sales outside India include Sales to customers located outside India

{iii) Information about major customers
Revenues from two major customers of the Company execeeding 10% of the Company's total revenue are Rs.7617.75 Lakhs and Rs.1542.21 Lakhs (Previous
year Rs.3528.43 Lakhs and Rs.1069.44 lakhs)

34 Disaggregated revenue information Rs. In Lakhs

A Type of goods and service 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
a) Sale of products
- Hydraulic Cylinder and Axle Shafts 10,905.26 5,636.95
- Others
b) Sale of services 121.29 4.40
c) Other operating revenues
- Scrap Sales 133.09 82.38
- Packing and forwarding charges 6.29 4.54
- others 85.78 21.58
Total operating revenue 11,251.71 5,749.85
in India 11,251.71 5,749.85
Cutside India - -

B Timing of revenue recognition At a point of time Over a period of time
Sale of products and other operating income 11,251.71 5,749.85 -

s Contract Balances 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Trade receivables (Refer Note 6) 1,048.48 1,007.89
(not interest bearing and are generaily on terms of 30 to 90 days)

b Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities Nit Nil

E Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Revenue at contracted prices 11,251.71 5,749.85
Revenue from contract with customers 11,251.71 5,749.85
Difference - -

F Unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligation Nil Nit
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Related Party disclosures in accordance with Ind AS 24 issued by ICAI
Associates:-
i} Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited

Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel and his relatives are exercising significant influence.

i} Wheels india Limited

ii} Maham Holdings Private Limited

Key Managerial Personnel:-

Mr. Srivats Ram

Relatives of Key managerial personnel :-
Parents of Mr.Srivats Ram

Mr. S. Ram

Mrs. Geetha Ram

Nature of transactions

1. Transactions during the year

A. Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel and his relatives are
exercising significant influence

Purchase of Goods

Sale of Goods

Rendering of Services

Receiving of Services

B Key managerial personnel & Relatives:-

2. Closing balances

A. Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel and his relatives are
exercising significant influence)

Balance due (payable)

Balance due (receivable)

B. Key managerial personne! & Relatives
Balance due {payable)

Disclosure on Accounting for intangible assets in accordance with Ind AS 38

Computer software & Technical know how Refer note no.1
Gross carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Acquired during the year

Gross carrying amount at the end of the year

Gross amortisation at the beginning of the year

Amortised during the year

Gross amortisation at the end of the year

Net carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Net carrying amount at the end of the year

Disclosures as under ind AS 116

Depreciation Charge for right of use on leased assets

(i} Leased Land

Interest expenses on lease liabilites

Expenses relating to short-term leases

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets

Expenses relating to variable iease payments

Income from subleasing right-of-use assets

Total cash outflow for leases

Additions to right-of-use assets

Gains or Losses arising from sale and leaseback transactions

Carrying amount of right-of use assets at the end of the Financial Year

(i) Leased Land

38 The net gain/ (loss) on foreign exchange transactions routed through

39

statement of profit and loss is

2021-22

6,305.75
8,921.31
137.76
320.93

3,482.72
572.68

2021-22

28.76

28.76
28.76

28.76

43.87

1.44

Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to current year classification

Rs. in Lakhs
2020-21

3,389.15
4,150.90
8.03
196.76

3,778.28
53.36

Rs. In Lakhs
2020-21

28.76

28.76
28.76

28.76

46.84

(0.13)
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Ratio Disclosure

189

Sl. No.  Particulars Basis 31" March 2022 31" March 2021 Variance Reason for variance
tA

1 Current ratio Current Asset/Current 0.64 059 8%|-

Liabilities
Repayment of loan and

Long t Debt,

2 Debt-Equity ratio ShZi:c;:zer: £ /uit 1.65 4.73 -65%|fresh borrowings and

quity improvement in EBIDTA.
A [Deb i L

3 Debt Service Coverage ratio 52:_0”3; /Debt service (Long 136 0.92 49% [improvement in EBIDTA
Net Income(PAT)/A

4 Return on Equity/Net worth ratio % et income(PAT)/Average 66% 36% 83%|improvement in PAT
Networth

A

5 Inventory turnover ratio Turnover/ Average 3.90 2.52 55%{lncrease in Turnover

Inventory
. 4 Turnover/Average .

6 Trade Receivables turnover ratio R 10.94 7.03 55%|Increase in Turnover

receivable
t Credi | i i

7 Trade payables turnover ratio Net Credit purchase / 2.02 0.93 117% nerease in Net credit

Average payables purchase
Closi

8 Net capital turnover ratio Turnover/ Closing 23.13 23.40 -1%|-
Networth

9 Net profit ratio % PAT/Turnover 2% 1% 64%|increase in PAT&Turnover
EBIT / Share Holders

10 R capital loyed % 20% 18% 12%

eturn on capital employed % Equity+Debt b 6 b
11 Return on investment - - -1
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41  Other reguiatory disclosures as required under Revised Schedule Ill of Companies Act, 2013

Vi

Vit

Vil

No Proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder

Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by Bank or Financial insitutition or other lender

As per the information available with the company, the company has not transacted with any companies struck
off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or under Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956

There has been no charges yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period

Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources)
1o any other person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the intermediary shall

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever

by or on behalf of the Company {ultimate beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the uitimate beneficiaries.

Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities {funding party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever

by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

(i} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the uitimate beneficiaries.

Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year ended March 31, 2022

The Company has not given any loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, Key Mangerial Personnel
and Related parties, which are repayable on demand or without specficifying any terms or period of repayment.

During the year, the Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets.
Returns/Statements were filed with the banks on a periodical basis and the same are in agreement with the books of accounts.

42 The provisions of sec. 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company during the year.

43 The Board of Director of the Company at their meeting held on 07.12.2021 approved the draft scheme of amalgamation of the Company with Wheels India Limited.
The application before National Company Law Tribunal {NCLT) for their approval for the proposed amalgamation has been filed on 16.03.2022 and the approval is

awaited

Signatories to Notes to Financial Statements \

SRIVATS RA

As per our report attached
For S P VR & Associates
SRINIVAS ACHARYA Chartered Accountants

Chairman and Maaging Director Director (Registration No.:016918S)

DIN: 00063415

May 23, 2022

Chennai

. - G
\P% \r«f%ﬂo

G.SATHYA SAI GANESH M. SHENBAGAPRIYA
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Partner
Membership No.212806
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Cash Flow Statement in accordance with Ind AS 7 issued by ICAI
Annexed to the Balance Sheet for the period ending 31.03.2022
As At March 31,2022 As At March 31, 2021
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax and extraordinary items 361.34 222.70
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 211.92 214.21
Gain/ (loss) on fair valuation of financial assets (2.74) (2.07)
(Profit) / Loss on sale of assets (5.45) -
Interest income (7.94) (1.83)
Finance costs 289.61 190.26
485.40 400.57
Operating profit before working capital changes 846.74 623.27
Adjustments for:
Trade Receivables (40.59) (381.60)
Advances and other current assets 132.92 22.54
Inventories (902.06) (298.63)
Trade Payables (225.41) (278.68)
Other payables and provisions 173.47 57.68
(861.67) (878.69)
Cash generated from operations (14.93) (255.42)
Taxes paid -
Cash flow before extraordinary items (14.93) (255.42)
Net Cash from operating activities {A) {14.93) (255.42)
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets {158.12) (93.17)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 5.56 ’ -
Interest received 7.94 1.83
Net cash used in investing activities (B) {144.62) (91.34)
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 187.59 300.00
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (547.58) (564.60)
Increase/decrease in working capital 807.38 802.35
Finance costs (288.93) (190.48)
Net cash used in Financing activities (C) 158.46 347.27
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1.09) 0.51
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.51 1.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.42 1.51
The above statement of cash flow is prepared using indirect method
/
As per our report attached
For S P V R & Associates
SRIVATS RA SRINIVAS ACHARYA Chartered Accountants
Chairman and Managing Director Director (Registration No.:016918S)
DIN:00063415 DiN:00017412 '
p
May 23,2022 ngTHYA SAl GANESH M. SHENBAGAPRIYA
Chennai Chief Financial Officer = Company Secretary Partner
Membership No.212806
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Regd. O _ Telefax : 044 - 26257121
Fagtory ffice Egjj; ggggiggg Web  : www.wheelsindia.com
(044) 26258511
WHEELS INDIA LIMITED
Corporate Identity Number : 1L35921TN1960PLC0041 75
Registered Office : Factory :

21, Patullos Road, Chennai - 600 002.

Report of the Board of Directors of Wheels India Limited pursuant to Section 232(2)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2013 explaining the effect of the Scheme of Amalgamation of
Sundaram Hydraulics Limited with Wheels India Limited and their respective
shareholders

1.0 Background

The Board of Directors of Wheels India Limited (‘the Company’) deliberated the draft
Scheme of Amalgamation under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 as
amended from time to time (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s)
thereof), which involves the amalgamation of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited (Transferor
Company) with Wheels India Limited (Transferee Company) and their respective
shareholders.

As per Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, a report adopted by the Directors
explaining the effect of the Amalgamation on each class of shareholders, key managerial
personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders is required to be circulated to the
shareholders, along with the notice convening the meeting.

Accordingly, this report has been prepared in compliance with the provisions of Section
232(2)(c) of the Companies 2013.

2.1 Share Exchange Ratio and Consideration

The Scheme envisages that shares shall be issued by Wheels India Limited to
shareholders of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited pursuant to the Amalgamation in the ratio

given below:

“151 (One Hundred and Fifty-One) equity shares in Transferee Company of the face
value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, credited as fully paid-up for every 15,000
(Fifteen Thousand) Equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) fully paid-up held in
Transferor Company.”

1
PLEASE ADDRESS ALL COMMUNICATIONS TO THE FACTORY

Padi, Chennai - 600 050.
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Further, a Valuation Report dated December 07, 2021 was issued by Mr. Niranjan
Kumar. No special valuation difficulties were reported by Mr. Niranjan Kumar. Kunvarji
Finstock Private Limited, Merchant banker has provided the Fairness Opinion dated
December 07, 2021 on the above-mentioned Share Entitlement Ratio and has stated that
the Scheme of Amalgamation is fair.

2.2 Effect of the Amalgamation on each class of shareholders, promoters and non-
promoter shareholders

2.2.1 There is only one class of Shareholders viz., Equity Shareholders.

2.2.2 On Amalgamation of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited, the shareholders of Sundaram
Hydraulics Limited would receive shares in Wheels India Limited.

2.2.3 There would be a minor change in the shareholding of the Promoter and Public
shareholders of Wheels India Limited pursuant to issuance of shares to shareholders
of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited.

2.3 Effect of the Amalgamation on Key Managerial Personnel of Wheels India Limited

The Scheme of Amalgamation does not affect the KMP’s of Wheels India Limited in any
manner.

Approved and adopted by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on
December 07, 2021.

By order of the Board
For Wheels India Limited

December 07, 2021

Chennai Chairman

DIN: 00018309
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Annexure- H

This is an Abridged Prospectus containing salient features of business of Sundaram
Hydraulics Limited (“Transferor Company” or “SHL”) and Scheme of Amalgamation
involving Wheels India Limited (“Transferee Company” or “WIL”) and SHL. You may
download the Scheme of Amalgamation from the website of Wheels India Limited
(wheelsindia.com), and the Stock Exchange where the equity shares of Wheels India Limited are
listed (“Stock Exchange”), i.e. www.nseindia.com.

This Abridged Prospectus contains 8 pages. Please ensure that you have received all the
pages.

NO EQUITY SHARES ARE PROPOSED TO BE SOLD OR OFFERED PURSUANT TO
THIS ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS

SUNDARAM HYDRAULICS LIMITED

(Sundaram Hydraulics Limited was incorporated on December 07, 2007 under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of Companies, Chennai. The Corporate
Identification Number of the Company is U71290TN2007PLC065658)

Regd. Office: No.21, Patullos Road, Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India
Tel.: +91 044 262234474, e-mail: saiganesh k(@sundaramhydraulics.in
Contact Person: Mr. Sai Ganesh K

Promoters of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited are Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited
(“SFHL”) and Wheels India Limited (“WIL”)

Please ensure that you also read the Scheme of Amalgamation which has been approved by the
Board of Directors of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited at their meeting held on December 07,
2021. The shareholders are advised to retain a copy of the Abridged Prospectus for their future
reference.

FOR PRIVATE CIRCULATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WIL ONLY

ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS

In the nature of an Abridged Prospectus containing salient features of the Scheme of
Amalgamation involving Wheels India Limited (“Transferee Company” or “WIL”) and
Sundaram Hydraulics Limited (“Transferor Company” or “SHL”) and their respective
shareholders under Sections 230 to 232 and the rules made thereunder of the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as the "Scheme"). This Abridged Prospectus discloses applicable
information of the unlisted entity i.e. Sundaram Hydraulics Limited, in compliance with SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 as amended, SEBI Master
Circular- SEBI/HO/CFD/DILI/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020 read with SEBI
Master Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DILI/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021
(“SEBI Circular”) relating to the Scheme.

This document is prepared to comply with the requirement of Regulation 37 of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 read with the SEBI Circular, and sets out the disclosures in an abridged prospectus
format as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (“SEBI ICDR Regulations,

Page 1 of 8
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2018™), to the extent applicable. The equity shares of WIL are listed on the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) and has been permitted for dealings on BSE Limited,
Mumbai (BSE) under “Permitted Securities” Category (referred to as the “Stock Exchanges”.
The Scheme involves, Amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company —
Part IT of the Scheme. The requirements with respect to General Information Document are
not applicable and this Abridged Prospectus should be read accordingly.

SHL ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY

SHL, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that the
Abridged Prospectus contains all information with regard to SHL and the Scheme, which is
material in the context of the Scheme, that the information contained in the Abridged
Prospectus is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material
respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are
no other facts, the omission of which will make the Abridged Prospectus as a whole, or any of
such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions, misleading in any
material respect.

MERCHANT BANKER

Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited

Block B, First Floor, Siddhi Vinayak Towers, Off S.G. Highway Road, Mouje Makarba,
Ahmedabad- 380051

CIN: U65910GJ1986PTC008979

Contact Person: Mr. Niraj Thakkar

Tel No.: +91 79 6666 9000 | F: +91 79 2970 2196

e-mail: niraj.thakkar@kunvarji.com

SEBI Reg. No.: MB/INM000012564

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sundaram Hydraulics Limited was incorporated on December 07, 2007 under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of Companies, Chennai. The Corporate
Identification Number of the Company is U71290TN2007PLC065658.

Registered Office of SHL
Registered office of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited is situated at No.21, Patullos Road,
Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
Cameo Corporate Services Limited,
Subramanian Building,

No.1, Club House Road, Chennai - 600 002

Statutory Auditor

M/s. S P V R and Associates,
(Firm Registration No. 016918S)
New No.27, Old No.14,

7% Lane, Shastri Nagar,

Adyar, Chennai - 600 020
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SCHEME DETAILS AND PROCEDURE

The Scheme of Amalgamation involves, Amalgamation of Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company — Part IT of the Scheme. NSE has granted approval under Regulation 37
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 vide Observation Letter dated February 10, 2022. As a consideration for the
amalgamation, 151 (One Hundred and Fifty-One) Equity shares of WIL of face value Rs.
10.00/- each credited as fully paid share for every 15000 (Fifteen Thousand) share held in SHL
of the face value Rs 10.00/- each fully paid.

Upon Part II of the Scheme becoming effective on the effective date SHL shall stand
automatically dissolved as an integral part of this scheme, without being liquidated or wound —
up and without requiring any further act, instrument or deed from SHL and / or the WIL.

ELIGIBILITY FOR THE ISSUE
Whether the company is compulsorily required to allot at least 75% of the net public offer to
public, to qualified institutional buyers — Not Applicable

INDICATIVE TIMELINE
The Abridged Prospectus is issued pursuant to the Scheme and is not an offer to public at large.
The time frame cannot be established with absolute certainty, as the Scheme is subject to

approvals from regulatory authorities, including the National Company Law Tribunal, Division
Bench at Chennai (“NCLT”).

PROMOTERS OF SUNDARAM HYDRAULICS LIMITED
The Promoters of Sundaram Hydraulics Limited are

e Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited (“SFHL”) hold 25.72% and Wheels India
Limited (“WIL”), hold 16.34% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of Sundaram
Hydraulics Limited.

Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited was incorporated on October 13, 1993, under the
name of Sundaram Finance Securities Private Limited. Subsequently, our Company was

converted into a public limited company and accordingly the name of our Company was

changed to ‘Sundaram Finance Securities Limited’ with effect from November 22, 1993.
In 2003, our Company’s main object was amended for engaging in insurance broking and
accordingly, the name of our Company was changed to ‘Sundaram Insurance Broking
Limited’ and a fresh certificate of incorporation was issued to us on May 21, 2003 by the
Registrar of Companies. Thereafter, the name of our Company was changed to ‘Sundaram
Finance Distribution Limited’ as it entered the business of distribution of financial
products and a fresh certificate of incorporation was issued to us on December 5, 2003 by
the Registrar of Companies. The name of our Company was changed to ‘Sundaram
Finance Investments Limited’ as the main object of our Company was amended to
engaging in all forms of investments and a fresh certificate of incorporation was issued to
us on December 21, 2016 by the Registrar of Companies. Subsequently, the name of the
Company was changed to ‘Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited’ and a fresh certificate of
incorporation was issued to us on March 29, 2017 by the Registrar of Companies.
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Pursuant to a scheme of arrangement and amalgamation between our Promoter, our
Company, and certain other transferor companies, approved by the National Company
Law Tribunal by way of an order dated January 12, 2018, certain identified shared services
from our Promoter and Sundaram BPO India Limited and training services, noncore
investments and identified immovable properties from our Promoter were transferred into
and vested in our Company, as a going concern, with effect from April 1, 2016. The
Company provide business process outsourcing services in the nature of information
technology enabled services in areas of accounting, insurance, banking, human resources,
telecom etc. and administrative, managerial, maintenance, document processing, data
entry, reconciliation, training and orientation and other support services to our portfolio
companies and to various third parties through our Subsidiary.

Wheels India Limited was incorporated in the state of Tamil Nadu in the name and style
Wheels India Private Limited on June 13, 1960. On March 28, 1961, consequent upon
conversion from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company, its name was
changed to Wheels India Limited. The Registered Office is situated at No.21, Patullos
Road, Chennai — 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India. The equity shares of Wheels India Limited
are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). Wheels India Limited is
engaged in the business of manufacturing of automotive and Industrial Components.

GENERAL RISKS

Investments in equity and equity related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should
not invest any funds in the equity of the Issuing Company unless they can afford to take the
risk of losing their entire investment. Shareholders are advised to read the risk factors carefully
before taking an investment decision in relation to the Scheme. For taking an investment
decision, shareholders must rely on their own examination of the Company and the Scheme
including the risks involved. The equity shares being offered in the Scheme have not been
recommended or approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) nor does
SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of the Abridged Prospectus. The Scheme does not
envisage any issue to the public at large. Shareholders are advised to refer the title “Internal
Risk Factors” on Page No. 8 of the Abridged Prospectus before making an investment in this
Scheme.

BUSINESS MODEL/BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

Overview
Sundaram Hydraulics Limited is engaged in the business of design, manufacture, and
distribution of hydraulic cylinders for the domestic and global MCE industry.

The Board of Directors of Transferor Company and Transferee Company believe that the
proposed Scheme would, inter alia, have the following benefits:

1. The amalgamation will enable product diversification and growth to the Transferee
Company

2. This will facilitate expansion of the business of Transferor Company by using the
customer base of the Transferee Company.

3. As a combined entity, the amalgamation will help in widening the product offering to the
existing strategic customers of both the transferor as well as the transferee company.
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4. Will help in achieving consolidation, greater integration and flexibility that will maximize
overall shareholder’s value and improve the competitive position and negotiating power of

the combined entity.

5. Improves organizational capability and leadership, arising from the pooling of human
capital who have the diverse skills, talent and vast experience to compete successfully in

an increasingly competitive industry.

6. Cost savings are expected to flow from more focused operational efforts, rationalization,
standardization and simplification of business processes, elimination of duplication and
rationalization of administrative expenses.

7. The amalgamation will result in reduction of multiplicity of entities, thereby reducing
compliance cost of multiple entities viz., statutory filings, regulatory compliances, labour

law/ establishment related compliances.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SHL

Experience

Mr. Srivats Ram holds a bachelor’s degree in
Economics from the University of Madras and
a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from Case Western Reserve University, USA.
He has more than 27 years of experience in the
industry and has been on Board since
incorporation of the Company

Mr. Srinivas Acharya is a Non-executive and
Non-Independent Director of the Company. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in Science and a
Certified Associate of Indian Institute of
Bankers. He has more than three decades of
experience in Banking and Financial Services
and has been on Board since incorporation of
the Company

Mr. Badri Vijayaraghavan serving the Board as
Non-Executive and Independent Director since
January 24, 2020. He holds a master degree in
Business Management and carries rich
experience in auto components industry for
more than three decades

Mr. Srinivasan Srivathsan is associated a
Director of the Company since incorporation
and serving the Board as an Independent
Director since January 27, 2021. He is an
Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the Institute of Cost
Accountants of India and the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India. He has more
than three decades of rich experience in
handling finance, secretarial and management.

I‘SI:).. Name, DIN and Address Designation
Mr. Srivats Ram
DIN: 00063415 Chairman &

1. Address: Old No.29, New  Managing
No.57, Prithivi Avenue, Director
Chennai - 600 018
Mr. Srinivas Acharya
DIN: 00017412
Address: "Srinivas", 31 Non-

2. Floor, Rukmini Road, Executive
Kalashetra Colony, Director
Besant Nagar, Chennai -

600 090

Mr. Badri

Vijayaraghavan

DIN: 00198817 Independent

3. Address: No. 4, DiIr) ector

Valliammai Achi Street,
Kotturpuram,
Chennai - 600 085
Mr. Srinivasan Srivathsan
DIN: 01895659
Address: Flat 2C, Krishna
4 Block, Jivan Bhima Independent
*  Enclave, Plot No. 12 - 17, Director
Rajasekaran Street,
Mylapore,
Chennai - 600 004
Mr. Tirumalachari Non-

5. Narayanan Executive

DIN: 00333841 Director

Mr. Tirumalachari Narayanan is associated
with the Company since January 2015 and
serving the Board as a Non-Executive Director
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Sl

Name, DIN and Address
No.

Designation

Experience

Address: DoorNo 1, 1
Block, Benco Colony, 1%
Cross Street, Besant
Nagar, Chennai - 600 090

since January 01, 2021. He is an Associate
Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the Institute of Cost
Accountants of India and the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India. He has more
than three decades of experience in handling
Finance, Taxation, Secretarial and legal
matters.

Mr. Seshadri Suresh
DIN: 06811356

Address: F11, PH-2, Jains
Aashiana, 13, VA Koil
Street, Virugambakkam,
Chennat - 600 092

Non-
Executive
Director

Mr. Seshadri Suresh is serving the Board as a
Non-executive and Non-Independent Director
since February 13, 2014. He is a Mechanical
Engineer and holds a holds master’s degree in
business administration. He has more than two
decades of experience in manufacturing and
marketing.

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

Sundaram Hydraulics Limited does not propose to raise any capital and its equity shares are

unlisted.

Details and reasons for non-deployment or delay in deployment of proceeds or changes in
utilization of issue proceeds of past public issues / rights issues, if any, of the company in

the preceding 10 years: Not Applicable

CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF SHL

PRE SCHEME

Authorised Share Capital

Rs.46,50,00,000 comprising of 4,65,00,000 equity

shares of face value Rs. 10 each

Rs.7,00,00,000 comprising of 7,00,000 Preference‘

Shares of Rs. 100 each.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital

Rs.43,75,13,000 comprising of 4,37,51,300 equity

shares of face value Rs. 10 each

POST SCHEME*
Authorised Share Capital Not applicable
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital Not applicable

*Sundaram Hydraulics Limited will merge into WIL and shall dissolve without winding up pursuant to the

Scheme, no post scheme authorised and issued and paid-up capital has been shown.
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Based on the above, the pre and post Scheme shareholding pattern of SHL would be as

under:
Pre-Scheme Pre-Scheme Post Post Scheme
Sr. . Scheme*
Particulars (number of (Yoage (Yoage
No. shares) holding) ~ (Wumber of holding)
g shares) &
]  Promoter and 1.84.00,000 42.06 ] ]
Promoter Group
2 Public _ 2.53,51,300 57.94 - -
Custodians / Non-
3 Public Non- i i i )
promoter
shareholders
Total 4,37,51,300 100.00 - -

SUMMARY OF AUDITED FINANCIALS OF SUNDARAM HYDRAULICS LIMITED

(Rs. in Crores)

Audited for

. FY
. Six Months - FY 2020- FY
Particulars period ended 21! 23(1)19' 2018-19!
Sep 30, 2021!

Total income (net) 2 50.65 57.50 51.92 53.32
Net Profit / (Loss) after tax > 0.79 0.76 (5.36) (4.20)
Paid up Equity Share Capital 43.75 43.75 43.75 41.00
Other Equity (excluding revaluation (40.51) (4129)  (42.04)  (36.66)
reserves)
Net worth* 3.25 2.46 1.72 4.34
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 0.18 0.17 (1.30) (1.16)
Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 0.18 0.17 (1.30) (1.16)
Return on net worth (%) ° 2431 30.90 (311.63) (96.77)
Net asset value per share (in Rs.)® 0.74 0.56 0.39 1.06 .

Note 1: Summary for the six months period ended September 30, 2021, financial years ended on
March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 has been extracted from audited
financial statements prepared based on Ind-AS (notified under Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015).

Note 2: Total income includes revenue from operations and other income.

Note 3: Net Profit / (Loss) after tax is income before other comprehensive income.

Note 4: 'Net Worth' means means the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves
created out of the profits and securities premium account, after deducting the aggregate
value of the accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not
written off, as per the audited balance sheet, but does not include reserves created out of
revaluation of assets, write-back of depreciation and amalgamation.

Note 5: Return on net worth (%) has been arrived at by dividing Profit / (Loss) after tax by Net

Worth.

Note 6: Net asset value per share has been derived by dividing Net Worth by the number of

outstanding shares.
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INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

1. The Scheme for Amalgamation is subject to the conditions / approvals as envisaged under
the Scheme and any failure to receive such approvals will result in non-implementation of
the Scheme and may adversely affect the shareholders.

2. The Company is presently an unlisted Company, and its securities are presently not
available for trading on any stock exchange.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY
ACTIONS

A. Total number of outstanding litigations (in courts) against SHL and amount involved is as
under: Nil

B. Brief details of the top 5 material outstanding litigations (in courts) against SHL and
amount involved: Nil

C. Regulatory action, if any. Disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchange against the
Promoters in the last 5 years including outstanding action, if any: Sundaram Finance
Holdings Limited and Wheels India Limited are the promoters of Sundaram
Hydraulics Limited. No regulatory / disciplinary action has been taken by SEBI or
stock exchanges against Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited and Wheels India
Limited in the last 5 years nor is any such matter pending for disposal.

D. Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against the Promoters: There are no
outstanding criminal proceedings against the Promoters.

ANY OTHER MATERIAL INFORMATION OF SHL: NIL

DECLARATION BY SHL

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines /
regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines / regulations issued by
Securities and Exchange Board of India, established under Section 3 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 as the case may be, have been complied with and no
statement made in this Abridged Prospectus is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or guidelines or
regulations issued there under, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in this
Abridged Prospectus are true and correct.

Srivats
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00063415

Date: July 16, 2022
Place: Chennai
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KUNVARJI

SINCE 1960

Driven By Knowledge

To

The Board of Directors
Wheels India Limited,
21, Patullos Road,
Chennai — 600 002,
Tamil Nadu.

Dear Sir,

Sub: Certificate on adequacy and accuracy of disclosure of information pertaining to the
Sundaram Hydraulics Limited in the Abridged Prospectus in compliance with SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 as amended, SEBI Master
Circular- SEBI/HO/CFD/DILI/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020 read with
SEBI Master Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DILI/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November
23, 2021 (“SEBI Circular”) for the purpose of Scheme of Arrangement between
Sundaram Hydraulics Limited (“SHL"), and Wheels India Limited (“WIL") and their
respective shareholders and creditors under section 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Scheme”).

We, M/s. Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited (“KFPL", “Kunvarji”, “We” or “us”), a Category I
Merchant Banker registered with SEBIL having registration no. MB/INM000012564 have been
appointed by Board of Directors (the “Board™) of Wheels India Limited (WIL) for the purpose of
certifying the adequacy and accuracy of disclosure of information provided in its Abridged
Prospectus in connection with the Scheme of Arrangement between Sundaram Hydraulics Limited
("SHL"), and Wheels India Limited (“WIL").

1. Scope and Purpose of the Certificate:

SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 as amended, SEBI Master Circular—
SEBI/HO/CFD/DILI/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020 read with SEBI Master Circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/DILI/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021 ("SEBI Circular”) inter alia
prescribed that the listed entity (in the present case Wheels India Limited (“WIL") shall include
the applicable information pertaining to the unlisted entity involved in the scheme (in the present
certificate, Sundaram Hydraulics Limited ("SHL")) in the format specified for abridged prospectus
as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 ("ICDR Regulations"”), in the explanatory
statement or notice or proposal accompanying resolution to be passed, sent to the shareholders
while seeking approval of the scheme. SEBI Circular further prescribes that the acgurac) ]
adequacy of such disclosures shall be certified by a SEBI Registered Merchant / Snker \

following the due diligence process. ‘-’-‘:ﬁl—""

Kunvarji Finstock Pvt. Ltd.
Registered Office : Kunvarji, B - Wing, Siddhivinayak Towers, Off. 5.G. Road, Makarba,
Ahmedabad - 380 051
Phone:+91 79 6666 9000 | Fax : + 91 79 2970 2196 | Email: info@kunvarji.com
A Corpotrate Office : 05, Gr Floor,Summit Business Bay, Opp PVR Cinema,
www.kunvarji.com Near Western Express Highway- Metro Station,Andheri (E), Mumbai-400093

CIN - U65910GJ1986PTCO08779
000208/2022




KUNVARJI

SINCE 1960

Driven By Knowledge

This certificate is being issued in compliance of above mentioned requirement under the SEBI
Circular.

This certificate is restricted to meet the above mentioned purpose only and may not be used for
any other purpose whatsoever or to meet the requirement of any other laws, rules, regulations
and statutes.

1 Certification:
We state and confirm as follows:

1) We have examined various documents and other materials made available to us by the
management of WIL and SHL in connection with finalization of Abridged Prospectus dated
July 16, 2022 pertaining to SHL, which will be circulated to the members of all the
companies i.e. SHL and WIL at the time of seeking their consent to the Scheme of
Arrangement between SHL and WIL as a part of explanatory statement to the notice.

2) On the basis of such examination and the discussion with the management of SHL and
WIL, we confirm that:

A. The information contained in the Abridged Prospectus is in conformity with the relevant
documents, materials and other papers related to SHL.

B. The Abridged Prospectus contains applicable information pertaining to SHL as required in
terms of SEBI Circular, which, in our view is fair, adequate and accurate to enable the
members to make an informed decision on the Scheme of Arrangement.

3. Disclaimer:

Our scope of work did not include the following:-
e An audit of the financial statements of SHL.
« Carrying out a market survey / financial feasibility for the Business of SHL.
e Financial and Legal due diligence of SHL.

It may be noted that in carrying out our work we have relied on the integrity of the information
provided to us for the purpose, and other than reviewing the consistency of such information, we
have not sought to carry out an independent verification, thereof we assume no responsibility and
make no representations with respect to the accuracy or completeness of any information
provided by the management of SHL and WIL.

We do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this certificate atAuse of evets
or transactions occurring subsequent to the date of this certificate.

Kunvarji Finstock Pvt. Ltd.
Registered Office : Kunvariji, B - Wing, Siddhivinayak Towers, Off. 5.G. Road, Makarba,
Ahmedabad - 380 051

Phone:+91 79 6666 9000 | Fax : + 91 79 2970 2196 | Email: info@kunvarji.com
Corpotrate Office : 05, Gr Floor,Summit Business Bay, Opp PVR Cinema,

Near Western Express Highway- Metro Station,Andheri (E),Mumbai-400093

CIN - U65910GJ1986PTC008979

000209/2022
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We understand that the management of SHL and WIL, during our discussions with them would
have drawn our attention to all such information and matters, which may have impact on our
Certificate.

The fee for our services is not contingent upon the result of the Scheme of Arrangement.

The management of SHL, WIL or their related parties are prohibited from using this opinion other
than for its sole limited purpose and not to make a copy of this certificate available to any party
other than those required by statute for carrying out the limited purpose of this certificate.

Our certificate is not, nor should it be constructed as our opinion or certification of the compliance
of the Scheme of Arrangement with the provision of any law including Companies Act, taxation
laws, capital market laws and related laws.

We express no opinion whatsoever and make no recommendations at all (and accordingly take
no responsibility) as to whether shareholders/investors should buy, sell or hold any stake in the
Company or any of its related parties (holding companies/subsidiaries/associates etc.)

In no event, KFPL, its Directors and employees will be liable to any party for any indirect, incidental,
consequential, special or exemplary damages (even if such party has been advised of the
possibility of such damages) arising from any provision of this opinion.

Yours faithfully,
For, Kunvarji Finstock Private Limited

Atle Ol

Mr. Atul Chokshi
Director (DIN: 00929553)

Date: July 18, 2022
Place: Ahmedabad

Kunvarji Finstock Pvt. Ltd.

Registered Office : Kunvarji, B - Wing, Siddhivinayak Towers, Off. S.G. Road, Makarba,

Ahmedabad - 380 051

Phone:+91 79 6666 9000 | Fax : + 91 79 2970 2196 | Email: info@kunvarji.com

S Corpotrate Office : 05, Gr Floor,Summit Business Bay, Opp PVR Cinema,

www.kunvarji.com Near Western Express Highway- Metro Station,Andheri (E),Mumbai-4000%3

CIN - U65910GJ1986PTCO08979

000210/2022




E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS:

The Company has extended the mandatory ‘e-voting’ facility through the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs approved entity “CENTRAL DEPOSITORY SERVICES (INDIA)
LIMITED” (CDSL). Kindly follow the instructions for voting electronically provided as
under:

a) The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, August 17, 2022 at 9:00 A.M. (IST)
and ends on Friday, August 19, 2022 at 5:00 P.M. (IST). The remote E-voting module
shall be disabled and thereafter, remote E-voting facility shall be automatically stalled.

b) The Creditors should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

c) Click on Shareholders / Members.

d) The Eight digit number mentioned as “SL. NO.:....” on the address label on the
envelope, shall be entered as User ID”,

e) Nextenter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

f) The eight digit number mentioned as “FOLIO:.....” on the address label on the
envelope shall be entered as Password?,

g) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

h)  Select the EVSN of “220716008 - Wheels India Limited”” on which you choose to vote.

i)  On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the
same the option “YES / NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

j)  Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

k) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”.
A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”,
else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

)  Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote.

m) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to
print” option on the Voting page.

Note: Please take note of the SI. No. and Folio. No. printed on the address label stuck on the
envelope for your e-voting and attending the virtual meeting purposes.

# for those unsecured creditors who have not registered their e-mail addresses with the
Company

In case you could not retrieve your User ID / password, kindly contact our Registrar &
Transfer Agent, M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, “Subramanian Building”,
No.1, Club House Road, Chennai — 600 002, e-mail ID: investor@cameoindia.com / Phone:
044-28460395 or the Company at investorservices@wheelsindia.com / Phone.:
044-26258511; Extn.: 2320, 044-26257121

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact 1800 22 55 33.


http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:investorservices@wheelsindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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